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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you details of the Company’s (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) annual performance and business development for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Year”).

The 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic continues
to spread around the world, with the variant causing countries
to take continuous precautionary measures, and dragged down
global economic growth. In the face of high inflation, supply chain
problems, the Russia-Ukraine war and the China-US conflicts,
the volatility in the financial markets has driven the revaluation
of assets, where the overall investment sentiment has become
cautious. The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$1,973,133,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 4% from approximately HK$2,055,879,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Previous Year”). Profit for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$44,742,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 20.5% as compared to approximately
HK$56,253,000 in the Previous Year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the decrease in margin and IPO financing interest
income. Impairment losses on advances to customers in margin
financing for the Year was approximately HK$1,138,519,000
(Previous Year: HK$1,135,914,000).

As for the Hong Kong’s financial markets, the Hong Kong stock
market entered 2022 on a high note followed by a low in the face of
multiple uncertainties. The Hang Seng Index was volatile during the
period, but with more and more China concept stocks returning for
secondary listing and the further expansion of the bond capital
market, ETFs (Exchange Traded Funds) and SPACs (Special
Purpose Acquisition Companies), the financial market in Hong
Kong was enriched with a wide range of investments. During the
Year, the Group’s securities brokerage, underwriting and placing
businesses improved their performance and the segment recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$158,770,000 (the Previous Year:
approximately HK$68,628,000), representing an increase of
approximately 131% over the Previous Year. During the Year, the
margin and IPO financing business took a more cautious approach
and the segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$1,729,866,000 (the Previous Year: approximately
HK$1,938,035,000) representing an decrease of approximately
10.8% over the Previous Year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHE

The launch of “Cross-boundary Wealth Management Connect
Scheme in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area”
in September 2021 is a major initiative to interconnect the financial
markets of Hong Kong and the Mainland China, which further
established the status of Hong Kong stocks in the international
financial market. As one of the leading brokerage firms in Hong
Kong, in order to solidify our competitive advantages, we will
continue to review and adjust our future plans, and carefully plan
and implement our development plans in line with the market
conditions, so as to capture the opportunities brought by the Hong
Kong capital market and the Greater Bay Area. In addition, the
Group will explore expanding our customer base to the Greater Bay
Area and even the “Belt and Road” areas. It is anticipated that the
results of financial services segment (securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing operations,
and other financial services) will recover to pre-pandemic levels in
the next few years.

As for Macau, the visitor flow was seriously affected by COVID-19,
it is uncertain when the negative impact on Macau’s tourism and
gaming industry will end. In addition, DICJ (Direccado de Inspeccéo
e Coordenacao de Jogos) has published a report on the conclusion
of the public consultation on the amendment of the Gaming Law by
the end of December 2021, where the general opinion is that the
number of gambling licenses granted should be six and any form of
operation sublicensing is prohibited, which is conducive to the
stable development of the gaming industry in Macau. We will
continue to pay close attention to the development of the epidemic
and monitor the travel situation and market conditions and make
corresponding measures to sustain our business.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt gratitude to our board members for leading the Group
through a challenging year. | would like to express my highest
gratitude to our management and staff for their unremitting efforts. |
would also like to sincerely thank all our valued customers, service
providers, and business partners as well as you, the shareholder,
for your unwavering support.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W DT

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the
“Year”).

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services including securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering (“IPO")
financing, corporate finance advisory and futures brokerage. The
Group also provides gaming and hospitality services in Macau.

Total revenue recorded by the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,973,133,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 4% as compared to approximately
HK$2,055,879,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the
“Previous Year”).

Profit for the Year amounted to approximately HK$44,742,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 20.5% as compared to
approximately HK$56,253,000 for the Previous Year. Basic
earnings per share for the Year was approximately HK0.26 cents,
representing a decrease of approximately 20.5% as compared to
approximately HK0.32 cents for the Previous Year. The decrease
was primarily attributable to the decrease in margin and IPO
financing interest income. Impairment losses on advances to
customers in margin financing for the Year was approximately
HK$1,138,519,000 (Previous Year: HK$1,135,914,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W Lo

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has broken out since early 2020 and has
continued to spread globally, and the rapid mutation of the virus
continued to shock the global economy. Central banks of different
countries implemented quantitative easing policy during the
pandemic, which caused a large influx of funds pouring into the
European and U.S. stock markets. The U.S. stock market
performed strongly in 2021, the three major indices recorded a
double digits increase during the year, whereas the S&P 500,
NASDAQ and Dow Jones Industrial Average went up by
approximately 27%, 21% and 19% respectively. However, the
Russian invasion in Ukraine, the continuous increase in food and
energy prices and high transportation costs dragged down the
pace of global economic recovery.

The Hong Kong stock market would undoubtedly be impacted by
the U.S. Federal Reserve’s stated expectation of interest rate hike,
the risk of default on bonds issued by Mainland property
developers, and the increase of stamp duty on stocks in Hong
Kong and other factors. In addition, the Mainland government has
imposed antitrust penalties on individual Internet enterprises,
casting shadows for Hong Kong-listed new economy stocks. The
Hang Seng Index hit a low at 18,235 points on 15 March 2022,
marking a decade-low since June 2012. In 2021, the Hong Kong
initial public offering (IPO) market was muted, especially in the
second half of the year, the increase in the amount of financing
slowed down significantly, with approximately 17% drop in capital
raised to approximately HK$331.4 billion during the year.

However, the average daily turnover of Hong Kong stocks rose by
approximately 29% year-on-year to approximately $166.7 billion in
2021. Both the annual turnover and average daily turnover of the
Shanghai-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect reached record
highs, with the turnover of northbound and southbound trading
reached approximately RMB27.6 trillion and approximately HK$9.3
trillion respectively, up approximately 31% and approximately 70%
compared to 2020; the average daily turnover reached
approximately RMB120.1 billion and HK$41.7 billion in 2021
respectively, up approximately 32% and approximately 71% year-
on-year. For the financial year under review, the Group’s revenue
from the financial services segment decreased by approximately
5.3% from approximately HK$2,019,201,000 last year to
approximately HK$1,913,127,000 this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE N BRI

Under the influence of COVID-19, tourism restrictions were
enacted in Macau and other places, yet visitor arrivals to Macau
had increased during the Year from a low base figure. According
to DICJ (Direcgédo de Inspeccao e Coordenagédo de Jogos)
reporting, gaming revenue for the Year was approximately $81
billion, up approximately 51% year-on-year, but had still dropped
by approximately 73% compared to the pre-pandemic period. For
the financial year under review, the revenue from hotel and gaming
business increased by approximately 64%.

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and Placements
Securities brokerage, underwriting and placement services is one
of the main sources of income for the Group. The Group
undertakes the origination, structuring and marketing of
placements of equity and equity-related securities. It offers the
total solutions to clients’ financing needs. The Group plays
significant roles as placing agents and underwriters for listed
companies across different sectors.

The US Federal Reserve announced a 0.25% interest rate hike in
March 2022, raising the federal funds rate to 0.25% to 0.5%,
marking the first rate hike since December 2018. As the US enters
the interest rate hike cycle, market liquidity becomes constrained.
In addition, the uncertainties of the local pandemic and the China-
US conflict have weighed on the investment sentiment, and the
capital market sentiment is undoubtedly under impact, where the
Hang Seng Index hit a low at 18,235 points on 15 March 2022, a
decade-low since June 2012.

Although the financial market still faces difficulties and challenges
in different aspects, yet China concept stocks continued to return
to the Hong Kong stock market, meanwhile the further expansion
of the debt capital market, ETFs (Exchange Traded Funds) and
SPACs (Special Purpose Acquisition Companies) in Hong Kong
has brought opportunities for the industry. With the gradual
increase in vaccination rates and the expected relaxation of the
pandemic prevention measures and border control in phases, the
performance of Hong Kong stocks is expected to improve as the
economy of Hong Kong and China gradually recovers.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W Lo

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$158,770,000 in this segment (the Previous Year: approximately
HK$68,628,000), representing an increase of approximately 131%
as compared to the Previous Year, which also accounted for
approximately 9% (the Previous Year: approximately 3%) of the
Group’s financial service segment revenue and approximately 8%
(the Previous Year: approximately 3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Margin and IPO Financing

Business model

To complement the Group’s securities brokerage services, the
Group also provides margin and IPO financing services. Margin
financing is made available to clients who have opened margin
accounts with the Group to purchase securities with funds
borrowed from it to leverage their investments. IPO financing is the
grant of loans to clients for subscriptions of shares relating to IPOs.

Major terms of loans granted

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, advances to customers in margin
financing are repayable on demand and carried interest rates at
an average of Hong Kong Dollar Prime rate (“P”) plus 3% to 6%.
Margin clients are required to pledge their securities collateral to
the Group, in order to obtain credit facilities for securities trading in
the recognised stock exchanges. The amount of credit facilities
granted to them is determined by the discounted market value of
securities in accordance with margin lending policies set by the
Group’s management, which maintains a list of approved securities
for margin lending at a specified loan-to-collateral ratio.

Financial review

Due to weak market sentiment and uncertainty about the economic
outlook, the Group has adopted a more prudent approach for the
margin and IPO financing business. During the Year, revenue
amounted to approximately HK$1,729,866,000 (the Previous Year:
approximately HK$1,938,035,000), accounting for approximately
90% (the Previous Year: approximately 96%) of the Group’s
financial service segment revenue and approximately 88% (the
Previous Year: approximately 94%) of the Group’s total revenue.
The stock market in Hong Kong was volatile over the Year.
Impairment losses of approximately HK$1,138,519,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$1,135,914,000) were prudently made for
advances to customers in margin financing after reviewing the
relevant margin accounts portfolio, financial positions and the past
repayment record of the clients.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E S W DT

Other Financial Services mainly include Corporate
Finance Advisory Services and Futures Brokerage
Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financial services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services and futures brokerage.

The Group holds license under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal
structure and financing strategies in the context of mergers and
acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises, takeovers and other
notifiable transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Futures Exchange.

Revenue for the Year amounted to approximately HK$24,491,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$12,538,000), representing an
increase of approximately 95.3%, which also accounted for
approximately 1% (Previous Year: approximately 1%) of the
Group’s financial service segment revenue and approximately 1%
(Previous Year: approximately 1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill has arisen since the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business in April 2011. An independent professional
valuer was engaged to perform impairment assessment on the
goodwill. It was found that the recoverable amount of all 3 cash
generating units, namely the Placing and Underwriting segment,
the Margin and IPO Financing segment and the Corporate Finance
segment, exceed their respective carrying amount. Under this
circumstance, no impairment on the goodwill is considered
necessary.

Hotel Business

The Group is also engaged in hotel business in Macau, which
comprises hotel room rental, food and beverage operation catering
to international and local markets.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W Lo

Under the influence of COVID-19, tourism restrictions were
enacted in Macau and other places, yet visitor arrivals to Macau
had increased in the Year from a low base figure which had a
positive effect on the Group’s hotel business in Macau. Revenue
for hotel operations plus food and beverage in total amounted to
approximately HK$51,779,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$44,571,000), representing an increase of approximately 16.2%
as compared to the Previous Year. The average occupancy rates
of the two hotels, namely Casa Real and Grandview, were
approximately 41% (Previous Year: approximately 19%) and
approximately 40% (Previous Year: approximately 19%)
respectively.

Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder, namely
SJM Resorts, S.A. (formerly Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A)
(“SIM”).

Similarly, the increase in visitor arrival to Macau had a positive
effect on the Group’s gaming business in Macau. Gaming gain
amounted to approximately HK$8,227,000 for the Year,
representing an increase of approximately 204% as compared to
loss of approximately HK$7,893,000 of the Previous Year.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has 69 tables (2021: 69) in the
mass market halls, and 262 slot machines (2021: 262). As at 31
March 2022, the Group did not have any tables in the VIP rooms
(2021: 15) as the VIP rooms were closed in February 2022.

During the Previous Year, the Group entered into an addendum
(the “Addendum”) with SJM for the continuation of the provision of
services to SUM in the two casinos located at the Group’s two
hotels. Pursuant to the Addendum, the term of service has been
extended to 26 June 2022.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group entered into an addendum
(the “New Addendum”) with SUM for the continuation of the
provision of services based on a new arrangement to SJM in the
two casinos located at the Group’s two hotels. Pursuant to the New
Addendum, the term of services has been extended to 31
December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE N BRI

Other Income

Other income in the Year mainly included custodian and handling
charges and sundry income. The income decreased by
approximately 32.8% from approximately HK$25,433,000 in the
Previous Year to approximately HK$17,095,000 in the Year as
there was government subsidy received of approximately
HK$4,059,000 in the Previous Year.

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

During the Year, the Hong Kong equity market experienced
fluctuations. The Group recorded a fair value loss on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$26,483,000 (Previous Year: fair value gain approximately
HK$23,337,000). As at 31 March 2022, the Group was holding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$91,001,000 (Previous Year: approximately HK$124,323,000) in
market value.

Inventories consumed

Inventories consumed mainly represents the cost of food and
beverage consumed by the customers of the Group’s restaurants.
During the Year, it amounted to approximately HK$10,034,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$8,875,000), representing an
approximately 13.1% increase which was in line with the increase
in revenue of hotel business during the Year.

Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$163,606,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$165,864,000). No discretionary bonus
was paid and manpower costs were strictly controlled during the
Year. The Group reviewed and adjusted compensation and
benefits to employee regularly to match market rates. Packages
commensurate with employees’ qualifications and experience were
provided to retain good employees in the Group as well as to hire
potential talents.

Gaming commission

Gaming commission represented amount paid as an incentive to
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. The amount decreased greatly by approximately
14.9% from approximately HK$46,383,000 in the Previous Year to
approximately HK$39,488,000 in the Year as the chip turnover
dropped due to the closure of the VIP rooms in February 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERETHRAN

Broker Commission
Broker commission increased approximately 340% from
approximately HK$9,398,000 in the Previous Year to approximately
HK$41,362,000 in the Year. The increase was due to the increase
in revenue from securities brokerage, underwriting and placement
segment during the Year.

Interest expenses for securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO
financing operations

The interest expenses decreased from approximately
HK$192,600,000 in the Previous Year to approximately
HK$138,150,000 in the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 28.3% due to less funding need and fund cost
during the Year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The depreciation decreased from approximately from
HK$148,594,000 in the Previous Year to approximately
HK$131,719,000 in the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 11.4% which was due mainly to the decrease of the
depreciation of the leasehold and buildings held for own use in
which the fair value decreased during the Previous Year.

Impairment losses on advances to customers in
margin financing

As a result of the pandemic of COVID-19, repayment ability and
financial strength of the Group’s margin financing customers have
been negatively impacted by the volatile stock market. Thus, there
was a significant increase in credit risk which indicated the
impairment loss on advances to customers in margin financing.

The management measured the impairment loss on the basis of
lifetime ECL assessment. In order to assess the ECL among
different stages of default, the management performed an
assessment based on their historical credit loss experience,
adjusted to factors that are specific to the margin clients, general
economic conditions and forecast of future conditions at the end of
reporting period. The management also reviews the fair value of
pledged securities received from the margin clients and monitors
their assessment regularly to reduce differences between loss
estimates and their actual loss experience.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE N BRI

Due to the volatility in the local stock market during the Year,
impairment losses of approximately HK$1,138,519,000 (Previous
Year: approximately HK$1,135,914,000) were made on some
particular clients with margin loan shortfalls on a prudent basis
after reviewing their margin accounts portfolio, financial positions
and past repayment record.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly included rent and rates, office management
fee, lease expenses, electricity and water, fuel, other operating
expenses and etc.. During the Year under review, it amounted to
approximately HK$133,444,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$92,109,000), representing an approximately 45% increase.
The increase was due to the donation expenses of HK$5,540,000
paid during the year, the losses arising from reclassification of
exchange reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$23,403,000 and the bad debt written off of
approximately HK$9,801,000 due to the closure of VIP room during
the year.

Finance cost

During the Year, finance costs of approximately HK$36,146,000
(Previous Year: approximately HK$37,591,000) represented the
interest expenses on the amount due to a shareholder and lease
liabilities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Financial service segments

The Group expects the unstable COVID-19 pandemic situation is
here to stay. Although vaccination rates are gradually increasing in
various countries, we will not be complacent to the development of
the pandemic, and will continue to monitor the business
environment carefully and focus on our existing business.

Looking forward, we expect that the global and local economies
will continue to have hidden concerns in the coming year. In
addition to geopolitical instability, commodity and energy prices
continue to soar which drive up the inflation rate, while the US
enters the interest rate hike cycle and the US dollar is expected to
remain strong, with liquidity tightening as the exchange rate hovers
at a 20-years high level. Due to the weakening of the RMB
exchange rate, coupled with the continuation of the recent
pandemic control and lockdown measures in Mainland, the market
is concerned that such factors are dragging the economic growth.
However, it is expected that the Central Government will launch a
series of measures to stabilize the economy, including speeding
up the construction of major infrastructure projects and expanding
domestic demand, which is expected to keep the medium-to long-
term economic upturn in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W Lo

The development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area (“Greater Bay Area”) and Qianhai region will push on.
Meanwhile the Hong Kong government is encouraging and
supporting enterprises to issue green bonds or other innovative
green financial products, which is expected to bring opportunities
for Hong Kong as an international financial centre. The Group will
adhere to its strategy of managing the situation in a prudent
manner under the current climate, and will carefully plan and
implement development plans that are in line with the market
conditions, in order to capture the development opportunities of
the capital market in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area.

Hotel and Gaming Segments

Macau’s tourism and gaming industries have been severely
affected by COVID-19, and it is uncertain when it will end and
when it will fully recover to pre-pandemic levels. With the expected
gradual restoration of the e-Visa system and the reopening of
Hong Kong-Macau border, it is expected that the number of
visitors to Macau will gradually rebound and Macau’s gaming
revenue will also improve.

In addition, DICJ has published the report on the conclusion of the
public consultation on the amendment of the gaming law, and the
uncertainty has been removed. The Group will regularly review its
policies to respond to the ever-changing environment and to
maintain stability of its businesses.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2022, the shareholders’ fund and net current
assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$20,648,388,000 (2021: approximately HK$21,222,817,000)
and approximately HK$8,129,604,000 (2021: approximately
HK$7,971,071,000) respectively. On the same date, the Group had
cash and bank balance of approximately HK$245,982,000 (2021:
approximately HK$963,209,000) and the current ratio was
approximately 2.2 (2021: approximately 1.9).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$440,000,000 (2021: approximately
HK$560,000,000), amounts due to shareholders of approximately
HK$3,994,523,000 (2021: approximately HK$4,594,523,000), loan
from a related company of approximately HK$767,276,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,658,343,000) and subordinated loans of
approximately HK$700,000,000 (2021: approximately
HK$700,000,000) and lease liabilities of approximately
HK$79,543,000 (2021: approximately HK$31,328,000). On the
same date, the net gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total
borrowings less bank and cash balances in general accounts over
net assets, was approximately 28% (2021: approximately 31%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E S W DT

The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general
account and bank loan of the Group at the end of the reporting
period denominated in original currencies:

TREFINBEHRAREEEHEZAEER
& RRITHESR — —RERPARBRITENFE

2022
—E-CE

HKD CNY UsD SGD GBP MOP
BT N EDAE i 1 W - I
(000) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (Fr) (F#8) (Fr)
Cash and bank balances Be RiT4H
— general account ——REF 209,717 14,360 168 2 1 17,691
Bank loan BITER 440,000 - - - - -
2021
—E-—fF
HKD usb SGD GBP
BT EL FMER e
(000) (000) (000) (000)
(F) (F) (F) (F8)
Cash and bank balances BE RBETE
— general account — —REP 946,867 9,901 105 48 1 3,482
Bank loan BITER 560,000 - - - - -
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RAEE
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no material contingent R-T-—F=A=+—H AKELES A
liabilities. RETME -
CAPITAL STRUCTURE BARLE

During the Year, no material fluctuation was noted on the
Company’s capital structure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2022, the Group had no material capital commitments
(2021: approximately HK$71,000) in respect of acquisition of plant
and equipment.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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B E & W Lo

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at AGM

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
24 August 2022 (Wednesday)
11:00 a.m. on
28 August 2022 (Sunday)
25 August 2022 (Thursday) to
30 August 2022 (Tuesday)

Latest time to lodge proxy form

Book close date

Record date 30 August 2022 (Tuesday)

AGM 30 August 2022 (Tuesday)

In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Abacus Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (if it will be lodged
before 15 August 2022) or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (if it will be lodged on or after 15
August 2022) before the above latest time to lodge transfers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from sales of goods or rendering of
services during the year ended 31 March 2022 attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services. The
aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2022
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group’s total purchases.

CONCENTRATION OF LOANS TO MAJOR
CLIENTS

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
financial strength and creditworthiness of each trade debtors. At
31 March 2022 and 2021, there was no concentration of credit risk
with respect to the receivables, there was no customer is
responsible for more than 10% of the Group’s trade receivables
and advances to customers in margin financing.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W DT

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed a total of approximately
621 (2021: approximately 692) staff. The total staff cost for the Year
was approximately HK$163,606,000 (Previous Year: approximately
HK$165,864,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had pledged marketable
securities at a value of approximately HK$2,395,699,000 (2021:
approximately HK$3,421,731,000) pledged to the Group by margin
clients, and certificates of deposit of approximately HK$46,770,000
(2021: approximately HK$49,953,000) to secure certain banking
facilities provided to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisition nor disposal conducted by the
Group during the Year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risk and uncertainty facing the Group is the market
economy of China, Hong Kong and the surrounding regions as
significant changes in their economic conditions will have
significant impact on China and Hong Kong’s stock market, as well
as Macau’s tourism.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since the early of
2020, countries across the globe are taking unprecedented
measures to combat the spread of the virus. Restriction on non-
essential travel, transportation, traveler quarantine measures and
even “lock down” policies impacted the global economy badly.
Investment sentiment in the capital has been dampened. Visitation
to Macau and its gross gaming revenue recorded very substantial
decrease when compared to the Previous Year. This has and will
continue to impact the Group’s contribution from its business in
Macau.

Other risks include credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks and
interest rate risks. The Group has been adopting prudent risk
management policy to mitigate exposure to various risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERETHRAN

RISK MANAGEMENT

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to have an adverse effect
on the group’s operating results from business in Macau and it is
uncertain when this will end. However, the Group will continue to
observe the current market situation and make corresponding
measures to sustain our business.

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.

Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’'s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.
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Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position on
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.

Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.

INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURES OF
MARGIN FINANCING BUSINESS

The Group has implemented the following internal control
measures in carrying out the margin financing business:

Credit risk assessment of customers

When granting new credit facilities or reviewing existing credit
facilities, the Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department (“CRC
Department”) has put in place the credit assessment policy and
procedures which mainly cover the review of the securities market
situations, the quality of collaterals, the creditworthiness of the
clients, the clients’ past repayment history, the clients’ stock
portfolios and the risk diversification of the entire clients.

Mechanism in determining loan terms and the
approval process for granting loans

Interest rate and the loan amount offered to individual customer
are approved by at least two persons who are Responsible
Officers (“RO”) or senior management of the Group by considering
the securities market situations, the quality of collaterals, the
creditworthiness of the clients, the clients’ past repayment history,
the clients’ stock portfolios and the risk diversification of the entire
clients to ensure they are fair and reasonable and at normal
commercial terms.
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The credit facilities is approved by at least two persons who are
RO and the senior management of the Group.

Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

Ongoing monitoring of loan recoverability and loan collection is
performed by the Group’s CRC Department in accordance with the
policies and procedures as set out by RO and the senior
management, including checking the past repayment record of the
clients to determine the repayment date of the margin loan and
monitoring the status of loan repayment.

Taking actions on delinquent loans

If there is no response or no action taken by the client after the
margin call, a demand letter will be issued to the client notifying
the client that the Company will take steps necessary to recover
the outstanding amount, including the liquidation of the pledged
securities and the commencement of legal action against the
client. The liquidation of the pledged securities is prepared by
CRC Department and approved by at least two persons who are
RO and senior management of the Group. Legal actions will be
considered by RO and senior management of the Group if there is
still outstanding loan balance after the liquidation of the pledged
securities.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial services businesses and gaming revenue
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the Board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the Board may
authorize, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in the review of the
Company interim and annual reports. The Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no purchases,
sales or redemption of the Company'’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with all code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the
Company, all directors of the Company have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2022.

By order of the Board

Chu Yuet Wah
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two
levels of corporate governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions. It also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder”).

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of the
director(s) of the Company (the “Director(s)”) and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each of the Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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The Board comprises the Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)*
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho*

Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

* Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui.

# Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho is the son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui

and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

EERANATESEX

BTES:

KRR (E/E)
FAEZL (TTRABE) "
REETRE?
AERELE

BUFHITESE:
BxEhE(FEZEEE
IBEZEEKE)
it
(FNZEESLTREHFEEZZAER
KE)
HERLE(EEZESE
FNZEEKE)

IEFRFNZE R &R

A

I
Y

il

fEEZ

=3
=1

A

EREGZREER

h

%%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%k)ﬁm$ﬁﬂﬁ%tﬁﬁ%
TRELZABABBATHKE -

BE_Z__F=-A=1+—BLFE EFRH—
BENAELETRABAZESRLD =RBUIFNTE
EARLD—REUANTETAABEEERE
RS AEBENBEERERMB AT - B
HRTEZZABNRIEESRREAB =S
Z—

ARRBEWRBZBILIFATEFRIE EMARANR

E?jﬁﬁﬁi%% %émZﬁrﬁEqu ZKQTWZJ\Z%
BIE ETARBFAEHBE Y H RS - 288V IEH

TEFHRBUAL -

* FHERLBRARELEZEE -
# REEFLERRKKBFELERFAELLZREF -

SHESMEBBRAR
—EC-CFEER

25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_LLL/\—/\—\

1FE 3= /D#&m

Mr. Lau Man Tak is a Non-executive Director, Chairman and
substantial shareholder of REF Holdings Limited (“REF”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The
Group entered into certain connected transactions (“Connected
Transactions”) with REF and its subsidiary during the year under
review. Details are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. Mr. Lau does not have any management role in the
Company and its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has
expressed his willingness clearly to exercise independent
judgement and has been giving objective views to the Company.
There is no evidence that the Connected Transactions, given its
immateriality, has an unfavourable influence on his independence,
the Board is satisfied that, as proven by the valuable independent
judgement and advice given by Mr. Lau over the years, Mr. Lau
has the required character, integrity, independence and
experience to perform the role of an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Board is not aware of any circumstances that might
influence Mr. Lau in exercising his independent judgement and
therefore believes he is still independent.

Mr. Lau Man Tak has served the Board for more than ten years.
Mr. Lau does not have any management role in the Company and
its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has expressed his
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and has
been giving objective views to the Company. There is no evidence
that length of tenure has an unfavourable influence on the
independence of long-serving Non-executive Directors. The Board
is satisfied that, as proven by the valuable independent judgement
and advice given by Mr. Lau over the years, Mr. Lau has the
required character, integrity, independence and experience to
perform the role of an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board is not aware of any circumstances that might influence Mr.
Lau, in exercising his independent judgement and therefore
believes he is still independent.

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah, Mr. Ho Chi Ho and Mr. Lau Man Tak shall retire from office at
the 2022 AGM and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

All Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year which commenced on 1
April 2022, and subject to compliance with relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any of the Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.
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At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

In January 2019, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, the Board has approved and adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in light of the
amendments of the CG Code, and the same are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board also
approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy in August
2013. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Training for the Directors

In case there is any newly appointed of the Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

All of the Directors have provided records of the training they
received to the Company. The trainings included attending experts
briefings, seminars, and conferences, reading materials relevant to
the business, corporate governance and directors’ duties.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to the Directors whenever
necessary. In March 2022, the Company has organised a training
session to all of the Directors conducted by qualified professionals
on topics of “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)”. All of the Directors attended that session.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 8 full Board meetings and 1
general meetings were held. The individual attendance record of
each of the Director at the Board meeting and general meeting
during the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Name of the Directors

EEHA

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui KARBIE
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho REWETAE
Mr. Ho Chi Ho fAEREE
Mr. Lau Man Tak R EE A
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EWIE LT
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny TEERE A

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance. Notices of
regular Board meetings are served to all of the Directors at least
14 days before the meetings.
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For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all of the Directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each of the Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

All of the Directors have been provided with monthly updates by
the Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their
duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or the Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such the Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.
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The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing auditing firm.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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Due to the amendments to the CG Code, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee has been amended in March 2016 and
January 2019.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any)
applicable to the Directors and employees; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022. During the year under review, work performed by the
Audit Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results
and the unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the
compliance and internal audit reports on adequacy and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems,
and the compliance and corporate governance issues of the
Group; and (iii) discussing with external auditor the audit planning
work (including the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations) in respect of the audit of the annual results of the
Group.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.

The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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The individual attendance record of each of the Director at the
Audit Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2022 is
set out below:

Name of Audit Committee Members

EREEERERR

Mr. Lau Man Tak R EEAE
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EWE T
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny HHERE LA

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that none of the
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration
Committee has assessed the performance of Executive Directors
and reviewed the terms of service contract of the Directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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During the year under review, work performed by the
Remuneration Committee included (i) assessing performance of
Executive Director and senior management and, where applicable,
approving their terms of services including the Directors’ fees and
the emoluments of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and
determining on policy and structure of the remuneration package
of the Directors and senior management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
March 2022 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2022 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee Members

FHEESRERSE

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty B lEi =+
Mr. Lau Man Tak B ks
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny TSR E
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The remuneration of the members of senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out as below:

BE-_ZT-_—_F=ZA=+—HBI-EE  RZFWE
BlEDz B REREK B EHMEIIT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) person
48 5l (B T)
2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,001 £ 3,000,000 2
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,001 £ 4,000,000 1
Nomination Committee REZEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating nomination
policy for the consideration of the Board and to implement the
Board’s approved nomination policy. During the nomination process,
the nomination committee will consider the competency,
independency (in case of Independent Non-executive Director),
conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of a
candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a director
and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of the Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.
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The Nomination Committee shall have the following responsibilities:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

30

to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships.
In identifying suitable individuals, the Committee shall
consider individuals on merit and against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board;

to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of a summary
of the Board Diversity Policy and its review results in the
Corporate Governance Report annually;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive, taking into account the Company’s corporate
strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity needed in the future; and

to determine and disclose the policy for nomination of the
Directors, as appropriate. This includes the nomination
procedures and process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship set out in the
nomination policy.
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Summary of procedures and process for nomination of the
Directors:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

When there is a vacancy, the Board will evaluate the
structure, size and diversity, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skill and knowledge, and length of service of the
Board, and identifies special requirements, if any, for the
vacancy (e.g. independence status in the case of an
Independent Non-executive Director).

Prepare job descriptions for the particular vacancy.

Identify eligible candidates through internal resources,
recommendations by other Board members, senior
management and business partners, and external
recruitment agency.

Arrange interview(s) and testing, if necessary, with each
candidate to evaluate whether he/she fulfills the required
criteria.

Conduct background check on information provided by the
candidate.

Convene meeting with Board members and other
professionals of the Group, if necessary, to discuss and
assess the suitability of the candidate and where appropriate,
make recommendations to the Board.

Convene a Board meeting to discuss and elect for nomination
or appointment.

REEEZIEFRBIEHE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)
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Summary of criteria for nomination of the Directors:

(i)

(iii)
(iv)
v)
(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

38

age, skills, knowledge, experience, professional and
educational qualifications, background and other personal
integrity of the candidate;

the Company’s need;

effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

time commitment of the candidate to carry out his/her duties.
For example, to consider the number and nature of offices
held by the candidate in public companies or organizations;
conflicts of interest, if any;

independence of the candidate;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the length of service with the

Company; and

other relevant factors.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination of
the Directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and (iii) reviewing policy concerning diversity of
board members. Nomination procedures and the process and
criteria will be determined by the Nomination Committee should
there be the need to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

Details of the duties and powers of the Nomination Committee are
set out in its written terms of reference which has been revised
during the year under review in line with the amendment of the CG
Code on board diversity and are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2022. The attendance record is as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee Members

REZESRERR

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EW LT
Mr. Lau Man Tak B rEk A
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny SR A

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.
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The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2022.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 119 to 127.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to HK$2,540,000 and
HK$319,200 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

Types of Services
PR 7% 38 5Bl
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Amount of
Fees Payable/Paid
B ERERESE

(GIRE)
(B7T)

Audit Services EZA% R 2,540,000

Non-audit Services IEEAZ IR

1. Tax services 1. BIAR 99,200

2. Others 2. Hi 220,000
319,200

Total A&t 2,859,200
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholder’s investments and Company assets, and reviewing
the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through the Audit
Committee. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, which covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with a
view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. The
board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems within the Group are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is currently Mr. Lui Chun
Pong. Up to the date of this report, Mr. Lui Chun Pong has
undertaken sufficient hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS

Procedures by which the Shareholders may convene
a special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any of the Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act.

Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of the Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at the Shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the
poll procedures are included in all circulars to the Shareholders and
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.

42

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

B SRR
BRRABHARREBIAEZREF

EERATNAREERRERARABRRFIAE -
EARNRIERERFERTERARBRRA

GRREMNZARREHBAN PR +D— 2]
R REMBEREDBEN BRAEFE/HIAR
AlZARMEBHRHERZ R BREEZRAFK
RENAXEUNEEERTEAZERNEY - AH
REANRERXRERIEMEARNET - WRERE
KEAANEERAEETARAG  BIRHE

KZBRARBARERREEBGEXEITARN
EEKRg -

BRERXEZRE

RERAE EBRBRBRRETERBERERR
ZIRREMEER  HERARB 2 REME B
B2 ETIRIRBIREROR 2N R RORE P+
HRABERE TR ZBEHA - TRRERRAE
LR -

ARRAZBRAGREBREEE R ZHNEE
BR-BERIFUEERZES FHZEEL
REZBEIRI(MEERE)SZEE M (WE
R)BYEELZEG2HMKE  HENEERAE
ERRERER o

ARFGRBRERARERETI2EE (BHRER
BER)IREBIRER -

{1

REEBE
ADFRENREREE 2 BBRMER - HES
MERABEBIBIRAE RO B EIHE - U
ERSEUAATZEE -

ARRBFEREREEREE 2GR B
BEMER ARANMKRERBL(HEL A
http://www. kingston com.hk) » EREFHHREAAA
RAEBERNMEECFHFBRENER - BBER
NEMER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - g REARWRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Kingston Financial Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is pleased
to present its annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report (the “Report”). The Report details the Group’s
approach to sustainable governance and our most material
environmental and social topics. In doing so, we aim to disclose
our sustainability performance in the most transparent,
accountable and clear manner.

Reporting Scope and Period

The scope of the Report covers the Group’s operations and
management business at the headquarter office in Hong Kong, as
well as two hotels in Macau, namely Casa Real Hotel Macau
(“Casa Real”) and Grandview Hotel Macau (“Grandview”). The
scope was determined based on the materiality of the financial
contribution and operations towards the Group and was confirmed
by management. With consideration to the significance and
materiality of the facilities, the casinos in the hotels are excluded
from the reporting scope. Unless otherwise specified, the Report
covers our financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”).

Reporting Framework and Standards

In late 2019, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) issued amendments to the ESG Reporting Guide (the
“Reporting Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 of the Main Board
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities. To fully comply with the
latest Reporting Guide, a thorough gap analysis was conducted
with an independent sustainability consultancy company. The
Report is prepared in accordance with the Mandatory Disclosures
Requirements and the “comply or explain” provisions of the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The
preparation of the Report strictly adheres to the following reporting
principles.
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Materiality During the Reporting Period, a comprehensive stakeholder engagement process and

BEEM materiality assessment were conducted to identify and assess material ESG issues, and to
determine the coverage and structure of the Report. The material ESG issues and the
coverage and structure of the Report were reviewed and confirmed by the board of
directors (the “Board”) and management. The Report is structured using the following
sections: “Our Operations”, “Our People and Community”, and finally, “Our Environment” .
For more information, please refer to subsections “Stakeholder Engagement” and
“Materiality Assessment” under section “Our Approach to Sustainability” .
EREHAN - RFETTESOEZE2ENFENEZ TG - UBBIMTEEXRESGE
H WHEREADTLEHE BEAESGEENRENAREBCEHEZS((EFgHNER
BEESMER - NBEBFEUATHY  [HMNES]  [BHMANEIMEE] - AR THMAD
RIE| - MFRZEM  F2E [RMNARBERRA] 60 [HHEN2E]| M [E21E

ERGER
Quantitative The Report provides relevant quantitative information in order to measure the effectiveness
21k of ESG policies and management systems. The Report discloses relevant key performance

indicators (“KPI”) and quantitative information from the headquarter office in Hong Kong, as
well as from the hotel operations, Casa Real and Grandview. Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions, and calculations tools used are further disclosed in the
discussion of various ESG issues where applicable. For further details of the quantification
methodology, please see the “Our Environment” section.

HRERMEENELCEN  UWESESGHRMEBRZRNARE - RERBEBADHL
ZEUARBEEERY - BREERRBEMEREENERBERERUER ((HEREZERDNE
LB - BRAMERNIRE 7% BRNAETLENEASESBESGEEN N RPE—
HHRE (WER) - BAELTHENAL - F2 R T RANRER] B -

Balance The Report provides an unbiased overview of the Group’s ESG performance and areas of
T improvement. All information has been prepared and published based on existing policies,

practices, or official documents in an accurate, genuine, and transparent manner.
RBEQNEMAMAREENESGRIRUARFESEMNM T - FIEEMBRBEERRENECR - 18
BlskE 77 XX - LAYERE - BB AFERREY 7 N EBFI M o

Consistency The Report adopts methodologies that are consistent with previous years to allow for
— 3 meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time. Any change to the calculation frameworks,
methods, KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison in the
Report shall be fully disclosed.
RIBERATHEF-BHNE - AEHESGERETAAILL MR RILLE - ARESTH
WEHFEER 7% MEANBREMEENENE L  AEMEOFERETAEESE
LB EE X -
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Opinion and Feedback

The Group constantly strives to refine its sustainability practices,
performances, and disclosure. Your feedback on this Report and
our approach to sustainability is highly valued and welcomed.
Please send us your comments through the following channels:

By Email: kg@kingston.com.hk

By Phone: 2298 6200

By Post: 72/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong

For further information regarding our corporate governance and
financial performance, please refer to our Annual Report 2022.
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ABOUT THE GROUP BEREE
The Group is a leading financial institution in Hong Kong providing ZA&EBEEFBELNEREE  BHE2HFUNE
a full range of financial services, including securities brokerage, giiR#S @ BEFHFLL ~ AEMEE - REBESM

underwriting and placements, margin and initial public offering B XABER(IPO)) #E « ¥ M EBBIRG
(“IPO”) financing, corporate finance advisory services and futures FEIERLIRTE - B T —FIERERAS @ &
brokerage services. To further diversify its business portfolio, the — EJR7ERPIZRBEFMET 27K o RPJLA[EZE] -
Group is also engaged in the hotel and gaming businesses in  [2E | FM [ ] 1EAZLRE] - B EL+Frh
Macau. With “professionalism”, “engagement”, and “integrity” as ~ TEZE @ WHEREMAERHEVERBRZ -
our core guiding principles, we have experienced significant

growth in the past few decades and have established robust

relationships with our client base, guests and partners.

The Group is broadly classified into three operating segments, AEBAB D AE=EZEI ) 21 : ()2 kR
namely: (i) financial services segments; (ii) hotel and gaming 7 : (ii)/B/EFMER : AR (i) BEHIKE -
segments; and (iii) securities investment segment.

Financial Services Segment

= BARES

1.  Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and Placements
RHEL  AENERE

Securities brokerage, underwriting and placement services is one of the main sources of income for the Group.
The Group undertakes the origination, structuring and marketing of placements of equity and equity-related
securities, and provides total solutions to clients’ financing needs. The Group plays significant roles as placing
agents and underwriters for listed companies across different sectors.

BHLLEE AN ERBFEREENFERARIRZ — « REBREREMBRERBI FEESNEL - FiEt
MAHBLETIE WREFPHMEBTRERTEMASTR - AEEETRTEN LT ARPHEESEZNEENR
BANAHEEBNAS -

2. Margin and IPO Financing
REESHIPORE

To complement the Group’s securities brokerage services, the Group also provides margin and IPO financing
services. Margin financing is made available to clients who have opened margin accounts with the Group to
purchase securities with funds borrowed from it to leverage their investments. IPO financing is the grant of loans
to clients for subscriptions of shares relating to IPOs.

RTEARGSENEFSFCLRY  AEEREHRZISMIPORERY - RESHESMNEASRER U RERIK
FHEFHRH WFEJTLAEMEK%IFXE’J;EE\H%E 8% WEEBEHRENERER - IPORERATPIEHE
o ARREEIPOFENKE
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Financial Services Segment
SRR

3. Other Financial Services

H fth < B AR 7%

Other financial services mainly include the provision of corporate finance advisory services and future brokerage
services in recognised stock exchanges. Within the corporate finance advisory services, the Group engages in
advising on corporate finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on deal structure and financing
strategies in the context of mergers and acquisitions, equity fund raising exercises and takeovers, among others.
As for the futures brokerage services, we provide index futures trading on the Future Exchange, including After
Hours Futures Trading, which allows customers to place orders online and through telephone.

H e mMREEIEERHEEVMBEARBIERUTNBLF X AREPER LR - ECEHMBHARSE S
H AEERECEREISHNZEALIE  BBIPO - WO REEEFDMBIESZHEONRZ SR E K
b ERHAARSE - EXRMELLRT  RAEHERXSIAREREHERS  BRERTRRS  BFFEH
FHRAERETRS -

Hotel and Gaming Segment

B JE RS R

The Group owns and operates two four-star casino hotels in Macau, namely Casa Real and Grandview. Consisting of
810 guest rooms in total, with a combined floor area of 743,000 square feet, the hotels operate with an ambition to
provide local and international guests with attentive services, exquisite and comfortable accommodation, high quality
food and beverages and exceptional facilities. With offerings tailored to suit both leisure and business travelers alike,
hotel facilities include swimming pools, fitness centers, restaurants and casinos. Controlled by the license holder
Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., the Group also provides gaming services within the hotels, including tables in
mass market halls, slot machines in electronic gaming halls, as well as exclusive VIP rooms.
AEEERPFBEAETVAEMRENERESEE  MERRBENBIREE - EMFBERXBESI0EER - HEEEE
RTAIEBT AR  KERERR/TMMBIRE ARMAORY  BEFENEE s KkTHRRER  ULHEEH
BVERHE o B SR RIEIACE « BE 0 BEMNES - URRABNEKIKENTE - A &HFE NRMEXER
RAMERT - AEBEEENRBIEVRE - 0FEF5HEE  EFEXRBENATFEER  ARMAEEE -

Securities Investment Segment

Leveraging our expertise in the financial services industry, the Group provides trading of listed securities through
recognised stock exchanges.
ERBRMESRBRBTENERNE  AEBBRBRUNBLFXHMEHR LETEFNRS -
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Our business activities have the potential to generate both positive
and negative impacts throughout our value chain. Through our
sustainability initiatives and commitment to measure and evaluate
our material impacts, we are working to increase our positive
impacts and create a more sustainable future for all. Furthermore,
the Group strives to address global sustainability challenges by
integrating sustainability principles into every aspect of its
business.

ESG Governance

In its capacity as the highest decision-making body, the Board
acknowledges that it has the responsibility for overseeing ESG
performance, sustainability policies, and strategies for the Group.
In addition to our commitment to managing sustainability risk
through internal control, the Board strives to identify opportunities
by closely monitoring laws and regulations, relevant updates and
industry practices. The Board and management strongly
emphasize regular and effective communications with the Group’s
stakeholders to ensure we hone in on the key impacts of our
business and what matters most to our stakeholders. Through
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment process, the
Board takes into consideration the material ESG-related issues
including all relevant risks, when devising and executing ESG
management and strategy.

In addition, the Board also acknowledges its responsibility to
review progress made against ESG-related goals and targets. This
year, we have developed our first ESG targets in the environmental
aspects. For more information, please refer to the “Our
Environment” section.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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Risk and Opportunities

Sound risk management procedures that embrace certain
elements of risk can not only transform challenges and crises into
opportunities, but can also be rudimentary to the longevity and
prosperity of a company. ldentifying and responding to risks and
opportunities that could impact our business is a key focus of the
Board. From financial risks to broader ESG risks, we have in place
a robust governance structure and set of processes that empower
us to progress with informed confidence in the direction of a more
sustainable future.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s Audit Committee and
senior management have closely monitored and determined the
nature of material risks and reviewed internal control activities. As
we seek to create value for our business and stakeholders over the
long term, we are committed to reducing risks through various
mitigation measures.

[ B B A3
fRerEREE TER AR B Mg E S
B HRARNEMMNEREROTOEE - 35|
MEHAREZERMEENRRNEETEES
MEBTHEZ— BABEBRERNE AEBIE
Fro TwmefBEREREEZNESGER - &
PIERABE N B D AIZ AT HRAARK -

EREHRRN  AEBENBEZZEeNSREEE
EYERANEEEAARNEE  UES QIR
HEE c ERMSRAEHMFNEERERE
BERBIET - RO RIB & TE & AR
KR -

Identified Risks and Opportunities

Frrsdi Bl 9 B e 3

Climate Change
RIREE

For the hospitality industry, shifting climate patterns and increased severity of extreme weather events, such as
typhoons, disrupt operations and supply chains, halt tourists from reaching their destinations, and put certain workers
and staff at risk of injury. To mitigate these risks, the Group has made great efforts in reducing its carbon footprint and
building operational resilience. For more information, please refer to the “Our Environment” section.

HHEEMS - REZNBRRREFERRE  rhRSBELEENMHER CETREIEZEANM - WFEXLT
ANMBTHEHBRRENER - BT REELEAR AEEERDRETMELELEERNTENES ) - MFELZEHM
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Identified Risks and Opportunities

Fir 8% B 69 . B % 4638

COVID-19 Pandemic
COVID-19 & 18

The impact of COVID-19 on our business has been significant. Investors have become more cautious after COVID-19,
resulting in a decline in applications and approvals for new listings on the Stock Exchange. In addition, our hotel
operations in Macau experienced a tremendous drop in business as a result of global travel restrictions and health
quarantine arrangements.

COVID- 19K FIMERELETEARE - FRBEEER  REZVGSEMEIE  SHRBNLEEB A LEHOHRF]
A o AN - R B IRIRER SR E AR RMERPIRBEEEB AR TR -

Our financial services have undergone a more prudent adjustment as a result of COVID-19, by reducing our risk
exposure and retaining active involvement in market research. Moreover, by following a comprehensive set of health
and safety measures aligned to global and regional authority recommendations, we diligently managed the health and
safety risks of all employees. For more information on our health and safety procedures at our hotels, please refer to
the “Occupational Health and Safety” section.

HAREENEER - RN BREET T EE2ENHAE - RIAERRFENRFERSETISHIE o N - BBER
—EXFNREEREZNEHRENLR2ER KM HEEMAEINREMNL2ER - @RERMEBE 8 TEEM
ZENEZEM  F2E[RERENL R | 56 -

Credit Risk
1= AR

Credit management policies and procedures have been established by the Group’s Risk Management Committee.
These cover the examination of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and review of the margin
lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in
accordance with the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management Committee.
FEENEAREREZESSEHTEETRBRNMET - BEBRNEFRESEATFESEZRX5 REEREE - #hE Mg
AERIR D 2 REBESEELEX - BREERRKREROHERER EERR - AREZEEREAREEBPISER
RARERZESI AL BREMEFRTAEEESE
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Identified Risks and Opportunities

P s Bl 69 B B % 4 3B
Market Risk
5 EL

Market conditions are closely monitored by the management of the Group in order to take immediate precautionary
measures to reduce market risks. If necessary, follow-up actions will be taken, such as reducing the margin ratio for
the pledged securities and requiring clients to top up their positions, if considered appropriate.
AEBEEERYERTHERN - LMEABRRIENEE - UREmSERRE - BLE - RRREBERBENEZE
BTE MEREEERBFZRESUERBZREFMHA

Liquidity Risk
REBEERERE

On a daily basis, the Group’s Accounts Department and senior management will review and monitor the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure sufficient liquidity. The Group has also prepared standby banking and other facilities to
meet any operational contingencies.
AEENEARFIARSREREERAGESNEAREENRBESRN - UBREERANRDES - AEEE
EHEERNRITMEMEE  WBEEEB IR ZF -

Interest Rate Risk
F = = B

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally based on floating rates since we charge interest to our margin
clients. As a result, interest rate risks do not significantly affect our income and operating cash flows.
HREMARZBSESRBAE - AACREENSRMEE—RIAZBNELER - Eitt - FXRERTSEHRMANKRA
MEEHEREBENEATE -
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Stakeholders Engagement

We value honest, open and regular dialogue with our valued
stakeholders. Ongoing and consistent stakeholders engagement
enables us to translate stakeholders needs into organisational
goals, which in turn, creates the basis of effective sustainability
strategy development and performance. We have established a
broad range of communication channels with our valued
stakeholders during the Reporting Period.

Stakeholder Group Engagement Channels

&R

BAMER RO EETHE - ARMEHNEE -
FER-BORNESRERMENSFNED
FRENRABE R UFIEBRNAHEER
REEMBEMEERRE - EREHRN - RAIDEE
FOERITRNBERRE -

FOERE SRRE

Shareholders and Investors ° Annual general meetings
° Annual and interim reports

° Corporate website

o Correspondences
RERMIREH e KRRAFKE

o FHRFPEHSE

o AT

o @A

Clients and Guests ° Customer satisfaction survey
° On-site customer services
o Social media platforms

EEAEA . EPREESHE
. BBEPEH
. HRERFA

Staff ° Departmental meetings

° Internal emails
° Notice boards

° Performance appraisals

° Trainings

BT o HFIEE
o A B B 1
o BAIN
o EMGH
. =il
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Stakeholder Group Engagement Channels
FhERE SHRE
Suppliers o Correspondences

° Inspections and feedback

° Meetings
° Tender notices

e o EH
o WEMNER
. w#
o BERE
Media ° Interviews

° Press conferences

o Social media platforms
e o ik

s  HEETME

o HXEEFE

Regulatory Bodies o Compliance reports
o Correspondences
EEME e  ARWE
T

eNEemEBRERAR
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Materiality Assessment BEEMTME

In preparing this Report, the Group engaged an independent A{RBARE  KNEBEFZT BN AEFHE
sustainability consultancy company to conduct a comprehensive #REH AT AMNEBTHTE BPREK
materiality assessment. The exercise helped to understand our {7 M EUAREB A HEER FHBOEE
stakeholders’ perceptions of the progress of our sustainability ¥ RFWEAEMELRSE  URTARSHREDN
approach, their evolving expectations and priorities for the future, AAMER - RAEA T EMNEEREEN T
and determined the coverage and structure of the Report. We — SEREHEEAMEIE - AEABHT o

adopted a combined qualitative and quantitative approach to

assess materiality, which is outlined below.

Step 1: Identification

F£15 : BH

A list of potential material issues were identified with reference to the following sources:
° The Global Reporting Initiatives Standards

° The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals

° Previous ESG reports from the Group

o Industry benchmarking

2RUATER  BRARET —HEENEAMESE

o  FHWBHEHEZRAEBIRE

o e EAIFERRAR

e  AKREBEAERESGHE

o  1IEIRE

The criteria for the selection of material ESG issues include whether the issue has substantial influence on the
assessments and decisions of stakeholders, and whether the issue reflects the Group’s significant environmental and
social impacts. Through this criteria, 15 ESG issues were identified and defined.
BESAESCEENFEACEXMERTHBOHENTHIRREEELENLE  UREZHERERMAEETL RN E
RRBMHETE - RIAEBELRE  BE T 15HESGEE -
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Step 2: Prioritization

F25  MEBRRF

Different stakeholder groups were selected and engaged based on their influence on the Group. The identified
stakeholder groups were the Board, management and employees. To ensure consistent and systematic evaluation of
material issues, these stakeholders ranked the sustainability issues according to their perceived importance through a
standardized online and physical survey. In total, the Group received 195 responses.
HPEREIRANRNEFBEAEENTERENERE  WEMM2EED - IETHRNERBRESTS  BIEE
METL - RTHREREBAFEET BNARSNTE  ELFHESREFELCHRLINERAS  ASLNEENR
PSR ER REE - AEEEHWE T 1955 EE -

Step 3: Validation and Review
E3F  REREE

The Group’s management confirmed and validated the list of material topics for disclosure in this Report. The results
are shown in the materiality matrix, which illustrates the relative importance of each issue towards the sustainable
development of the Group against different stakeholder views. The Board reviewed the identified material issues and
results to ensure appropriate relevance and materiality to the Group.
AEEERERAVBRILNRETRENERETHESE - FRENCEEUNGEREY  ERFATEESEHAEE
AFEERNEEN  URTRAFHENERS -EZ2FSCRTENERFTENER - UBRZEFEERNEENERE
MBEBEM -
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Our Operations 1. Ethical Business Conduct
EA(Bl:VE S BEEBXTA
2. Compliance, Internal Control and Risk Management
a8 ARESNEREE
3. Information Security and Privacy
ERZz=MALR
4, Supplier Management
HrEmeEsE
5. Customer Engagement and Satisfaction
EF2HEMREE
6. Service Quality
R%EmE
Our People and Community 7. Employment and Labor Practices
RFNEINHLE MENEBEE
8. Training and Development
EHIEEE
9. Employee Health and Safety
EBERENZZ
10. Customer/Guest Wellbeing
BF /B AHER
11. Community Investment and Engagement
HERIREMSH
Our Environment 12. Air Emission Control
BEMOERER Z= SR BE I
13. Use of Resources
BIRAVER
14.  Waste Management and Reduction
Y& IR R A
15. Climate Change
RIRB(L

The matrix and table! present the results of the materiality ZEEWFT{EE BRI EENUTENER  RET
assessment. The matrix reflects the prioritisation of material HERUEAREFASEEXENETEE (LESSNE
aspects based on their importance to the sustainable development BEAREK) MHNENIPHE(ULEIARER)NE
of the Group (represented by the Board and management) and AZHEMELIERF - EARER - KEBBEEY
stakeholders’ expectations (represented by employees). THAEEASERRERESNEHLRIEED
Throughout this Report, the Group shall focus on the key ESG  ESG=E °

issues that are important to both the sustainable development of

the Group and to its stakeholders.

1 The top 10 material issues in the materiality matrix are displayed in ' EEYF AR A B 10IHE X EE A MRS -
bold.
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OUR OPERATIONS

Transparent and responsible operations pave the way for the
Group’s continuous prosperity and are achieved through our multi-
pronged approaches. Deep diving in the financial services
industry, we acknowledge the importance and necessity of
upholding ethical business conduct, which enables us to position
ourselves in the vanguard of financial and commercial markets.
Meanwhile, we endeavor to proactively manage the engagement
with our external stakeholders, including customers, guests, as
well as business partners from the supply chain, as we believe that
trustworthy relationships are the catalyst to perfect our operations.

Business Conduct

The Group champions business legality, integrity and
accountability during its operations. Upholding the highest level of
corporate ethics, we spare no effort to prevent financial crimes,
safeguard personal data and protect intellectual property rights.

Preventing Financial Crime

The financial system is used by criminals for some of today’s most
damaging crimes. As a leading financial institution in Hong Kong
providing a full range of financial services, we have a pivotal role
to tackle financial crimes.

Our employee handbook outlines the responsibilities and
obligations of professional work conduct. It strictly prohibits all
forms of bribery, corruption and extortion. Employees are also
forbidden to refrain from soliciting, accepting or offering any
benefits from our customers, suppliers and those with whom the
Group has a business relationship. Prior to the commencement of
their work, employees are required to disclose potential conflicts of
interest to the Group.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

58

BMWER

BBETREOER RMAEEERANEEETNERE
BEX  GHEAKEFEZRNEL - HARA
TRBRBITE  ARERARERTANERZ N
MBEE  FRMASAESBMEETISFEL
R ZMESEREINSFNENEZSE B
BEP BANURKEHERENEERH AR
FMHEEESERNBRETERMAEB AT RD
MR -

BEITH
AEBEEZERETRABENAENE  TBM
MEES - RABHFHESKFHEEEE  TE
ERIORT LS BILTE - (RAE(EA BRI R E R
EHE -

BFEERMICE

LRI FHEEBMELLTESZEBEENL
RITR-ERBBATNTRME  RMARERS
TUMTRRY  TEERYSRILE T mAZESR
REEMER -

BAECE TF MR 7 EXTHETROEEMN
B BREL—IEANEE  B5MEGE
FIEBTAEF - fEBMERAEERXHERER
WARE - BEXSIRBEEANE - BB ITEZ
Al B THBRAKERBEELNHNEEHR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - g MERWE

Our emphasis on legality, integrity and accountability facilitates the
formulation of the Group’s whistleblowing policy. We encourage
our employees to report any suspected misconduct or delinquency
through the appropriate reporting channels. According to the
whistleblowing policy, all disclosures shall be sent directly to the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company by mail to the
head office. In the unlikely event where such cases occur, the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company would take
appropriate measures to investigate them in a timely manner. The
Group reassures that the personal information of the whistleblower
will be kept confidential. Any cases found to be non-compliant will
be subject to disciplinary actions, which may include termination of
employment or reporting to relevant regulatory authorities based
on the severity of the breach. In order to keep abreast with the
latest laws and regulations, and reference the leading practices in
the financial markets, key representative personnel from the
Compliance Department will conduct internal reviews against the
Group’s anti-corruption and whistleblowing policies on a regular
basis.

Apart from our stringent commitment to anti-corruption, we
enhance the prevention of financial crimes by introducing a
dedicated Internal Guidance Note on Anti-Money Laundering.
Formulated and published by the Compliance Department, this
guidance overarches our financial services practices and
showcases our stance on preventing the use of financial services
for misconduct and terrorist financing purposes.

This guidance articulates the policies and procedures to detect
suspicious criminal acts and the types and nature of activities to
observe. Our procedures are backbonded by sound mechanisms
to carry out comprehensive due diligence, ongoing monitoring,
and verification of transactions. In the unlikely event where
suspicious criminal acts occur, including suspected terrorist
financing, money laundering activities, drug trafficking, or
organized and serious crimes, follow-up actions would be
subsequently carried out. After reporting to the Head of
Compliance, an authorised officer will be designated and tasked to
review the transaction and report the case to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong Government.
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Alongside the ever-evolving financial markets, the Group strives to
improve its overall competency towards financial services to
prevent emerging financial crimes from happening. To better
embed anti-corruption into our daily operations, we introduced
training on anti-money laundering during orientation training, and it
is mandatory for all new recruits. Furthermore, we enhance anti-
corruption awareness at our financial services through discussion
of internal updates and relevant news in our monthly staff and
account executive meetings. From a corporate governance
perspective, we regularly circulate important updates of the Main
Board Listing Rules to management and Board members. In
addition to holding regular training throughout the Reporting
Period, we expect our staff to visit the Securities and Future
Commission website regularly to keep abreast of the latest anti-
money laundering regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we provided a 1-hour training session
to our Board, management and general staff, topics of which
included a comprehensive explanation on the main clauses of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), common examples of financial crimes and corresponding
mitigation measures. The Group was not aware of any material
complaints, cases, or non-compliance with any laws and
regulations relating to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, or
money laundering.

Safeguarding Personal Data

It is our moral obligation to safeguard all confidential information
shared with us. As communicated in the employment contract,
employees are expected to handle all information with care and in
confidence. The Group prohibits the transfer or disclosure of
personal data to any third party without authorization. The Group
tailors appropriate approaches to ensure data privacy in different
services.

For financial services, we strictly prohibit receiving sensitive price
information to trade related securities. During transactions, the
Client's Agreement form is issued for communicating the purpose
of data collection and the handling of such information. We
continue to employ two-factor authentication procedures to
enhance the security and confidentiality of personal data during
trading.
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For hotel and gaming services, the guests’ information is carefully
inputted into our system by authorised receptionists during check-
in. All receptionists have an obligation to keep personal information
and data confidential. It is strictly forbidden to disclose such
information to any third party, including guests, employees, or
external organisations. When government authorities inquire about
particular guest information, it must be submitted and processed
by the Account Manager. Hard copy documents are shredded and
discarded through appropriate mechanisms and under the
supervision of senior staff when appropriate. Upon guests’ check-
out, all relevant information will be transferred to the Finance
Department alongside the room information with due care.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material complaints, cases, or non-compliance with any laws and
regulations relating to data privacy.

Respecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group’s employee handbook communicates its practices
toward intellectual property rights protection. In general, we pay
great respect to intellectual property rights, including patents,
trademarks, service marks, registered designs, trade and business
names, copyrights, rights in designs and inventions, and other
proprietary rights, whether registered or unregistered. Due to
business nature, our daily operations are inevitably exposed to
various third-party computer software, which may increase the risk
of jeopardizing intellectual property rights. We obtain authorisation
and all necessary licensing agreements in the use of computer
software by licensed third parties and adhere to all applicable
terms of use prior to utilisation of any properties.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material complaints, cases, or non-compliance with any laws and
regulations relating to intellectual property rights.

Customer and Guest Engagement

Customer and guest engagement constitutes a large proportion of
the Group’s operations and requires us to cater to their needs
under different service scenarios. In doing so, we regard service
quality and guest feedback as two complementary factors with
synergistic momentum to uplift the quality of our customer and
guest engagement.
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Improving Service Quality

For financial services, our service philosophy is to provide clients
with exceptional and professional services that can maximize their
investment outcomes and assist them to navigate key financial
decision-making opportunities. As the foundation to responsible
and legitimate services, we adhere to internal policies and
procedures regarding conduct, culture and ethics in the financial
services industry, as well as applicable laws and regulations such
as the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). In addition, we continue to mandate all Account
Executives to follow the Principles of Business Conduct as
developed by the International Organization of Securities
Commission, and ensure our array of financial products are
displayed clearly in an understandable manner. We are also
committed to providing clients with genuine and transparent
information for our investment products and services. A Risk
Disclosure Statement is issued to customers as a precaution to
facilitate the understanding of the associated risks during their
investment process. Throughout marketing activities, we take
effective and efficient measures to eliminate misleading or
deceptive information. For example, advertisements published by
the Group are required to comply with the Hong Kong Securities
Regulatory Commission Code.

For hotel and gaming services, Casa Real and Grandview focus on
improving guests’ living experience and thereby service quality. By
scrutinising our services, the number of major aspects of
improvements has increased to four (2021: three) aspects.
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Aspect
FHE

Food Safety
BmZ2

Facility Safety
Rtz 2

Fire Safety
SH =2

Epidemic
Prevention

BB RATR

Measure of Improvement
HE N

The procurement, storage and further processing of our food and beverages are strictly in line with the
requirements of local and international safety standards. During the procurement, relevant staff will verify
necessary certifications and licenses to ensure food quality. In order to satisfy our diverse guest
demographic, a variety of food types are procured, including but not limited to food with sustainable
ingredients.

BRARMMPBENERE  FENNIHEEBETEINSEMNERLT 2RENENR - EREBET BT
EABSGRELENRBENFAZ  UWERRRDE - RTEAETRANEA  HARETEBREYNRM
BREEBTIERAFERR

The Group periodically maintains hotel facilities and eliminates potential hazards in a timely manner. For
example, designated staff are tasked to check and record the water quality of swimming pools in hotels on
an hourly basis during opening times. As for our external monitoring, monthly visits are also conducted by
relevant government officials, where they will test the level of free residual chlorine, pH value and laboratory
analysis of microbiological and chemical substances.

AEETHEBBERN KB IDEERER - I EENTHEARERERREEAS NEFREMLHE
BEEKBEIKE - BPTERFIMIASER  BALSERBRAE BETRE - MM RBL R (Bt
HHRENZTE  pHENBED R ENENERERS -

Fire safety is of great importance in our hotel operations. To increase the awareness and skills of staff
against fire safety, standard training is provided to all our frontline and security staff. Each staff member is
required to be familiar with the location of fire alarms, fire-fighting equipment, fire escape routes and
emergency response protocols. Across the hotels, we are equipped with 24-hour closed-circuit television,
recording technology, and safety equipment including first-aid boxes. In the unlikely event where a guest
injury occurs, proper medical attention and attentive assistance would be offered. Detailed records of injury
incidents are filed for further handling, record-keeping purposes and review by management.

EPZ2BERMBELETHEEEN R - ARRESEIHEN T 2RI - ZAMAMANARET
MERRZ A BRHUIZENE - RPABRSETEASBAINLEREOME OB RE - ACAERZMN
ESEERF BMEBERET 24/ NERAKER HENL2RE - BEIKE - EIZEAEAXE &
FSREEENBRRENEOHE - XBEFH T FMALE  URE-—FPRE RECENGTERER

go

The Group also pays attention for maintaining hygiene conditions and preventing the potential transmission
of COVID-19 in hotels. We conduct the following measures to ensure that our guests have an epidemic-free
experience.

REBN+DBTEENEESBR - FALECOVID-19TEBEEE - HMHTUTER  BREAUELR
E2ROER -

Perform temperature checks before guests enter hotels

EAEENBENETRERE

Provide hand sanitizers in public areas for guests’ use

ERfEFRMEFRERT ALH

Mask-on notices are placed in public areas and designated staff are tasked to remind unmasked
persons

EAKBENERN  WKET THEASREREOENEA
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Managing Guest Feedback

The Guest feedback is properly recorded and responded as it is
the navigator to improve our service quality. Particularly for our
hotel and gaming services, we adopt a wide array of
communication channels to engage with guests and seek their

feedback in a timely manner.

Guest Comment Card

BERERF

EERFEANZR
EEMRENDETANERBEER

2 = H PR
BEE- tEE@Eﬂﬁ C IR ﬁﬁ%ﬂ?-

ES NGy
b FIRER

REKREZANER  WERRE

Accommodation Inquiry
EEEHA

Guest comment cards are made available in each room,
whilst a QR code linking to a feedback form is displayed
at the front desk of the reception. Our guests can
provide general feedback and evaluate our restaurant
buffets based on criteria such as ambience, quality of
food and staff overall performance among others.
BEFEHBEETRER R RREA & BN —EE4ED
ERENZHEE - BMOBAFIUREH-—BER - ©F
DIRIRIRIZE - RYMENME THERERINESZERTE
B EBEEE

Online Comment Page

LT

During guests’ accommodation, our 24-hour service
hotlines are available to address their needs. We continue
to adhere to the Room Exchange Procedure to facilitate
room exchange under certain circumstances. Upon
check-out, our staff will also actively ask guests about their
accommodation experience to better align our services
with their expectations.
EEANEEHRE - FAFIE 24/ RIGEAR T AR 2 B A
TR RPBETHRERRF - ARLBER MRHEHRE RS -
RER  BMANIEABLSIHAMTANEEE
EHRMOREEMEEEARRE -

Staff Training
8T

An additional channel to ensure that we account for all
our guests’ valuable feedback is our online comment
page. We regularly evaluate review ratings from various
external online travel booking websites such as Booking.
com, TripAdvisor, Trip.com, among others.

BB LTwmTeaRS —EAERMTHREAERER
BVZRIE o FPIE HIRT (A 2R B R AR LIk B TR AT A uh 69 57
sMAEAR » 40 Booking.com ~ TripAdvisor * Trip.com £ ©

According to the comments and information received, as
well as ratings from external online travel booking
websites, our front office regularly tailors training materials
and conducts training for relevant staff to improve their
professional knowledge and service awareness.
BREBERIINERFEN » AREMR FIREFTARTAEERT
o BHATEEHREHBEINME - HHEEIEASETE
Fl - RS MMNEXMBMRBES -

In the unlikely event where we receive guest complaints, corrective
measures would be carried out in a timely manner. Our General
Manager is responsible for designating relevant departments to
further communicate with the guest in a transparent and timely
manner. Guests’ feedback is summarized and further analyzed by
management during monthly departmental meetings, with an aim
to develop training materials for the tailor-made staff training as
mentioned above.

During the Reporting Period, the combined average of the two
hotels overall experience rating was 8.2/10.0. The Group was not
aware of any material complaints during our customer and guest
engagement.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is dedicated to construct a reliable supply chain and
actively manage its suppliers. We rigorously select key suppliers
and give consideration to the environmental and social impacts in
the supply chain.

Assessing Suppliers

In the hotel and gaming services, we identified our tier 1 suppliers,
including material suppliers, hotel suppliers, repair and
maintenance, as well as large-scale infrastructure or renovation
suppliers, and stipulated criteria for further assessment. As the first
line of assessment, our Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)
Manual of Hotel Operation Management Purchasing Department
sets forth the requirements of procurement practices. The manual
stipulates that the Group must obtain three quotes from three
prospective suppliers during procurement and assess the
following criteria:

° Cost effectiveness

° User demands and requirements
° Timeliness and efficiency

° Reputation and experience

Our Purchasing Department also retains a list of approved
suppliers, which is reviewed on an annual basis, to foster reliable
and long-term partnerships.

The second line of assessment consists of three departments,
which simultaneously spearhead business negotiation, decision-
making and quality inspection processes respectively in the
supplier engagement. Such separation of responsibilities is able to
foster cross-functional supervision and gain a more holistic view of
potential risks emerging from the supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged with 32 suppliers
in accordance with the aforementioned assessment approaches.
For more information regarding the number of suppliers by
geographical regions, please refer to the section “Performance
Data Summary”.
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Identifying and Mitigating ESG Risks

Material ESG risks emerging from the supply chain would indirectly
retard the Group to achieve responsible operations, as such risks
might accumulate and transform to negative impact on the Group
in a given timeframe. To prevent ESG risks from happening, the
Group actively focuses on the following ESG factors and
incorporates them into its supply chain risk management.

° Corporate governance and laws compliance
o Code of conduct and business ethics

° Product and service quality

° Environmental impact

To promote environmentally friendly products and services, we
thoroughly examine our existing operations and have started to
choose low-carbon alternatives whenever possible. For example,
we continue to prioritise local suppliers to reduce our scope 3
carbon emissions whilst boosting the local economy. With an aim
to reduce unnecessary energy waste and improve energy
efficiency, our purchasing department regards energy labels as a
prerequisite when procuring equipment for the operation of our
hotels.

OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

The Group has experienced tremendous growth with the support
of a group of dedicated and loyal people. Over the years, refining
employment practices, protecting and supporting human rights, as
well as investing resources in professional development and
workplace safety all have been embedded in our human capital
management and strategic processes. We are committed to
creating an attractive, inclusive and harmonious environment for
our staff, whilst extending our efforts to the communities in which
we operate.

Employment Practices
The Group has recruitment, evaluation and promotion procedures
in place to ensure the appropriate allocation of human capital.
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During the recruitment process, decisions are solely made based
on education, experience, individual performance and merit during
interviews. To retain our talents, we offer competitive remuneration
packages which are generally structured based on market
conditions as well as individual qualifications. Stipulated in our
employee handbook, staff are entitled to benefits, including
medical insurance, compensation insurance, and transportation
allowance. Paid holidays and leave including annual, statutory,
maternity, and sick leave are also granted to all employees.

We continue to utilise a performance appraisal system to assess
the performance of our employees and reward them based on their
merits. This performance appraisal is conducted annually and
serves as the reference for salary adjustments and promotions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material complaints, cases, or non-compliance with any laws and
regulations relating to compensation and dismissal, as well as
recruitment and promotion.

Human Rights

Respecting the human rights of our people and the communities in
which we operate is crucial in our journey to sustainability. We are
committed for safeguarding the fundamental principles and rights
at work, creating an inclusive environment to ensure people are
treated with dignity and respect, as well as complying with social
norms to ethically perform labor practices. Under such practices,
the Group was not aware of any material complaints, cases, or
non-compliance with any laws and regulations relating to working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
as well as child and forced labor during the Reporting Period.
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Listening to Employees’ Voice

Outlined in the employee handbook, our efficient grievance
procedure enables us to listen to our employees and understand
their needs in a timely manner. In the circumstance where an
employee is dissatisfied with his/her work or encounters any
difficulties, he/she should report such matters directly to his/her
supervisor, who is responsible for further handling. If the employee
is not satisfied with the proposed solutions or has other concerns,
he/she can also report to the human resources department in
person or in writing. All complaints will be kept confidential by the
human resources department, and a detailed investigation will be
subsequently conducted. During the investigation, the human
resources department has the right to forward the complaint to
relevant department supervisors or senior management for a final
decision to be made.

Promoting Work-life Balance

Due to its business nature, our hotel and gaming services operate
24 hours, 7 days a week. Hence, it is vital for us to consider the
mental health of our staff and eliminate forced or compulsory labor.
In response to the hotel’'s 24-hour business model, we employ shift
work schedules and offer accommodations to our hotel employees
to ensure they are given an adequate amount of rest time.
Furthermore, employees are also provided with quality and
nutritious daily meals by the hotel staff canteens.

Constructing a Non-discriminatory Workplace

Diversity and inclusion are keywords in our workplace, as we
acknowledge that different ideas and perspectives can bring a
greater impact to the innovation and growth of our products and
services. To realise this, we have thorough human resources
policies in place, ensuring that all employment under no
circumstances is influenced by the applicant’'s or employee’s
gender, age, disability, nationality, sexual orientation, family status
and religion. In the unlikely event where a discriminatory case
happens, employees are encouraged not to tolerate unlawful
discrimination harassment and must report any unacceptable
conduct to management via the same aforementioned grievance
procedure, as stipulated in the “Preventing Financial Crime”
subsection under “Business Conduct” section.
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Upholding Ethical Labor Standards

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach to the hiring of
forced and child labor throughout its operations. To ensure that
prospective employees are lawfully employable during the
recruitment process, a thorough background check will be
conducted on all job applicants and relevant documents such as
identification documents and working permits are required for
further verification. In the unlikely event that false information or a
false identity is discovered, the employment will be terminated
immediately, as we closely follow and comply with relevant laws
and regulations.

Professional Development

Professionalism is the ethos enshrined in the Group’s business
activities and operations. The Group provides training resources
that help its employees strengthen their abilities, develop their
skills and gain industry experience.

Aligning Training with Financial Compliance

Providing a full range of financial services requires our employees
to maintain not only a professional skill set, but more importantly,
an ethical and compliance-driven mindset in the context of
financial services. To achieve this, we provide internal training
regularly as well as organise external training based on business
needs with an aim to update our knowledge on changes in relevant
regulations and compliance issues.

During the Reporting Period, we organised a training seminar on
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), aiming to improve the professional ethics of all employees
and prevent financial crimes from occurring. 47 employees,
including senior-, intermediate- and junior-level staff from different
departments attended this 1-hour seminar, which provided a
comprehensive explanation on the main clauses of the law,
common examples of financial crimes and corresponding
mitigation measures.
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Nurturing a Guest-oriented Team

The Group formulates a one-stop training scheme for new recruits
and helps them grow into guest-oriented professionals in hotel and
gaming services. In order to help them be familiar with daily
operations, induction training, which encompasses hotel tours,
welcome sessions, as well as the introduction of the hotel’s
background, organisation structure, staff policies, staff events and
green activities and programs will be provided to all new recruits.
Furthermore, ongoing training seminars on topics including
customer service skills, managerial skills, housekeeping skills, food
and fire safety are provided to employees on a regular basis. The
Group believes this training scheme can equip employees with all-
around skill sets in hotel and gaming services, and create value for
them as well as the Group’s business. For the purpose of
continuous improvement, we also invite employees to fill in an
evaluation form after a training program concludes.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to create a hazard-free workplace for its
employees. We actively identify health and safety risks in our
workplaces on an annual basis and carry out mitigation measures
accordingly.

For our financial services, the main workplace scenario is office-
based and the major risk falls into ergonomics. We continue to
adhere to the following practices to minimise the risk:

° Maintain good indoor ventilation, appropriate lighting and
temperature conditions

° Regularly assess and update fire-fighting equipment
° Keep fire escape routes clear
° Post non-smoking and fire hazards notices at the offices

In terms of hotel and gaming services, the Group formulates the
comprehensive guidelines, as shown in page 71. Furthermore, to
ensure epidemic-free hygiene conditions and the safe operations
of the hotel’s facilities, the Group also formulates improvement
approaches on food, facility and fire safety, as well as epidemic
prevention. For more information, please refer to the subsection
“Customer and Guest Engagement” under the section “Our
Operation”.
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Aspect Guideline

FHE 5l

General Employees should be aware of the following when on duty:
Behaviors EEEHHFRETEATEIER :

—R1TH ° Except for emergencies, running in the hotel is not allowed

BRESBERIN - ARFEEENR S

° Use both hands to push the cart for safety

RTZEER  FEREFHBFHE

° Use a ladder or chair to reach high heights

MEESERER  AERBTIET

° Clean the slippery or oily floor to prevent slipping

B RIR B SO IR B AR UART 1B R

° Keep the back straight and lift heavy objects slowly

REEHMEE - ZIEHEEY

° Make sure all appliances are functional and safe

RFIBESRNENL SR

Patrolling To ensure potential health and safety risks are promptly identified, relevant personnel are
KIE designated to perform patrolling in the hotel premises on a monthly basis. The main patrolling

areas include:

REREFHFRBENRENZ AR  EEHEBAESA@EEESMETKE - TENGE

B EE
o Kitchens
BB
o Locker rooms
EY=
. Canteens
RE
Accidents Employees should adhere to the following when encountering an accident:
BH EEEBIEHREETATHE :

o Report to relevant personnel such as the department manager, the deputy lobby manager

and security in a timely manner

KEFRFRFIZE - KERIKEMRLZFHBAERRIEN

During the Reporting Period, 6 cases of workplace-related
accidents were reported across Casa Real and Grandview,
resulting in 68 lost days. The Group appropriately carried out
follow-up actions taking care of the injured in accordance with
local laws and regulations in relation to occupational health and
safety. There are no workplace-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the Reporting Period.
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Community Investment

The Group is committed to contributing to its communities and
strives to create healthy, caring and vibrant communities. We
expect to enhance the wellbeing of the community by increasing
the social awareness of our employees. During the Reporting
Period, the Group donated a total of HK$5,540,000 to various
charities.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

A ‘code red for humanity’ was issued by the United Nations
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change in The Sixth
Assessment Report during the Reporting Period. There is a strong
urgency for all stakeholders, including businesses, to reduce their
carbon emissions and minimise environmental impacts
immediately. The Group recognises that the pressing problem of
climate change requires action across all levels within the
organisation and value chain. Hence, we have formulated Group-
wide as well as industry-specific environmental policies and
measures. We acknowledge our responsibility and take all
reasonable steps to minimise our environmental impacts, with a
focus on areas where our impacts are the greatest, namely our use
of environmental and natural resources, waste management and
emissions?.

During the Reporting Period, we are proud to have obtained the
Macau Green Hotel Bronze Award. Organised by the
Environmental Protection Bureau (DSPA), the award demonstrates
our commitment to environmental management, and our
performance in saving energy and processing kitchen waste. To
further demonstrate our commitment to environmental protection,
the Group has also established new environmental targets during
the Reporting Period.
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Environmental Targets
BRER

° By 2023, provide at least 1 hour environmental-related training for senior management.

£2023%F  RRAEEABREEDV/IENIRFEHEBEI -

° By 2025, reduce electricity use intensity by revenue (kWh/HKD’million) by 7%, compared to a FY21 baseline.
21 BV ERAELL - B12025F - MRAGENAEERE (TRK B8BT)EET% -

2 Since the environmental impact of our financial services segment is
relatively less significant, this section dedicates the majority of its
content to our hotels’ environmental performance.
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Use of Resources ERNEA

Energy usage accounts for the majority of our environmental HERMAEENSERSARFIAEEZRS - &
impact in both our financial services segment in Hong Kong as KERSEZE T EREERER  ME+S —2H
well as our hotel operations in Macau. A proportion of our energy B8R AR AEIRIEMLE) A A RS HERE -
usage can also be traceable to petroleum and diesel consumption

used for the powering of mobile vehicles.

Electricity Usage Petroleum Usage Diesel Usage Total Energy Usage
AE FHAE KHAE e RFAE
18,440,541.53 kWh 662.55 Liters 314,692.75 Liters 82,555,729.58 MJ
18,440,541.53 T LI 662.55 7t 314,692.75F 82,5655,729.58 WEF

The Group is committed to improve its resource efficiency by AEBEBNERDSHETHECERERERER
practicing green management in office spaces. In doing so, we Wz KM EERENBERERNOBICER © &
aim to promote and achieve efficient use of resources, save AIEEIR * ERE R MM TIERIR - WD T FIE
energy, improve our working environment, and reduce our overall  f2H)IRIEEIF o

environmental footprint.

Green Office Practices
Fo = N R

o Electrical appliances are turned off when not in use

FRiE MERNER

o Notices are posted next to switches as a reminder for responsible energy consumption

EFRBAZERMBA  REST AR MMEMLR

° Monthly electrical consumption evaluation is conducted by the hotels’ engineering department

BIENTIZAPTE A TSN A

° Investigation and rectification of incidents, such as equipment failure, are carried out, whenever necessary

BERFEREREEEMHETRAENEN

° Old equipment is replaced with energy efficient alternatives

HERBERRE MBI E M

° Air-conditioning is regulated at 25.5°C at all times

EHRELEIEHE25.5T ©

° Maintain all lighting and lux level of around 300 to 500 lux

175 T/ B 58 BR 0 85 5 2 8 B &2 47 Il 72 A8 300 2 500 #h 72

° All lamps have been replaced with LED, T5 or compact fluorescent lamps with energy saving labels

FIERMEIRALED  To i m AR BN — Btk

il R
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In addition to our green office practices, our hotels in Macau are
also continuously seeking ways to improve resource efficiency. To
ensure thermal comfort whilst further reducing energy
consumption, we installed an energy efficient inverter air
conditioner that utilizes environmentally friendly refrigerants and
adopts a closed-circuit air-conditioning cooling tower. Proper
maintenance of the air conditioning unit is performed annually by
professionally licensed third parties, including the cleaning of air
filters, air-cooled fins and air ducts. Excluding casino floors, our
hotel operations have also adopted LED energy-saving light bulbs
to enhance our lighting system.

Recognising that inspections are an important prevention and
safety tool, at Casa Real, the engineering department conducts
monthly inspections on the usage of gas and electricity. The
generated energy consumption analysis report includes insightful
technical advice on energy efficiency and areas for improvement,
which has enabled the Group to prolong the longevity of its
resources. These findings are regularly discussed at the monthly
general meeting for senior management.

Promoting environmental awareness amongst our people and
community is strongly prioritised by the Group. We hope to instill a
sustainable mindset for all, and inspire people to incorporate
sustainability into their everyday life. During the Reporting Period,
we continued to be supporters of the 2022 Earth Hour held by the
WWEF, as well as participated in the Lights Off Campaign during
Macau Energy Saving Week, led by the Office for the Development
of the Energy Sector of Macau. By turning off the hotels’ external
lighting for one hour, it is our intention to demonstrate the Group’s
commitment to tackling the climate crisis and the deterioration of
biodiversity on the planet.

Water Efficiency

Climate change impacts are likely to increase water scarcity risks,
and this could impact our operations in the future. Therefore, the
Group is committed to act now by enhancing water management
and raising awareness of water conservation in our current
operations.

Casa Real and Grandview mainly consume water for domestic use
for our guests, staff and hotel housekeeping purposes such as
cooking and cleaning. During the Reporting Period, the Group
consumed approximately 201,755 m? of water, and did not
encounter any issues in sourcing water. Nevertheless, we have
implemented the following water efficiency measures across our
hotel operations.
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Water Efficiency Measures

ReRKkMmEER

o Routine inspection and maintenance of water pipes and faucets to prevent leakage

E MR E A KB M/KEERR » B LEIR7K

° Monthly recording and analysis of water consumption patterns by the engineering department

Ti2EPIE ARCEAM DT AKIER

o Reminder labels placed at the workplace to communicate water saving tips

ETESHRRMIEETH  EEEHKAE

° Enhancing the toilet flushing system to improve efficiency
JNG&R AP K R IALR = WA

Waste Management

Improper handling and disposal of wastes expose guests, staff
and the community at large at risk. Recent environmental issues,
such as the shortage of landfill sites, have made waste reduction
an even more pressing issue for our stakeholders. Hence, it is
crucial to ensure that our wastes are handled properly and
responsibly. Following the 3Rs principles — Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle, the Group is committed to minimise the impact that its
operations have on the natural world.

In our hotel and gaming services, we have designated recycling
bins for waste paper, scrap iron, soap, shampoo and shower gels,
cardboard, aluminum cans, plastic bottles, and used batteries to
encourage waste separation. Among the reported 759.95 tonnes
of waste produced in our hotel operations, we recycled a total of
6,261.30 kilograms of the aforementioned recycling categories.
Moreover, through engaging professionally licensed third parties
and following relevant laws and regulations, our hotel operations
have established systematic procedures for sorting, collecting,
transferring, and disposing of waste appropriately, including
hazardous wastes such as hydrochloric acid. These measures
have enabled us to prolong the longevity of resources and
preserve valuable landfill space.
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Paper Waste
BE 4

Hotel Toiletries
B E SR @

Food Waste
B ek
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Paper is mainly used in Casa Real Hotel. To reduce waste paper, we strongly
encourage our staff to communicate through electronic means, replace print-out
copies with electronic versions, and print double-sided only when necessary. At
Grandview, reusable tote bags have also replaced paper bags in the selling of
Lunar New Year rice cakes.

MREDEERBRERSRBE - RTRLEL  BMXBETEBEFHIA
B REFAREKSI I - L ERAETEEIIED - ZMETHBREEES
BEFNFFHRE - LA R ERNRRIIAALRE -

Unused and unfinished hotel toiletries are often thrown out as waste in the
hospitality industry. At our hotels, we are committed to repurpose and reuse hotel
toiletries as much as possible. After guests check-out at Grandview,
housekeeping staff repurpose unused soaps, amenities bottles, and toilet paper
rolls for future use, whilst shower gel is reused for hand sanitizing in public toilet
areas and toilet paper rolls are re-utilised in staff bathrooms.
BEOBEEREBMAATHERARKSEREEEY TR - ERMNEE -
BAIEATRh EREREEAEMAm - EREUBE - TARFEE  FBAES
HAREANER ARAMMELERESRT  HURER - fIIOCOABESRIER
NERPTEYEF R - BERRRAEE TAEHER -

Food waste is a significant component of the waste sent to landfills. To manage
the quantity of food waste produced in our restaurants, our chefs strategically
prepare food quantities according to the expected number of guests. In addition,
prior to guest arrival, the Group communicates with local travel agencies to
gather food orders in advance from tour group travelers. Where there is surplus
food, instead of directly going to waste, they will be sent to the staff canteen for
consumption. All remaining food waste is subsequently collected by Direccao
dos Servicos de Proteccao Ambiental for proper handling, recycling, and
disposal.

BYEAME T X EN SRS RN EPN— KD - KT EBRMEBELNELR
EMERBERRTABEEEHRY - I EZAZGA - AEEGEHE M IRTT
HEE - RAIMERERETNRMAE - B ZHRNRYEAIEIRER
AT EEXEERE AR SHBERERKSE - KRR  BKNEE -

Our hotels also make an effort to promote a culture of sustainable food
consumption. Chefs support the use of food approaching expiration dates, and
posters describing food cherishing behavior are made visible throughout the
kitchens and hotel canteens.

BMBEEGE R ERBAHER AL o BRDE S HE MG RBNER
Y BT EEREMEERERMEZERYAER -
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Kitchen Waste
HELF

Cooking oil, a non-recyclable waste, is inevitably generated in our hotel kitchens.
To handle non-recyclable wastes in the most environmentally friendly manner, we
follow stringent procedures to ensure proper management and handling. Used
cooking oil is collected and sent to a waste processing service provider to
undergo treatment before disposal.

BMBERFER2GESRAM  MEf —E A BWNEY - BT URKERRERN
BN IR EY - RPPEREBBOIEF R RAEE EEMEE -
HPgRERBNRAM  WEXTENEERBRHEELETEE - BETRE -

Wastewater
SRR

Wastewater from cleaning and hotel kitchens are processed onsite before
discharge. An oil and grease interceptor filters out impurities and bacteria from
the wastewater before being collected by an external recycler. Furthermore,
Casa Real and Grandview commission and monitor the work performed by a
professionally licensed third party that performs maintenance tasks such as
checking, cleaning, and adjusting.
REBIFRNEEEE & EKIEBERAT S & BIRI5 IR o 12 MNP e K A WAl
BHFIE AR AR BB KTOEENAR - I EXRSBRBEEMEIRBE
ERVEEEEXERNE=ZFETRE  BRMARSHEETE -

Recycling Initiatives EEEEES

2022 Moon Cake Boxes Recycling
2022 F AR E K

During the Reporting Period, Grandview continued to be
an active participant in the Environmental Protection
Bureau of Macau’s recycling initiative, “Recycling
Mooncake Boxes is Very Easy” (“[@ Ug A 8 & 4F EASY”).
By taking part in this initiative, the Group installed a
recycling point to collect empty mooncake boxes during
and after the Mid-Autumn Festival. The collected boxes
were subsequently sent to the government department
for further processing and recycling. As a result of this
initiative, 50 mooncake boxes were recycled by the
Group.

EREHRN - BIRBEERS /\&F'Ellaiﬂ% & B B UGt
2([EW A B RIFEASY] JER) - BBDEFIHFE - K
SEETPNEHENZ #REQKE  WE=As2 B
KRR RS R EBUTERPIEE — T RIBAMEI - &
SEHAEU T S0MEAE o

2022 Red Packet Recycling
2022 FF| 2 HE WK

To welcome the Year of the Tiger, Grandview celebrated
a sustainable Lunar New Year by participating in the
“Recycling Red Packets is Very Easy” (“[8] i 7| 2 £t 4F
EASY”) initiative, organized by the Environmental
Protection Bureau of Macau. A recycling point was set
up to collect empty and reusable red packets for future
distribution by the government. At Casa Real, we
recycled a total of 5.5 kg of red packets during the
Reporting Period.

RBERF > BIRBEE2MT BRPIRRBEBR [EH

MEHIFEASY] AE  AARREB BRI FERRN
BEE - AR EUWE - WERZ=H A EEE R R

25 HEFEKERMOR - AREHA - ZAEEK
SRBEELLK T 55 AT HZEE

THE

RIEEHR QA
T FFR
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Recycling Used Light Bulbs

(=] Uy B R

As part of our recycling program, we have a recycling section where used light bulbs, such as LEDs, fluorescent

tubes, and halogens, are collected.

BAEREENES -8

R AR E W EEERR - IILED - AR EMREE o

Recycling Bins
EIE]

As part of our recycling program at the headquarter office, we have a recycling station with three colored bins,

separating plastic bottles, paper, and aluminum cans.

ERRMAEHAZEEWETEN —2 - B —ERYL - @A = EX e fE - BB 2ER - KR EDF o

Emissions Control

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions are largely responsible for
causing global warming and climate change, which can result in
irreversible damage to our planet. To this end, the Group is
sincerely concerned about the environmental impact of the
emissions generated from its operations. At our hotels, the main
sources of GHG emissions are derived from equipment or activities
that support our daily operations, including ventilation systems,
cooking systems, company and guest transport vehicles,
machinery and electricity consumption. As a steward for the
environment, we are committed to expend great efforts on
managing and minimising our emissions, not just to improve the
quality of the environment for our guests, but also to help achieve
the larger aim of reducing global environmental damage.

GHG Emissions

During the Reporting Period, Scope 1 direct emissions are largely
derived from fuel combustion in our vehicles, as well as gas
combustion in our kitchen stoves, while the main source of Scope
2 indirect air emissions is derived from electricity usage.

To maintain consistency with previous years and accurately
quantify the Group’s GHG emissions, we engaged an independent
consultancy to evaluate our overall GHG emissions. The calculation
process refers to both local and international guidelines, including
the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the EPD and
the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department. We also made
reference to the latest emission factors, which are periodically
updated by relevant power companies.
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Due to the impact of the pandemic on our hotel operations, GHG
levels decreased by approximately 17% during the Reporting
Period with a baseline of FY 2019. With that said, approximately
95% of our GHG emissions continued to be derived from Scope 2
indirect GHG emissions, traceable to the fossil fuels used to
generate electricity. Hence, moving forward, we must prioritise and
continue our efforts in reducing electricity usage. For more
information regarding electricity usage, please refer to the
subsection “Use of Resources” under section “Our Environment”.

Emissions Scope

Bk g E

Scope 1 tCO.e—

# (=] 1 WE—E(rIRE S
Scope 2 tCO.e—

#[E2 WA LIE S
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1-2) tCOQe—

GHG B e = (&= 1-2) —RRES

Indoor Air Quality

MRRBEBRMBEEEEENNTE  REHA
GHGHIRE T T AX17% » Bt — T —HBt4F
RIEAR - BE ML - FAMIARL 95% & GHG BERUTY
SRR EE 2 GHGHER » 2RE AR EED
ﬂzmﬂsﬂ At - FEARK - BRIV BBLEEL
BERVEAE -BARAENEZEN  B28 (R
MIEIRE | R [BRAER]

Financial

Services Casa Real Grandview

SRR EXSEBE FEREE

0.30 697.91 16.50 714.71

140.98 7,606.12 7,401.54 15,148.64
141.28 8,304.03 7,418.04 15,863.35
EREREE
EEE’JIW%ﬁ’%ﬂ%éﬁig/\m%ﬁfﬁf%ﬁuﬁﬁ%

Adequate indoor air quality levels are strongly connected to the
overall guest experience and health and wellbeing. At our hotels,
we clean and unclog the ventilation systems, including air filters,
ducts, air vents and fan coils on a quarterly and annual basis.
Furthermore, the engineering department conducts a daily
inspection to ensure that all equipment is safe to use and that all
systems are functioning appropriately. A professional licensed
third party is also commissioned for its maintenance and inspection
on a regular basis. In case of damage, equipment repairs are
carried out immediately to prevent further deterioration and ensure
the safety of our guests and staff.

In compliance with the Tobacco Control Act of Macau, smoking is
banned in all public indoor areas at our hotels, and is only allowed
inside specially ventilated smoking rooms. The smoking rooms
have been thoroughly designed against the strictest air quality
guidelines to prevent second-hand smoke from seeping out.

MEZHEBRYBEE - RANBEESE fﬂti%ﬁ
E/a/:%ﬂlﬁm_u—t%ﬁ’ BREEREREF

EBEOMBREES o i I%“BF?#%%B
CRE  UERAMEBRXBLZEERMNERRILE
BET AN BRANZTEEEERNE=H
TFHHEFRSE - MR HIFEE RGN
f;?o%ﬁ LAB)th —FBI - BREAMIEA

=

=

RIBCGER RIZESIRES E) - BRVBIENAMEE
A R I EREE  F AR E - R BT RN B R A AR
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Cooking Fumes

Our hotel kitchens are equipped with proper ventilation to ensure
that cooking fumes do not reach our guests and are filtered before
discharging to the outdoor environment. At Grandview, biannual
inspections and maintenance are carried out to enhance optimal
efficiency and verify compliance. At Casa Real, electrical cooking
stoves are also inspected regularly.

Vehicle Emissions

Our primary source of direct emissions largely stems from vehicle
transportation, hence, we have implemented measures to reduce
these air emissions. We regularly maintain our company vehicles
to ensure fuel efficiency and minimise exhaust air emissions,
including nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulfur oxides (“SOx”) and
particulate matter (“PM”). These are strictly in compliance with
local environmental standards.

Noise Emissions

To prevent noise emissions from affecting the community and our
guests’ experiences in our hotels, we strategically procure
equipment and machinery that produces minimal noise. Regular
inspections and maintenance are also performed on the equipment
and machinery to ensure noise levels fall below the appropriate
decibel level of 75 dB.

Climate Change

Climate change directly impacts the hospitality industry. As climate
patterns shift and extreme weather worsens, operations and supply
chains are disrupted, tourists are unable to reach their
destinations, and workers and guests risk injuries. Hence, climate
change is a priority risk of the Group and its oversight is a board-
level responsibility. We must ensure that we are effectively
managing business risks associated with climate change, so that
our business remains resilient in a changing environment. To that
end, the Group is committed to managing this risk and responding
to stakeholders’ concerns by reducing its carbon footprint and
building operational resilience.

Casa Real and Grandview follow emergency response protocols
that are made known to all employees. In order to comply with
emergency procedures, we regularly conduct typhoon handling
procedures training. During the Reporting Period, 16 training
sessions were conducted.
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Preventative Measures for General Staff

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE g REARE

Preventive Measures for the
Engineering Department

—RIEAENERERE

Arrange staff to navigate guests towards public areas
across the hotel
ZHTIEABSIBEARDEEAN A HKEE

Make sure all precautionary measures have been
conducted; this includes moving items to safe
locations and ensuring doors and windows are
closed

WREDMENENEE 2R REB 221
B WHEGRFIERARA

Close swimming pool and other outdoor facilities

BB K B E AR P SR 3

Prepare scrap towels for urgent needs and leak
prevention

RESHLNY REFTREEED

Equip outdoor staff with raincoats

RPINTHEABRBRK

Liaise with various departments to repair damages
and leaks after the typhoon
HEEIMPIME - EREBREEREIRIFNMLT

TR TARS e

Inspect and clear blockages in the hotel

BEWFIREENNEEY

Securely fasten items that are susceptible to
wind

ZEHWEER S XA ENYm

Examine whether electricity generator and fuel
oil is substantial in the case of power outage
EEENERLT  REFSHHREL S B
)

Check the supply of sandbags for extreme
emergencies

BERGZZBER TODREEBR
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has rigorously adhered to
the following laws and regulations and did not record any material
non-compliance cases. The Group has reviewed the applicable
laws and regulations and concluded that there were no major
changes that have a significant impact on the Group’s operations.

EERMER

ERERA - NEBBRETNTERIER
ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁcﬁiﬁ‘i%ﬁfﬂ c AKEEEETE
REVERIER RRRBHARENKEESE
EXFENEAEL -

Our Operations
BRI R

Hong Kong
B

° Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

B LB AR 5P (BB AR S 201 &)

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

EAEHR (RLER) 1551 (B7EABISE 486 F )

° Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

B MEGRD (BBERESTE)

Macau
JEPY

° Anti-Money Laundering Law (Law No. 2/2006)
&by KB 1B R B0 Ik (5 2/2006 570512 )

° Personal Data Protection Law (Law No. 8/2005)
18 A B RHR#EE (5 8/2005 57 A7)

° Prevention and Suppression of Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009)

TEBR I 38 1FFL & ST BE R% (55 19/2009 5iA )

° Regulation of Hotel Activity and Similar Activity (Law No. 83/96/M)

BEEMABRITEZRE (F83/96/MFES)
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Our People and Community

BMMEINTEE
Hong Kong
BB

° Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEEN (BB ERNESTE)

o Employee’s Compensation Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEMERDN(FBEEF282F)

° Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
s A EE T ENERD (BB ANIFE 485 %)

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BELE REEEN (BB EEFEL00E)

° Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
IR T E GBI (FEEDIFE 608 %)

o Employment of Children Regulations (Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong)
ERARERN (BEEEMESTBE)

° Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations (Cap. 57C of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BASF (IE)ROI(EBEMIEE7CE)

eNEemEBRERAR
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Our People and Community
EFNEIMNLE
Macau

R

° Social Security Scheme (Law No. 4/2010)
& RIEHIE (58 4/2010 58 E#:)

° Law of Food Safety (Law No. 5/2013)
RmE 2% (F5/20135EF)

° Labor Relations Law (Law No. 7/2008)
EAENRRR % (58 7/2008 5505 1R)

° Regulation on Prohibition of lllegal Work (Ordinance No. 17/2004)
ZIPIBETHERE (£ 17/200450052)

° Law of Hiring Non-Residents Workers (Law No. 21/2009)
e A St i B 0% (55 21/2009 57 E )

° Fire Prevention Regulation (Law No. 24/95/M)
B k&2 2R E (5 24/95/MSRIES)

° General regulation of working safety and hygiene of office, service and commercial establishment (Law No.
37/89/M)
BT REEARAESc TELE REFHEE (F37/8IMIES)

Our Environment
HKFHIRE
Macau

R

° Environmental Law (Law No. 2/91/M)
RFE(F291MES)

° Rules on Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise (Law No. 54/95/M)
TaFm AR HIIR R R S 4R R (5 54/95/M 5E <)

° General Regulation of the Public Spaces (Ordinance No. 28/2004)
N7 R E (5 28/2004 SR & HI)

° Regulations on Water Supply and Drainage in Macau (Decree Law No. 46/96/M)
ZAERPIHEHEKAR & (5 46/96/M5RES)
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

B AE NI R A T

Financial
Key Performance Indicators® Services Casa Real Grandview
BEEREE? & m AR EXEE 2
Air and GHG Emissions %= 58 fl;8 E R B HE i
NOx Emissions kg - 46.33 79.83 126.16
pk=tld) NI
SOx Emissions kg - 0.45 0.10 0.55
ety NI
PM Emissions kg - 3.05 4.50 7.55
k)| NI
GHG Emission — Scope 1 tCO,-e 0.30 697.91 16.50 714.71
BERBEN — &BE— W_StiREE
GHG Emission — Scope 2 tCO-e 140.98 7,606.12 7,401.54 15,148.64
RERBHN —HE- W SREE
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1-2) tCO.-e 141.28 8,304.03 7,418.04 15,863.35
BREREHN —®E—K— W _StREE
GHG Emission Intensity by Revenue* tCO,-e/HK$'000 0.01
BERBHHNEE RBWAGH* M_altixgE/
FE
GHG Emission Intensity by Revenue tCO,-¢f 8.04
BERBHNEE ZRAG) HK$'million
M_8(tiEE
BETLEE
GHG Emission Intensity tCO,-e/Room - 0.15 0.12 -
by Occupied Room WMoaltiES
BRERBHNEZE (RAEFMHE) UNES

specified.

HK$1,973,133,000 for the financial year 2021/22.

All figures are rounded up to 2 decimal places, unless otherwise 3

The total revenue of the Group is recorded at approximately  *

BRIEZBHE - BRIFTEHFIE DA &
Mz -

5 B R 2021/22 8 B F R # 4B WA B 13 4
1,973,133,000/8 7T *

eNEemEBRERAR
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Financial
Key Performance Indicators?® Unit Services Casa Real Grandview
BRERER? By & m AR EXEE 1R
Energy Use 2R FIE

Electricity Usage kWh 198,563.53 | 9,238,309.00 | 9,003,669.00 | 18,440,541.53
BB TR

LPG Usage m® 0.00 27,483.46 16,583.00 44,066.46
BAL R HRIERE SR

Petroleum Usage Liter 108.93 308.62 245.00 662.55
FURERE F

Diesel Oil Usage Liter 0.00 308,936.99 5,755.76 314,692.75
S ERE 7

Total Energy Usage MJ 718,486.57 | 47,659,707.67 | 34,177,635.34 | 82,555,729.58
R RHRE KEF

Energy Usage Intensity by Revenue MJ/HK$'000 41.84
RERHRERE (RIKAGH) KEH/
FB

Energy Usage Intensity by Revenue MJ/HKS$ million 41,839.92
RUREREE (R KEER,/
BELER

Energy Usage Intensity MJ/Room - 850.25 541.21 -
by Occupied Room KEE,/
RERHREE (RAERERE) AEEME
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Financial
Key Performance Indicators® Unit Services Casa Real Grandview
BRERER? By SRR ERER £l
Water f7k
Water Usage m3 - 131,899.00 69,856.00 201,755.00
K#E K
Water Usage Intensity by Revenue m3/HK$'000 0.10
IKFEEE (RIAGH) NFK FEE
Water Usage Intensity by Revenue m3/HK$'million 102.25
KBEEE (RWAGH AR BB
Waste BEEY
Paper Usage and Disposal® Tonnes 1.92 6.05 N/A 7.97
HFERES 4 NEHA
Paper Recycled Tonnes N/A N/A 3.95 3.95
HaREIY M@ TEA AEA
Waste Disposal® Tonnes N/A 730.00 23.90 753.90
BERED® i TiEA
Waste Recycled Tonnes N/A N/A 2.31 2.31
A Bl EEY) U NiE A TEA
5 Paper usage and disposal is calculated by the difference between ¢ A REFEFR R E IR BN JE B B AR & BN B

the sum of amount in storage at the beginning of the Reporting
Period and purchased during Reporting Period, and the sum of
amount recycled during the Reporting Period and in storage at the

end of Reporting Period. For financial services, it is assumed that

there is no amount in storage at the beginning or end of the

Reporting Period, or recycled during the Reporting Period.

6 Denotes a change in calculation methodology to the previous ¢
Reporting Period, whereby Casa Real assumes 2 tonnes of waste

per day at its hotel operations.

B2 I & B[O Ye B BB KA JE 8B 2 FlIeY 22 B
FE o 2BRBES ERKREHY) - HREASE
Y -

HF—EHIEL - GTELERE - AREHA
SR BRRE A ELGREL 2K -

eNEemEBRERAR
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Financial
Key Performance Indicators Unit Services Casa Real Grandview
BARENER By < R AR EREE EER
Workforce 55 & )
Total full-time Workforce #2841 Person A 47 321 212 580
Workforce by Gender %1% Bl &5 #1155 &)

Male 5 Person A 21 158 116 295
Female 2 Person A 26 163 96 285
Workforce By Employment Category 2SR &2 145 & 5
Senior Level &R & 1 Person A 11 21 6 38
Intermediate Level 4 & 12 Person A 11 43 6 60
Junior Level =% 8T Person A 25 257 200 482
Workforce By Age IR F#HEBI B DB N
<30 Years Old <30 7% Person A 4 37 28 69
30-40 Years Old 30-40 3%, Person A 14 125 77 216
41-50 Years Old 41-50 5%, Person A 11 83 65 159
>50 Years Old >50 5%, Person A 18 76 42 136
Workforce By Geographical Region ity B £ 5 K% 8 h
Hong Kong &7 Person A 47 0 0 47
Macau 2F9 Person A 0 321 212 533
Turnover Rate i k%

Total Turnover Rate 487 2k & % 45.10 20.69 23.74 23.94
Turnover Rate By Gender %14 5815 K7 & &

Male 5 % 40.82 26.67 20.75 25.45
Female 2 % 50.00 15.09 27.69 22.65
Turnover Rate By Age X F R 82 B kR
<30 Years Old <30 7% % 44.44 33.73 40.00 37.04
30-40 Years Old 30-40 5% % 76.47 23.33 24.10 27.73
41-50 Years Old 41-50 5% % 5217 15.20 20.87 20.06
>50 Years Old >50 5% % 11.43 15.83 14.12 14.67
Turnover Rate By Geographical Region 2 ith 38 &| 5 B 57 % &

Hong Kong &7 % 45.10 0 0 45.54
Macau ;&9 % 0 20.69 23.74 21.93
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Key Performance Indicators

BRENIER

5 /A $&%

Unit
By

Financial
Services

TR

Casa Real

EXEE

Grandview

Efa

The Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender 2% 51 &| 5 ZEHE T

Male 55 % 100.00 99.37 42.24 76.95
Female 2 % 100.00 99.39 5417 84.21
The Percentage of Employees Trained by Employee Category #{E BI85 HZ1EHET
Senior Level A EE % 100 90.48 33.33 84.21
Intermediate Level 7 4% & 1% % 100 100 33.33 93.33
Junior Level =88 T % 100 100 48.50 78.63
The Average Training Hours Completed per Employee by Gender %1 B & 7 §93Z 5l B5 2
Male 55 Hour /) B 1.00 1.94 1.85 1.84
Female % Hour /)N 1.00 1.44 2.59 1.80
The Average Training Hours Completed per Employee by Employee Category 1Z1& 2 18 5 &1 5 K32 3| B
Senior Level m &R EIE Hour /] 1.00 1.92 0.67 1.46
Intermediate Level F 4% & 3 Hour /] 1.00 1.14 1.50 1.15
Junior Level =& T Hour /] 1.00 1.76 2.25 1.92
Occupational Health and Safety T {5
Fatality B 72 585 Case A% 0 0 0 0
Work-related Injury FRA 215 Case A% 0 4
Lost Day due to Work-related Injury Day H 0 32 36 68
EARGIEANIERE
Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region # ith % & 15 &1 5 By L FE RS
Hong Kong &/ Quantity 0 0 0 0
Macau J&F] Quantity 0 22 10 32
Product and Service & & f iR %

Products Recall Rate for Safety and % 0 0 0 0

Health Reasons
EmA e X
Products and Service Case f% 0 2 4 6

related Complaints
el e R FES

Anti-corruption fF &5

Concluded Legal Cases regarding Case ffZ 0 0 0 0

Corrupt Practices
HEEEER

Community Investment # & 38 &

Resources Contributed &R 58 HK$ &% 5,540,000 0 0 | 5,540,000

SHNETHERE
o

=

R 7]
FER
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT BMIXI(RE - t8REREIDAR
INDEX £
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description Relevant Chapter or Explanation
BE - —RFEER
BRERIEE it B E S & A
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements 38 &l BiR &
Governance A statement from the board containing the following | Our Approach to Sustainability —
Structure elements: ESG Governance
ERRE (i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG | IR AIFEER T —ESGE R
issues;

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to
evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG-
related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an
explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

MEFSELNER  ERHETIRE

() WEEESHRR HLSERELREFENEE

(i) BFEEMNRR HERE/AEETHERE 8
BEHE - ERBDINEREENRE  HERE
AHEEE(BREBTAEZBHAR) IBE
K

(i) BFEWAILIRE - 8 RERARM B ERTHE
B - WERRE I R8T ARHARE -
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

—REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

BREARIER
Reporting Principles
R A

Rt
A description of, or an explanation on, the application
of the following Reporting Principles in the
preparation of the ESG Report:

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the
process to identify and the criteria for the selection of
material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant
stakeholders identified, and the process and results
of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be discussed.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or
any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.

S BEEREHRR e REAWMERINMER
THEHRERA -

BRI RS ' RERREEEE ()RR EE
R He@kEAREMNBIEMEBELARNER
(ii)ﬁD%éﬁ/\ELﬁhTﬁ%%Eﬁi EE&%/”:'JE’JEEHE%
I & AT A D E 2 BB R A

Bt ERERYNE BLRFER (ER) FTANIE
5% BRE/HFAETANER - URAERA
BRI R A SRR FE TR ©

—HE BTARERR  HERELAREPRESR
AARERERERNEE (A HEAEMTE
BEZELEBMHERREE -

M EAE BT SR 5 BA
About This Report — Reporting

Framework and Standards
RS — SRR FEAE
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

BARENER
Reporting Boundary
EE R EE

R
A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the
ESG report and describing the process used to
identify which entities or operations are included in
the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the
issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

RERE HeghEAMENERSE - LiEdPE
IJ)BW* RS EBAARE g REAMEMNBIE -
EEREBEFANE  BITARBRENR ZERE

[RE -

MR EE R AR
About This Report — Reporting

Scope and Period
BRI E — W S E MR

“Comply or explain” Provisions [ TN E<F 2 | &3

A. Environmental
A. BE

Aspect A1: Emissions EHA1

DB

General Disclosure

—RE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBEREKAEREBEN  MKRTHHEES - B
LEZEREYNEESH
(a) BURK: &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHBERRBRMNE
£t o

Qur Environment — Waste
Management, Emissions Control

BAIRIRE — BEMEIE - PRzl

Laws and Regulations

SEEFDER

KPI A1.1
FAREMIEEZEALA

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data.

PEpmntEia AR R BN EUE -

Our Environment — Emissions
Control

BAIRIRE — PEpUE

KPI A1.2
BASRAR ISR AL.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BEZ(BE) REEREEZ (HE2) REREHNE (JA
Wt & )&(ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%)ff(llmxtﬁéﬁ{ﬁ - BIARE

At E

Our Environment — Emissions
Control

TAIRIRE — BRI

Performance Data Summary

ﬁﬁfki )&?El*‘rﬁu‘l—
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RE - g REARWRE

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

FARENIEE
KPI A1.3
FAREMIEZEALS

R
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FESEEREEMHEE (UABGE) R(@ER)wE (40
NEESEN BERBTE)

HE BB E R A AR

The production of hazardous waste
continues to be insignificant when
compared to other non-hazardous
waste generated by our Group.
Hence, we currently do not have a
centralized monitoring system to
record the amount of hazardous
waste we produce.
EAEEMEANESEEZEYEL
EEEEVNEENALRMTR
B ALt HARERALIRE — &
PREARGELBESEEYN

EE -

KPI A1.4
FAEEMIEEZEALL

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEcEEEZEDEE(UMETE) RQER) BE (10
NBEEEN - §ERETE) -

Performance Data Summary

RS AR IR AR AT

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps | Our Environment
BARENIEEALS taken to achieve them. RIMR RS

R PAET S HE R E B IR R R E R 5 L B R ATERER Y
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous | Our Environment — Waste
BRENIEEALG wastes are handled, and a description of reduction | Management

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
M RIE A E N B E RV 7R M P aT S2AY R
JE B IR N S B E L BARPTERRE B

BRMRE — BEYEE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources BE A2 : &R A

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including | Our Environment — Use of
—RIEE energy, water and other raw materials. Resources

BRERER(BIEER - KREMEME) K - | BPIIRE — EROEA
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type | Our Environment — Use of
FRENIEEA2.1 (e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in '000s) and | Resources

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | &IMIRE — ERHOFEH

facility).

REREISHEER LEEER(NE - Kskil) 8 | Performance Data Summary

FEUTETERAE) RBRE(MMUESESSEMN - | BREWISZEHRT

BIERMTHE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit | Performance Data Summary
BRENIEEA2.2 of production volume, per facility). AR FEE gt

BFKERTE (WWNEEESN - BIEERETE)
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) setand | Our Environment — Use of
BARENIEEZEA2.3 steps taken to achieve them. Resources

A PTET L MRERE A Mt B IR R R ERE L B R
RENEY P8R o

BRRE — ERNER

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

BRARER R MR EE R AR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | Our Environment — Use of
BRENIEEA2.4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) | Resources
set and steps taken to achieve them. FMEIRE — BRAER
UK EGEAKIR E ] BEMAMERE - A RFTEI LM A
7J<x5( BiE R REREE B R - Upon research and discussion,
water is not considered a material
ESG issues in the Group’s
operations, hence we have not set
a corresponding target for this
issue.
NE B EGEMN ARSI M
WA ABEZESGHERE © FTUAELL
FEEMILBETLEEEIR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | The Group’s operations does not
FREMIEEZEA2.5 (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per | involve the use of packaging for

unit produced.
XA EEM B E (AN E
AEBREE o

)N (Em) &

finished products.
REBOEB T MEKmERE

At
< °

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources BT A3 : RER KRER

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.

IR EIT ABRIEMARAERENEATZENHER

Our Environment — Use of
Resources, Waste Management,
Emissions Control, Climate Change
BAIRE — Léi}FE’MEFH - EEYE
B BERES - RIREME

KPI A3.1
BARARMIER A3

Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

B EBEBDHRREIRARERNEANZE KRB
ERBBTENITE -

Our Environment — Use of
Resources, Waste Management,
Emissions Control, Climate Change
BMORR — ERNER  BEYDE
B BERuEd - RIREME

Aspect A4: Climate Change EH A4 : RIX&E 1L

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEERAIREEHBITAEELENERR
1RFERE E H AR o

Our Approach to Sustainability —
Risk and Opportunities

BP0 AR — B s
B

Qur Environment — Climate
Change
HFIHIRE — RIRE (L

KPI A4.1
BARENIEEZEALA

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
M E R LA G HETAEETENEARIKEH
BH &}i’éﬁf'@b

Our Approach to Sustainability —
Risk and Opportunities

BRI AR — B s
B
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

FARENIEE
B. Social
B. #®

1 B8 B = 5 B

Employment and Labor Practices &K % T &R

Aspect B1: Employment BE B1 : (&%

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERATHRRE BEREA  ITERE - RE T

e - 2t - RIERAREAMRES KB

(a) BER: &

(b) ﬁ?%ﬁéﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂwﬁE«%iﬁ&&%ﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂﬁ

Our People and Community —
Employment Practices

P B TR — BEBR

Laws and Regulations

ERTDER

KPI B1.1
FAEEMIEEB1.A

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RIER - RERE - FicERMItREIDREEE -

Performance Data Summary

RS A RUR R AR AT

KPI B1.2
FREMIEEBL.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - FEAR M@ E D HEBRKL X -

Performance Data Summary
RAS A IR IR AT

Aspect B2: Health and

Safety EHEB2 : @FEHEZE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
BARMRLZETIEREMREREEBEABEEEEN
(a) BK: &

BFUETAEEATENEEER LAY
¥ o

(b)

Our People and Community —
Occupational Health and Safety
BZMMEIMME — EERENE

E2

Laws and Regulations

ERTER

KPI B2.1
AR EMISZEB21

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in
each of the past three years including the reporting
year.

BEZF(BRERFE)BFRTTHRMABRLEE -

QOur People and Community —
Occupational Health and Safety
BB I MR — EERZEME

2

Performance Data Summary
RAB A IR IR AT

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

FARENIEE
KPI B2.2
FREEMIEEB2.2

R
Lost days due to work injury.
ETEEATIEAS -

HEEE A

Our People and Community —
Occupational Health and Safety
BZMWEIMME — EERENR

E2

Performance Data Summary

RS AE IR IR AR AT

KPI B2.3
FAREMIEEZEB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

A PTER AN BV B R 2 FR B 22 248 i - DA BB IT X
EERAE o

Our People and Community —
Occupational Health and Safety
BAWEIMEER — EEREMZ

E2

Aspect B3: Development and Training B B3 : % /& k%3l

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BRARAERERIT TIERE OB R REEBUR -
MIFFEE

Our People and Community —
Professional Development
BAWEIMtE —EXER

BRI R REERE D - BEEETXZ I FGE
2o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and | Performance Data Summary
BRENIEEB3. employee category (e.g. senior management, middle | BBSE4E B IZ st
management).
BRMRIREESERN(NESREERE  PREEE)ED
MXIMEEB DL °
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee | Performance Data Summary
BARENIEEB3.2 by gender and employee category. AR ERUIEIR AT

Aspect B4: Labor Standards [EE B4 : % T %8|

General Disclosure
—RIFE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.

BRI IEE TaloR 4 TH) -

(a) BUR: &

(b) ﬁ?%ﬁéﬁ)\ﬁiﬁ%gﬁﬂﬁEﬁiﬁ&&%ﬁ%ﬂ@%ﬁ

Our People and Community —
Human Rights
T E TR — A

Laws and Regulations

SREADER

A IR E RIS L BRR A RIS LA EREREY P B

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment | Our People and Community —
BRENIEEBAA practices to avoid child and forced labor. Human Rights

s BB E AR R E T KIS T - BB Tt E — AR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices | Our People and Community —
FREMIEEB4.2 when discovered. Human Rights

HRFBE TR — AR
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE- - —REER

Description

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

REANER

Operating Practices & E €|

1 B8 B = 5 B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management EE B5 : {{ESEEE

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
EIRMHERENRE R ERBREBUR

Our Operations — Supply Chain
Management

A ER — HEREE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data Summary
B ERIEEBS.1 R RE D HHEEEE - BB DR IR AT
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging | Our Operations — Supply Chain
BARENIEEBS.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices | Management
are being implemented, and how they are | TfIRZER — fHEHEE
implemented and monitored.
fe G RS AR VB B - R E AT A BB HIE) it
JERIEE - AT RERE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify | Our Operations — Supply Chain
AR EMIEEB5.3 environmental and social risks along the supply | Management
chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. | FAfIEI ¥ — (HLIEHEE IR
A R HER G ERE R IRE R R 1E
Bl A RABREIT MBI R TTIE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Our Operations — Supply Chain
BARENIEEBS.4 environmentally preferable products and services | Management

when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R EREMHRERER(RESZARRERMRENIE
Bl ARABRETIT M EEERTTOE o

B ER — HEREE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility EE B6 : ERET

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

HATREEMMREERREZS BES

BEEUREROTEE B -

(@) B K

(b) iﬁ;?%%ﬁ}\ﬁiﬁ%éﬁmﬁFeﬁ;‘i‘:&&%ﬁwﬂ’a%ﬁ
o

SE N

Qur Operations — Business
Conduct, Customer and Guest
Engagement

BAER —BAXTR  TFHZ
i
Laws and Regulations

ERTDER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject | The Group’s operations do not
BRENIEEBS6.1 to recalls for safety and health reasons. involve the sale or shipping of
EESREXEREHTRLZ2H@ERFIEAMARU | products.
AL ° AEBNEB TS RERBHER
B e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints | Our Operations — Customer and
BRERIEEB6.2 received and how they are dealt with. Guest Engagement

EIERINE an MRTSEVIR AR 2B LA R 7K -

BAIWER —EPHm2 A

SRLSpERMERAR
TECCHFER
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Relevant Chapter or Explanation
B - —RIEER
BRARER R MR EE R AR
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and | Our Operations — Business
BARENIEEB6.3 protecting intellectual property rights. Conduct

it B4 T ARPR AN EERE R RO AE B BFIEE —BXRTAR
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall | Our Operations — Customer and
BRENIE1EB6.4 procedures. Guest Engagement

HE 8 TE BiE REMBKIZF B %ER — FFPH2 R
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy | Our Operations — Business
FAEENIEEBG.5 policies, and how they are implemented and | Conduct

monitored.
HlUE B & ERHRE RALRBUR -
BRITE ©

AR AARAEATT S BE

BRNES —BXRTR

Aspect B7: Anti-corru

ption EEB7 : RES

R EE R B TRHNRE)SE -

General Disclosure Information on: Our Operations — Business
—RIFE (a) the policies; and Conduct
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations | FFIRIER — BETH
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money | Laws and Regulations
laundering. ERTER
B ILRERE - 9% - HEFREREER -
(a) BOR: &
(b) ﬁ?%ﬁ%ﬂ\ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ;‘%&&%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt | Our Operations — Business
BARENIEEBT.A practices brought against the issuer or its employees | Conduct
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the | TR ER — EETH
cases.
REFANEETARE EERDWEEENETFH
MEMHEE RFAER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- | Our Operations — Business
BARENIEEBT.2 blowing procedures, and how they are implemented | Conduct
and monitored. BPRELE —BETR
TPy EE b R TRIZ T - LA RABRAETT REE R 0% o
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to | Our Operations — Business
BARENIEEBT.3 directors and staff. Conduct

BRES —BETR

98

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE g REARE
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Disclosures and KPIs

H- - —RIEER
BRENIER
Community &

Description

g

Relevant Chapter or Explanation

1 B8 B = 5 B

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EE B8 : t ERE

General Disclosure
—RIFE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

B RB2ERTREEMEHROTEMERE
XA eERMENROBCR

Our People and Community —
Community Investment

HFMEIMtE —HRIRE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, | Our People and Community —
BEENIEEBS.1 environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture, | Community Investment
sport). MBIt E —HEEE
EOIEEEE (HE  REFE SIFR - #F -
b - 88F) ©
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the | Our People and Community —
BARENIEEBS.2 focus area. Community Investment

AR IREMPAER (W EXEH)

BB TMEE —HRIRE

SHEHEBARAF
e
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEZRWME

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 128 to 129. The Board does not
recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: nil). No interim dividend was declared during
the six months ended 30 September 2021 (six months ended 30
September 2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s
performance (using financial key performance indicators), a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events occurred since 31 March
2022, if any, and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company’s environmental principles and practices are set out
in the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board considers that effective environmental protection
measures will not only contribute to environmental protection but
also reduction of the production cost. During the Year, the Group
has implemented various measures to reduce waste and pollution
and to effectively and efficiently use the resources.

Financial Services Operation

The Group’s financial services operations are fully automated and
waste-free. Looking forward, we will continue to adopt the
environmental friendly operation mode.
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EEZRWME

Hotel and Gaming Operation

The Group is committed to minimising the environmental impact of
its operation. Since our business operates in 24 hours basis,
electricity consumption has always been a main concern for us.
We are hence gradually replacing lighting system with energy
saving LED light in the two hotels, which is beginning to yield
positive results in reducing electricity usage. In additional to that,
the Group is actively considering the installation of new air
conditioning system to lower energy consumption and noise level.
The Group’s professional team also regularly checks and closely
monitors the waste water system to ensure the sewage discharged
is adequately treated and complied with relevant laws and
regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations
which govern our businesses. We have appointed compliance
officer to oversee compliance with all relevant regulations for our
financial services business in Hong Kong. As for the gaming
business in Macau, the Group has adopted anti-money laundering
procedures in accordance to relevant regulations. Policies are well
communicated to relevant employees to ensure compliance with
all these anti-money laundering policies and procedures.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
throughout the year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The management firmly believes that staffs are the most valuable
asset of a company and are crucial to the company’s success. As
a caring employer, we offer competitive benefits to our staffs and
provide full spectrum training to familiarise our staffs with the
industry. We are also committed to provide our staffs a safe
working environment by strictly following operational manual
formulated with reference to the guidelines issued by the Macau
Labor Affairs Bureau.

The Group’s key hotel customers include online and traditional
travel agents. As a professional service provider, we are dedicated
to provide wonderful accommodating and entertainment
experience to our customers. Our well trained staffs create a safe,
clean and cozy environment to gain repeat customers.

BERBREE
AEBBNKHEEENRRELZFERERIK
BRI RN 24/ N ERABE - ENH
R-ERAEEZIZMIEE - Bt AR
M FBE NEHAEBE LED B R ERIA RS - E
FRER ) AEE T MEVSEMRAR © BRItLASN -
RER B LR E 8 2 KT 2= 3 R AR DARVE BE TR R
FERBEKRF AEEZEXEFTERRER
FYIEFITKER - AREREE RIE)5KEEN
Wi THEBER AR

BT HEBEEERB

AEE+HERZFEERMEBERIER -
HMEZBAEREME  EERMANEEZSRR
BEB BT A EBAR - BURFIBEEHKM
5 ARECREBERZEZARARERERRF
BRMRAEEEETRFAER  UBRETHA
FZERAREZBRRNIER

AEERAFEAN—BEETHARBERZNAR -

BHES FRRHEEEZBE

EEEREEIRARNREEERE HARKY
ERER-FR—RZBLOBIMET  HMAE
TREAZRFNEMN  WiRHEEEIEE IR
BITHEE - HAIMEBBERRIRMSE TER
PR ZESI PRI EREFM O KB TREH
ZETIFRE -

AEEBEZ T BT BRES L ERKERE -
EREXRGHER  RAIREATPIRHEH
EERRZER BRAZETIRER - ALA
ERE - RFREERE  WIITPBER -

SHESMEBBRAR
—EC-CFEER
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We also established long-term good cooperation relationship with
suppliers up to over 10 years, to ensure stable supply, price and
quality of the product for our hotel operation in Macau.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 4 January 2019
(the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide return to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, among others, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans, liquidity position, Shareholders’
interests, general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group and other factors that the Board deems
appropriate. Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to
be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to
the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 132 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2022 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately HK$5,540,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as
below:
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2022 2020 2019 2018
—¥-C —T=% —T-nE ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHBL FHET FET BT
Revenue & 1,973,133 2,055,879 2,634,417 3,039,228 3,093,546
Profit before taxation BB AR F 141,840 275,938 589,826 1,230,664 1,607,105
Profit for the year attributable  AQ G #HHB A
to owners of the Company JE 4 45 PO T 44,742 56,253 503,062 1,001,927 1,348,626
Total assets BEME 27,414,803 30,225,782 31905896 35292916 37,594,895
Total liabilities BREE (6,766,415)  (9,002,965) (10,133,043) (13,747,276) (16,955,535)
Non-controlling interests FEE R - - - (23,599) (15,606)
Total equity attributable to V/NEIEF =N
owners of the Company [EhERBTE 20,648,388 21222817 21772853 21522041 20,623,754
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SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in Notes 33 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Share Options Scheme

The original share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004 expired
on 6 June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 20 August 2013, Shareholders have approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, and/or providing benefits
to participants. To determine the eligibility of the participant, the
Board may offer to grant an option to any participant who has
contribution to the Group.

For share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are
subject to such terms and conditions as it may be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and specified in the offer of a
share option. The terms and conditions may include: (i) vesting
conditions which must be satisfied before a share option holder’s
shall become vested and capable of being exercised; and (ii) the
Board may, in its absolute discretion, specify performance
conditions that must be achieved before a share option can be
exercised, and/or the minimum period for which a share option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The share option price will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and notified to a share option holder. The
minimum share option price shall not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any share options to be granted under any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the
Company in issue at the adoption date. Share options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
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With the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, the Board
may “refresh” the 10% limit provided that the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company under the limit
as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date on which the Shareholders approve the
“refreshed” limit. Share options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and share option granted under any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company, including those
outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the relevant scheme, or exercised share option will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders, grant share
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular to the
Shareholders containing a generic description of the specified
participants who may be granted such share options, the number
and terms of such share options to be granted and the purpose of
granting such share options to the specified participants with an
explanation of how the terms of the share options will serve the
purpose. The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. No share option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and no share option may be granted under any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The Board shall not grant any share option to any participant which,
if exercised, would result in such participant becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares of the Company as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares of the Company already
issued or to be issued to him under all share option granted to him
(including those share option exercised and unexercised) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the approval date.

The Board may grant options to any participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period with the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting (with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting). In such situation, the Company
will send a circular to the Shareholders and the circular must disclose
the identity of the participant, the number and terms of the share
options to be granted (and previously granted to such participant).
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Share options under the Share Option Scheme which is vested and
has not lapsed may be exercised at any time during such period
notified by the Board as not exceeding 10 years from the date of
grant. The exercise of share options may also be subject to any
conditions imposed by the Board at date of grant.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Company had
no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Other than the Share Options Scheme as disclosed in the above
paragraphs headed “Share Options Schemes”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the financial year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that the directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any) as
they shall incur or sustain through their own willful neglect or
default respectively.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares of the Company on prorate basis to existing of
the Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho

Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Man Tak

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty

Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, Mr. Ho
Chi Ho and Mr. Lau Man Tak will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Lau Man Tak, Ms. Lo,
Miu Sheung Betty and Mr. Chiu Sing Nang, Kenny an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company still considers the independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 69, holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Accounting and a Master’'s degree of Business Administration
from the Louisiana State University. He has more than 25 years
experience in corporate finance, foreign exchange, lending,
securities and futures trading industries. He is a responsible officer
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in
securities) and 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities.
He is the spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and the father of Mr. Chu,
Kingston Chun Ho. He joined the Group in February 2006.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 63, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of the
Group, she has over 20 years of experience in financial services
industry. Mrs. Chu is a member of National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, vice president of Belt
and Road General Chamber of Commerce, permanent member of
the Friends of Hong Kong Association, founder and permanent
honorary chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies, permanent honorary president and vice chairman of
The Institute of Securities Dealers, vice chairman of Hong Kong
Securities Professionals Association, standing chairman of
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
chief president of the Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan
Associations, honorary citizen of Dongguan (2022), permanent
honorary chairman of Federation of Hong Kong Zhuhai Community,
chairman of Aplichau Promotion of Tourism Association, chairman
of The Aplichau KaiFong Welfare Association, honorary president
of Hong Kong Army Cadets Association, honorary president of
Hong Kong New Arrivals Services Foundation Limited and director
of Sun Yat-Sen University Advisory Board. She was the chairman
(2015-2016) and advisory board member (2016-2017) of Po Leung
Kuk. Mrs. Chu received an Honorary Ph.D. Degree in Business
Management from York University, the USA and holds a Bachelor
Degree of Science in Management from Golden Gate University,
the USA. Mrs. Chu is currently the chairman and an Executive
Director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited which is a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She is
also the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and the mother of Mr.
Chu, Kingston Chun Ho. She joined the Group in April 2005.
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Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho, aged 37, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chu is also a licensed person under Securities and
Futures Ordinance for type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities for the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Kingston Securities Limited and Kingston
Corporate Finance Limited respectively. Representative of Kingston
Futures Limited in Financial Services functional constituency. Mr. Chu
is a Member of Guangxi Committee of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Member of General Committee of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Vice President of Hong
Kong CPPCC Youth Association, Vice Director of Youth Committee of
HKCPPCC (Provincial) Members Association, Vice President of
Federation of HK Guangxi Community Organisations, Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Guangdong Youth Association, Honorary Chairman of
Hong Kong Guangxi Youth Organisations and The Founding
Chairman of Youth Committee of Hong Kong Federation of Dongguan
Associations. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of Science in
Business Administration from the University of Southern California in
the U.S.A. Mr. Chu is also an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sincere HK”) since 29 May
2012 and 26 November 2021 respectively and the Chairman and an
Executive Director of ISP Holdings Limited (formerly known as
“Synergis Holdings Limited”) since 9 March 2017, both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is the
son of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah. Mr. Chu
joined the Group in July 2010 and was appointed as Executive
Director on 21 August 2015.

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and execution of corporate
finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity
and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in banking
and capital markets, and also held senior positions in corporate
management in Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Ho had also been
an Executive Director of China Water Industry Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since May
2019, re-designated to Non-executive Director on 19 October 2020
and resigned from the position on 29 June 2021. Mr. Ho holds a
Master degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Accounting and Finance) from The
University of Hong Kong. He is registered as a Responsible Officer
under the Securities and Future Ordinance for Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had worked with the
Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August 2011. He was
appointed as Executive Director on 2 January 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”), aged 52, holds a Bachelor Degree
of Arts in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Lau is currently a non-
executive director and chairman of REF Holdings Limited; and an
independent non-executive director of ISP Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Synergis Holdings Limited), both listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an executive director and
chairman of TEM Holdings Limited (“TEM”) since 2015 and was
redesignated as director in January 2021 upon the withdrawal of
the listing of TEM by way of privatization. He joined the Group in
October 2005. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited since February
2019 until his resignation upon its cancellation of listing on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 13 July 2021.

Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty (“Ms. Lo"), aged 60, is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 33 years of experience in
general legal practice, with specialisation in conveyancing,
commercial and probate laws. Ms. Lo has been in active practice
since qualification and is currently a consultant of Messrs. K.C. Ho
& Fong, Solicitors & Notaries. She graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Laws (LL.B.) in 1985. She
also holds a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL). Ms. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited since 19 June 2012. She has been an Independent non-
executive director of AEON Stores (Hong Kong) Co., Limited since
8 November 2013 until her resignation on 1 January 2022.The
securities of all of these companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. She joined the Group in September 2016.
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Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 60, has over 30
years of experience in accounting. Mr. Chiu has held various
senior accounting and finance positions in sectors of property
investment and development, and information technology
development business. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. Mr.
Chiu received a Master of Accountancy degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 2006, a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the Peking University, the People’s Republic of China
in July 1998, a degree of Master of Commerce in Accounting from
The University of New South Wales, Australia in May 1989, a
Bachelor of Administrative Studies degree and a Bachelor of Arts
(Economics) degree from the York University, Canada in June
1986 and June 1985 respectively. He is currently an executive
director of Kin Shing Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive director of Keyne Limited, Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited. Affluent Partners Holdings Limited and Coolpad Group
Limited, all companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in August 2019.

Senior Management

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 53, joined the Company and its
subsidiaries on 30 April 2018 and is the Chief Operating Officer
and the Company Secretory of the Company. He obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong, a
Master of Laws degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Accountancy degree from Charles Sturt University in
Australia and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lui is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is also an
associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute and The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. He has over 30 years
of experience in finance and property industry. Mr. Lui held senior
positions at a number of Hong Kong companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lui currently is a non-executive director of CMMB
Vision Holdings Limited (stock code: 471), listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8047), listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Ko Leong, aged 34, joined the Group in May 2022 and is the
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Ko holds a bachelor
degree of Business Administration in Accounting with honors from
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ko is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ko has worked
for two International accounting firms and several listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Ko has over 10 years of professional experience
in financial management and auditing.

Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 61, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr. Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialised in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a responsible officer
under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activities. He joined the Group in October
1996.

Mr. Chan Kwun Wah Derek, aged 51, is the Managing Director of
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited. He is principally engaged in
leading and planning investment banking and financial
consultation services, including IPO sponsorship, structured
finance, merger & acquisitions, asset restructuring and corporate
governance advisory. He has earned over 22 years of experience
from a few renowned securities firms and global financial
institutions. He holds a Master of Business Administration in the UK
and a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration in Canada. He
is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance for Type 1 & 6 activities. Mr. Chan is a Non-
executive Director of DL Holdings Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 27 March 2020.
Mr. Chan was also a Non-executive Director of JIMU Group
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, since 8
October 2020 until his resignation on 30 June 2021. Mr. Chan had
worked with the Group from 2004 to 2008 and rejoined in January
2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2014, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All of the Non-executive Directors have executed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year which
commenced on 1 April 2022, and subject to compliance with
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors are interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party in which any of the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year ended 31 March 2022 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 March 2022, the following of the Directors had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:

Long positions in the issued shares of the Company:

Number of shares
of the Company
XA RBEE
Personal Corporate

Name of the Directors Interests Interests

EEHA

BA Rz DA

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah -
FAEZT

10,157,205,895
(Note 1)
(Btat 1)

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2022, 10,157,205,895 shares of the Company are
held by Active Dynamic Limited which is controlled by Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah (“Mrs. Chu”).

2. As at 31 March 2022, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 3,750,000,000 convertible preference shares of the Company
conferring rights to subscribe for up to HK$3,000,000,000 in
aggregate in cash for 3,750,000,000 new shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.80 (subject to adjustments) per share.
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Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any of the Director or the Chief Executive of the Company or
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2022 was the Company or any of its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors
or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued shares of the
Company:

Number of shares
of the Company
ARARGBHEE
Personal Corporate

Name of Shareholders Interests Interests

BRERERE, HH

PN DA

Active Dynamic Limited - 10,157,205,895

(Note 1)(Bfst 1)
Note:

1. Active Dynamic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mrs.
Chu. The interests of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the
Company are stated under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive'’s interests and short positions in securities” above.

Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2022.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits scheme of the
Group are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1.

Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions in
Relation to Provision of Financial Services

The term of the Previous Financial Services Agreement expired
on 31 March 2020. In order for the Group to continue to
provide financial services to the Chu & Li's Family and their
respective associates (where applicable), on 1 April 2020,
Kingston Securities has entered into the 2020 Financial
Services Agreement with the Chu & Li's Family for provision of
financial services for a term of three years commencing from 1
April 2020 to 31 March 2023.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 1
April 2020.

Continuing Connected Transactions in Relation
to Provision of Financial Services

On 21 September 2020, Kingston Securities has entered into
the Financial Services Agreements with the Relevant Directors
for provision of financial services to the Relevant Directors and
their respective associates (where applicable) for a term
commencing from 21 September 2020 to 31 March 2023.

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
21 September 2020.

Other Connected Transactions

Details of other connected transactions entered into by the
Company during the year are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of events after the reporting period are set out in Note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 of the
Company have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
B ZBENRE

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EATHER1R
JKZRHI>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to 268, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOODWILL

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As a result of the Group’s acquisition of Kingston Capital Asia
Limited in April 2011, the Group recognised a goodwill of
approximately HK$10,997 million relating to the cash-generating
units allocated for the businesses of Kingston Capital Asia Limited
and its subsidiaries including the provisions of securities dealings,
underwriting and placements, margin and initial public offering
(“IPO”) financing and corporate finance advisory services to its
clients.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the management concluded
that no provision of impairment loss of goodwill shall be
recognised. This conclusion was based on the assessment of
recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating units by
using the value in use calculations derived from the most recent
budget plan approved by the management. The preparation of
budget plan involves the exercise of significant judgement and
estimation uncertainty, particularly in estimating the discount rate
and future revenue growth rate applied in the value in use
calculations. Independent qualified professional valuer was
engaged by the management to support the impairment
assessment of goodwill.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter because of the significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty involved in the determination of recoverable amounts
and the carrying amount of goodwill is significant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUD'T MATTERS (continued)
IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOODWILL (continued)
Our response:

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill included:

— Evaluating the competence, experience, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified professional valuer
engaged by the management to perform the value in use
calculations of the relevant cash generating units;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
and estimates adopted in the value in use calculations based
on our knowledge of the businesses and third party
information available to us;

— Reconciling the key input data to supporting evidence of the
value in use calculations provided by the management, such
as approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets;

— Evaluating the sensitivity of the impairment assessment in
terms of changing the key assumptions and estimates used,
and

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us in
assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and estimates used in the value in use
calculations.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING

Refer to Notes 22 and 41(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on Note 4(g)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2022, the total gross carrying amount of advances
to customers in margin financing was approximately HK$19,456
million.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of expected credit loss
(“ECL”) of approximately HK$5,708 million was recognised in
relation to the advances to customers in margin financing.
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INDEPENDENT AUD*IT”UR S REPOF
B ZEEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING (continued)

In assessing the ECL on the individual balances of advances to
customers in margin financing, the management performed the
assessment based on their historical credit loss experience,
adjusted to factors that are specific to the margin clients, general
economic conditions and forecast of future conditions at the end of
reporting period. The management also reviews the fair value of
pledged securities received from the margin clients. The
methodologies and assumptions used in the impairment
assessment of advances to customers in margin financing are
reviewed regularly by the management to reduce the differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

We identified the impairment assessment of advances to
customers in margin financing as a key audit matter because of
the significant judgement and estimation uncertainty involved in
the determination of ECL on the individual balances of advances to
customers in margin financing at the end of reporting period.
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TOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) RAREZEE )

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF ADVANCES TO BEFEBMNRIBLSBMERET G @)
CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN FINANCING (continued)

Our response: KMz EFE :

Our key audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment ~ H 1B RS- 2 HRE S & B E G 2 B
of advances to customers in margin financing included: BIZEFBE

—  Examining the underlying documentation and key assumptions
and estimates used in the impairment assessment of advances
to customers in margin financing by the management on a
sample basis, and assessing the future cash flows of
repayments and the fair value of pledged securities for all
impaired balances of advances to customers in margin
financing;

—  Challenging the management’s assessment and expectation
of the possible outcomes on the recoverability of the
individual balances of advances to customers in margin
financing, the fair value of pledged securities and future cash
flows of repayments against our understanding of the latest
situation and the principal activities of the pledged securities
by reading the public announcements and other available
information to us; and

—  Evaluating, together with our internal valuation specialists,
the reasonableness and appropriateness of the impairment
assessment model and the critical assumptions, inputs and
parameters used in the model.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
B ZEEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional missions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

—  Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
B ZEEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (continued)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Tsz Hung

Practising Certificate Number P0O6693

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reBnlEMERE NS

D—T— —

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE—-ZT——

FZA=T—HLEE

2022 2021
—E—= =
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE THT FHIT
Revenue & 7
Securities brokerage, underwriting B - kS
and placements commission income & WA 158,770 68,628
Margin and IPO financing RIS RBRORAEE
interest income EENBWA 1,729,866 1,938,035
Other financial services income Hih & @ AR TS A 24,491 12,538
Room and other rental income EEREMBSUA 32,550 26,379
Food and beverage revenue B M aoeH s 19,229 18,192
Gaming revenue H W 8,227 (7,893)
1,973,133 2,055,879
Other income H A 8 17,095 25,433
1,990,228 2,081,312
Inventories consumed FERTFE (10,034) (8,875)
Staff costs BTA 9 (163,606) (165,864)
Gaming commission BEAE (39,488) (46,383)
Broker commission R (41,362) (9,398)
Interest expenses for securities A& BEEES
brokerage, underwriting and REBES AN E IR
placements, margin and NHRBEMEER
IPO financing operations ZH B (138,150) (192,600)
Depreciation of property, VI - BB R REITE
plant and equipment (131,719) (148,594)
Impairment losses on advances to AEFPBNREEHE
customers in margin financing REEE 22 (1,138,519) (1,135,914)
Other expenses HfAs (133,444) (92,109)
(1,796,322) (1,799,737)
Finance income & U A 9,870 7,820
Finance costs & R AR 10 (36,146) (37,591)
Change in fair value of financial assets ERAFEFABZEZ &RIEE
at fair value through profit or loss Z N EEE) (26,483) 23,337
Exchange gains P 5 a 693 797
(52,066) (5,637)
Profit before taxation B T BT Al 12 141,840 275,938
Taxation BIE 11 (97,098) (219,685)
Profit for the year FERNBF 44,742 56,253
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S AT

N

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZ

H b2 E IR &

== —gEE H =[5 EEE

ES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Profit for the year FREF 44,742 56,253
Other comprehensive income HpZEBA 15
ltem that will not be reclassified to BreENHEEEBmcEE

profit or loss:
Deficit on revaluation of leasehold EHHEETHREF B

land and buildings, net of tax T FEEE (642,538) (432,662)
ltems that may be reclassified HigngEfnBsEmcEE ¢

subsequently to profit or loss:
Release of exchange reserve upon B &8 1 BIEUH sE & SN 18

deregistration of a subsidiary B [al 23,403 -
Change in fair value of financial assets  #Z A F{EET A B 2 E WA

at fair value through other LEMEECNTEED

comprehensive income (36) 18
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEKRA

for the year (619,171) (432,644)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEBALR

for the year (574,429) (376,391)
Earnings per share BRER (FREWL)

(HK cents per share) 14

— Basic - YN 0.26 0.32

— Diluted — 0.26 0.32

SRR (2



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR

AS el VEeh 2022 is=si==4= B =r— [

2022 2021
—E—— =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THBIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R &EE 18 1,626,854 2,398,966
Statutory deposits for financial CRRBER ZETIZRS
services business 4114 5,554
Goodwill fEES 19 10,996,683 10,996,683
12,627,651 13,401,203
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 1,763 2,055
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMZEEA
other comprehensive income L EREE 122 158
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAERZ
profit or loss SREE 21 91,001 124,323
Advances to customers in AEPARBLRE
margin financing 22 13,747,328 14,368,830
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H ih FEULBE 3L 23 68,336 72,587
Tax recoverable A Y [B] 7 18 1,350 59,113
Bank deposits for guarantee MERFAERITER 25 78,667 77,817
Cash and bank balances Re NIBITEER
— held on behalf of customers — REFHEHA 24 552,603 1,156,487
Cash and bank balances Re NIBITEER
— general accounts — —RERP 25 245,982 963,209
14,787,152 16,824,579
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B o5 REAMEMNIRER 26 708,247 1,307,552
Amounts due to shareholders FERT IR R FRIB 27 3,994,523 4,594,523
Loan from a related company TE—FREEATER 28 767,276 1,658,343
Subordinated loans BEER 29 700,000 700,000
Bank loans RITER 30 440,000 560,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 31 27,423 31,328
Tax payable JER I 20,079 1,762
6,657,548 8,853,508
Net current assets REBEEFE 8,129,604 7,971,071
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARSE 20,757,255 21,372,274
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FREMBHRRE

AS i3 Ve 2022 jA=ei= =kE= B = — [

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HESE 31 52,120 -
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFRIBEEE 34 56,747 149,457
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEHEE 108,867 149,457
Total liabilities BEAE 6,766,415 9,002,965
Net assets EEBE 20,648,388 21,222,817
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital — ordinary shares AR — Ik 35 272,290 272,290
Share capital — non-redeemable IR — 7] BB = AT AR
convertible preference shares BEHERR 35 75,000 75,000
Reserves G 36 20,301,098 20,875,527
Total equity ERAE 20,648,388 21,222,817

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to 268 were £ 128 %268 E 2GS M BBEAN B - ZF X
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the A =+ /\BEARAIEZHIERKERZE - I

Company on 28 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf by: AU TATRERESZ
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KRW ZRE

Director Director

EF BF



CUNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[\\/ DM

=l N A "'
1; /\Il‘nééb%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZ=—ZE=-——F=A=+—HItEE

Share
capital —
non-
Share redeemable
capital —  convertible Share Capital Property Exchange
ordinary  preference premium redemption Contributed revaluation FVOCI  fluctuation Retained Total
shares shares account reserve surplus reserve reserve* reserve earnings equity
RE— RATEA
BA— R KE Hit2E
EER TRARELR ROBER ZAREHEE BARK NEERREE  WARE REEA ERLE
(Note 35) (Note 35) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)
( 5) ( 6) (1 6)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T
At 1 April 2020 R-B-Z£MA-A 272,290 75,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,581,068 1,052 (23,169)  8,125352 21,772,853
Profit for the year FREA - - - - - - - - 56,253 56,253
Other comprehensive income FREMEZERA
for the year - - - - - (432,662) 18 - - (432,644)
Total comprehensive income FRR2ERAEE
for the year - - - - - (432662) 18 - 56253 (376,391)
Realised upon depreciation HETHRETER
on revaluation of leasehold land AT EFHER
and buildings - - - - - (52,394) - - 52,394 -
Dividend paid (Notes 13) BRRE(HF#13) - - - - - - - - (173645)  (173,645)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£=A=+-H 272,290 75000 11,739,980 466 814 1,096,012 1,070 (23,169) 8,060,354 21,222,817
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 44,742 44,742
Other comprehensive income FREMZERA
for the year - - - - - (642,538) (36) 23,403 - (619,171)
Total comprehensive income FREERAEE
for the year - - - - - (642,538) (36) 23,403 44,742 (574,429)
Realised upon depreciationon ~ HELHRETFER
revaluation of leasehold land RTERER
and buildings - - - - - (37,340) - - 37,340 -
At 31 March 2022 R-B--&£=A=+-H 272,290 75,000 11,739,980 466 814 416,134 1,034 234 8,142,436 20,648,388

*

comprehensive income reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HZ=—ZT=——F=A=+—HItEE

Cash flows from operating activities

2022
———

S

HK$000
TER

REXRTERERE

— B
HK$'000
T

Profit before taxation M AR 141,840 275,938
Adjustments for: TR IEEE A

Finance costs BB AR 10 36,146 37,591
Finance income BMEBA (9,870) (7,820)
Dividend income B B U 8 (783) (478)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% « BERRETE 18 131,719 148,594
Provision of impairment losses on trade and ~ sHEE 5 R EMEKEZ

other receivables, net BT 23 11,579 853
Impairment losses on advances to AEPANRESHE

customers in margin financing HEERE 22 1,138,519 1,135,914
Change in fair value of financial BRATEFABRZ

assets at fair value through EREEZ

profit or loss NEEES 26,483 (23,337)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary included 5t A H4th B 7 B B A 7IEUH

in other expenses HEE 23,403 -
Operating profit before working BEESEHHH 2 EE BT

capital changes 1,499,036 1,567,255
Decrease in inventories FERD 292 392
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ

through profit or loss SREERD 6,839 37,388
Decrease/(increase) in statutory deposits CRRBEB LT RS

for financial services business WA /() 1,440 (1,338)
(Increase)/decrease in advances to customers AIEFPHHRESHE

in margin financing and trade and KRB S REM

other receivables FEMRER R (3 0) /R 2 (524,345) 869,871
Decrease/(increase) in cash and bank balances I8 & MR 174 84

— held on behalf of customers —REPEHARD /(8N 603,884 (310,143)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and g5 R EMEMEZRCRD),/ i

other payables (599,305) 317,325
Cash generated from operations KSR ILFRSIH G 987,841 2,480,750
Income tax paid ERFT{5H (26,110) (48,319)
Net cash generated from operating activities & %K FMEBHRLTE 961,731 2,432,431

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property,

D s

REEBFREHEAE
REVE - BE R

FZA=T—HLEE

2022
—E-_—F

HK$000
TER

—E-—fF
HK$'000
THT

plant and equipment H i 18 (6,807) (1,404)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BER

plant and equipment A FT550A - 270
Interest received BUFI S 9,870 7,820
Dividend received B AR S 783 478
Placement of bank deposits for guarantee HRERAEERITER (850) (77,817)
Net cash generated from/(used) in RETBHRE /(A RLFE

investing activities 2,996 (70,653)
Cash flows from financing activities METBHRERERE 39
Advances from shareholders BRI - 200,000
Repayments to shareholders EEBRRIE (600,000) -
Advance from a related company e CUNCIESE 4 2,056,019 1,451,105
Repayment to a related company Al—REERFER (2,947,086) (2,506,908)
Proceeds from bank loans RITERASHIE 5,830,000 9,770,000
Repayments of bank loans BEERTER (5,950,000) (10,260,000)
Repayments of interest portion on ERESAENSHS

lease liabilities (796) (2,241)
Repayments of principal portion on EEEEREALSHD

lease liabilities (34,741) (34,448)
Interest paid 2AA S (35,350) (35,350)
Dividend paid BERRE 13 - (173,645)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEMARSTE (1,681,954) (1,591,487)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRkREEEER

cash equivalents CR) /B hnsaE (717,227) 770,291
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNBRESREELEEER

of year 963,209 192,918
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year FABRERHREEEHER 25 245,982 963,209
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kingston Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The address of
the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and 72/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company’s parent is Active Dynamic Limited (“Active
Dynamic”) and the directors of the Company (the “Director”)
consider its ultimate holding company is Active Dynamic.
Active Dynamic is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI").

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries include: (i) securities
brokerage, underwriting and placements; (ii) margin and
initial public offering (“IPO”) financing; (iii) other financial
services; (iv) hotel operations; (v) food and beverage; (vi)
gaming; and (vii) securities investment.
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NOTES T0 THE CUNSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

N 7

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are

136

mandatorily effective for the current year
During the year, the Group has adopted for the first
time the following new or revised HKFRSs, including
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations (the “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
which are mandatorily effective for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

The adoption of new or revised HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 did not have any significant impact
on the Group’s accounting policies, financial position
and financial performance for the current and prior
years and/or the disclosures set out in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

2 HEMBEMBREEN(EEM
HE|ELER )

2.1

BN FEEREERZFHTRE
CHENCLE E e

FR AEEBHIRPO NI BESE
SR AEEMm_T - —FMA—H=%
ZRRABZ R E R AR ZHET
NEBRI BB B MEER - BIEER
BB REER - BESFER RE
B RGBT AMIBERELE
Al

BEGIERE 9% FlrEenE

TEMBREENELR . —FRE

RBURREENET

BB REENE KR

BEMBREERE 165

(1B3TA)

SIS ENE 165 THBRREHEE

(1B3TA) kA ks

BIEREERE 165, “E--FXA=TH

(BFTA) BOFEERRS
HERSEE

RORN—_F-_—FHA—HEZER
9h 2 U E R ) AR 2 BT AT R (e
RIAEMBREENHAEEAFE
MBEFE 2 EFTEER - MBI &
MBERAR,/ IARBEA I BERER
B BEMNEATE -
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on
the date they become effective.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
related Amendments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual
Framework’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of

HKAS 28 Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

and the related amendments

to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs Standards HKFRSs 2018-2020"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BmRM

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be relevant to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5
(2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mARME

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary.

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ERR T

2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BFRMNEBMEBREFEAN(EEY

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHmEER ] @
(continued)
2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been 22 CHEMEMKRERZHTREE

A BBMBHREER @)

ERUEBREEN -_SE-—NE=-EZ
ZFRAHFERE

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The annual improvements amends a number of FENEHZIELEABETIER - B -

standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.
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The directors of the Company are in the process of
making an assessment of what the impact of these new
or revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of
initial adoption. Up to date when the consolidated
financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors of the Company, the
directors of the Company did not aware of any aspect
of these new or revised HKFRSs which are likely to
have a significant impact on the preparation or
presentation on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MmN

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 4.

Use of critical accounting judgements and
estimations

When the directors of the Company prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs, it requires the use of critical accounting
judgements and estimations with reference to historical
experience and various factors that are believed to be
reasonable on the application of the accounting
policies, which involved key sources of estimation
uncertainty and significant risks of causing material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities presented in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements when those areas have a higher
degree of judgements or complexity of estimations
since the actual results may differ from these
judgements or estimations when it is not readily
apparent from other sources. As a result, the directors
of the Company review, on an ongoing basis, to revise
for any changes of those critical accounting
judgements and estimations, and recognise in the
period when it is revised or in the period of the revision
and the future periods as if the revision affects both.
Details of the critical accounting judgements and
estimations that have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are further
disclosed in Note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BmRM

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates
of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR ImRRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBE#

(continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of (a) 2BEREAEE®

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in losses of control are accounted for as
equity transactions between the equity owners of the
Company and non-controlling interests. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
a separate reserve within the equity and attributed to
owners of the Group.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal of the subsidiary is calculated
as the difference between: (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest held; and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as it would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

14

(continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists,
the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

o The size of the Company'’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

o Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and
o Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at costs less
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent assets or liabilities, if any, exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess amount is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after the reassessment.

Goodwill is measured at costs less impairment losses,
if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to be
benefited from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount against its
recoverable amount (see Note 4(i) for the definition of
recoverable amount), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit on
pro-rata basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will
not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher amount. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in the
subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBER#®
(continued)
(¢) Goodwill (continued) (c) BmEw

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of value in use calculation of the relevant
cash generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated, derived from the most recent budget plan
approved by the management. The preparation of
budget plan requires the management to exercise
significant judgement and estimation uncertainty to
estimate the future cash flows expected to be derived
from the relevant cash-generating units, discounted to
their respective present value by using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of time value of money and risks specific
to the relevant cash-generating units in the value in use
calculation.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated at revaluation amount less accumulated
depreciation. Fair value of leasehold land and buildings
is determined at the end of each reporting periods by
an independent qualified professional valuer.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of the leasehold land
and buildings does not differ materially from which
would be determined by using the fair values at the end
of each reporting periods.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity under
the heading of property revaluation reserve. The
exceptions from the above accounting treatment are
listed as follows:

(a) when a deficit arises on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings, it will be charged to profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the carrying
amount already recognised in the property
revaluation reserve in respect of the revaluation
performed earlier on the same leasehold land and
buildings immediately prior to the revaluation; and
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4

(continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

FESHBEX @
(d) % - - BERSE®

(b) when a surplus arises on revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings, it will be credited to profit or
loss to the extent that a deficit arises on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings in
respect of the revaluation performed earlier on the
same leasehold land and buildings which had
been previously charged to profit or loss and
thereafter to the property revaluation reserve.

An annual transfer from the property revaluation reserve
to retained earnings is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost. Upon the disposal of leasehold
land and buildings, the relevant portion of the property
revaluation reserve realised in respect of the revaluation
performed earlier on the leasehold land and buildings
is released from the property revaluation reserve to
retained earnings on the date of disposal of the
leasehold land and buildings.

Other categories of property, plant and equipment are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The costs of
property, plant and equipment included its purchase
price and expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the property, plant
and equipment will flow to the Group and the costs of
the property, plant and equipment can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
expenditures are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their costs or revaluation amount, net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciated method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
periods. The useful lives of different categories of
property, plant and equipment are listed as follows:

— Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired
term of lease of the related leasehold land

—  Buildings situated on the leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease of the related leasehold land
and the estimated useful lives of the buildings,
being no more than 50 years after the
completion date of construction

— Right-of-use assets represent the leased office
premises in Hong Kong are depredated over
the unexpired term of the related lease
(see Note 4(e) for detailed accounting policies)

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture, 10%-50%
fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles 20%—-33%

—  Yacht 10%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment, and is recognised in
profit or loss on date of disposal of the item.

If any leasehold land and buildings becomes an
investment property because of its intention of use has
been changed as evidenced by the end of its intention
as owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that leasehold
land and buildings at the date of change of intention of
use is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the equity. On the date of
subsequent sales or retirement of the leasehold land
and buildings, the relevant property revaluation reserve
will be transferred directly to retained earnings.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR ImRRME

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBEXR#
(continued)
(e) Leasing (e) HE

Accounting as a lessee

At the inception date of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract, or part of the
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of use, has both:
(a) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from the use of the identified asset; and (b) the
right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
a lessee shall allocate the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group has separated the non-lease components
from the lease components on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise: (i)
leases which are short-term leases; and/or (ii) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term of
12 months or less and do not contain a purchase
option. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BmRM

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESHBXRw
(continued)
(e) Leasing (continued) (e) HE®
Accounting as a lessee (continued) EABRBAZETER®)
Right-of-use assets EHEEE

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease contracts,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
Group applies the revaluation model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use assets at costs, less any accumulated
deprecation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability. The right-of-
use asset is deprecated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of a
leasehold land and buildings held for own use, they are
carried at revalued amount.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings that were
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose would
continue to be accounted for under HKAS 40 and
would be carried at fair value.

Other than the above right-of-use assets, the Group
also has leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its judgement
and determines that it is a separate class of asset apart
from the leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use. As a result, the right-of-use assets arising
from the leased properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Leasing (continued)

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted by using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as an alternative.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured by
using the index or a rate as at commencement date of
the lease; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date of the lease,
the Group shall measure the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications, e.g. a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or a rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBE#

(continued)
(e) Leasing (continued)

(e) HEw@®

15

Accounting as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets whenever: (i) the lease term has changed or
there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments by using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment; and (ii) the lease payments change
due to changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments by using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if: (i) the modification increases the
scope of the lease by adding the right-to-use one or
more underlying assets; and (ii) the consideration for
the leases increases by an amount commensurate with
the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any
appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to
reflect the circumstances of a particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the lease modification.

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring the deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises the
right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group firstly determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately.
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wra B 1% #&% B 7 R

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at the
lease inception whether each of the lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each of the components on a relative
stand-alone price basis.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group has leased out minor area of its leasehold
land and buildings to a number of tenants as the lessor
of operating leases. When the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor by leasing out its leasehold land
and buildings to tenants, the Group is required to
classify the sublease arrangement as a finance lease or
an operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, instead of only with
reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption criteria, then the Group classifies the
sublease as an operating lease.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTBEXR#
(continued)
(e) Leasing (continued) (e) HE®
Accounting as a lessor EREAAZETEE
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

15

U]

(9)

Inventories

Inventories represents food and beverage and hotel
operating suppliers used in the hotel located in Macau.
They are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-
in first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets,
depending on the purpose for which the asset
was acquired.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(M

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment losses, if any, are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment losses, if any, are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

156

U

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment’s FVOCI. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL”") on trade receivables
and other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all of contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all of the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and always recognises life time ECLs for trade
receivables. For ECLs that are assessed
collectively, the Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the loss allowances will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

158

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

o existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under the ECL model mainly for trade receivables
and other categories of financial assets measured
at amortised cost, which are past due over 90
days based on the positive repayment records for
those customers or counterparties having a
continuous business with the Group. They are
assessed either collectively based on provision
matrix for trade receivables or individually for
other categories of financial assets measured at
amortised cost with reference to the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is more than 180 days past due; or
(iii) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the counterparty; or (iv) a breach of contract,
such as a default or past due event, or (v) the
lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or (vi) it is
becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or (vii) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
periods in order to reflect changes in the financial
assets’ credit risk since their initial recognition.
Any changes in the ECL amounts that is
recognised as provisions or reversals of loss
allowances in profit loss. The Group recognises a
provision or reversal of loss allowances for all
categories of financial assets at amortised cost
with a corresponding adjustment to its carrying
amount through the usage of loss allowances
account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial assets.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

160

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the written
off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of loss allowances in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, amounts due to
shareholders, loan from a related company,
subordinated loans, bank loans and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date when the financial liability or
part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the settlement occurs.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amount and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

162

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank
and on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in nominal value, within three months of
maturity since its acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are subject to ECL assessment in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note

4(g)(ii).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets,
including property, plant and equipment under cost
model, right-of-use assets and interests in subsidiaries,
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of a non-
financial asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the non-financial asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant non-financial asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

@

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the non-financial asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the non-financial asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant non-financial asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the relevant non-
financial asset or cash generating units discounted to
their respective present value by using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of time value of money and risks specific
to the relevant non-financial asset or cash generating
units.

Employee benefits

(a) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) including
salaries, discretionary bonus, annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits
that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render
the related services. The related salaries and
other benefits are recognised in profit or loss
when the employees render the related services.
When the payments are deferred to the settled
and the effect of time value of money is material,
it should be stated at the present value.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

1)

Employee benefits (continuea)

(b)

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
both employer and employees are required to
make contributions to the MPF scheme based on
a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and only the proportion of the employer’s
contribution is charged to profit or loss when it is
payable in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately by the independent trustees. The
Group’s employer contribution will vest fully with
the employees contribution when it is contributed
to the MPF scheme.

For its employees employed under the jurisdiction
of Macau who were members of the Social
Security Fund operated by the Social Security
System in Macau, the Group was required to
contribute a certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries to the Social Security Fund per
month based on their employment terms and are
charged to profit or loss when they are payable in
accordance with the Social Security System in
Macau.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

@

(k)

Employee benefits (continuea)

(c) Share-based payments
When the employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in form of share-based
payment transactions regarding to the employees
(including directors) of the Group render their
services as consideration are recognised as equity
instruments. Details of background and accounting
treatment of share-based payment transactions are
set out in Notes 4(k) and 33.

(d) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services with equity-settled transactions
is measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. Share-based payments to parties other
than employees and those providing similar services with
equity-settled transactions are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received by those parties, unless
the fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group
cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received by those parties, the Group is required
to measure the fair value with reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted to those parties.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Share-based payments (continued)

166

For share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme, the fair value of the services rendered in
exchange for the share options granted is recognised
as expense in profit or loss and credited to share-
based payment reserve in the equity. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
with reference to the fair value of the share options
granted at the grant date when all of vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
periods, the Group revises its estimates for the number
of share options that are expected to be vested based
on any non-marketing performance and service
conditions indicated when the share options were
granted. The Group recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve over the remaining vesting period.
The accumulated expense will not be adjusted if it fails
to achieve any market vesting condition.

Where any terms and conditions of the share options
granted are modified before they vest, the increase in
the fair value of the share options will be measured
immediately before and after the modification and
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to the share
premium account within the equity. The proceeds
received, net of any directly attributable transaction
costs, are credited to share capital and share premium
account within the equity. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not yet exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to the
retained earnings within the equity.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

Income tax
Taxation for the year represents the sum of current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation for
financial reporting purposes as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are non-
taxable or non-deductible for tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in
which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any of the reduction is reversed
to the extent when it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

(m)

168

Income tax (continued)

Taxation are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxation are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case the
taxation are also recognised directly in equity.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which is probable that it will result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.
Where the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
sales-related taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

170

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15 “Revenue” (“HKFRS
157).

(i) Securities brokerage services

The Group provides brokerage and dealing
services of listed securities and futures contracts
to its clients. Securities brokerage income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution
date of trade at an agreed commission rate of
transaction amount of the trade executed. The
Group also provides custodian and handling
services of securities and futures clients’
accounts. The related custodian and handing
charge is recognised at a point in time on the
execution date of trade or the date when the
relevant services are rendered to its clients.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Underwriting and placements services

The Group provides underwriting and placements
services of listed securities to its clients for fund
raising activities in the recognised stock
exchanges and financial products arrangement
services. Underwriting and placements income is
recognised at a point in time at an agreed
commission rate when the relevant underwriting
and placements or financial products
arrangement services are completed in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions
of the services agreement or mandate letter
entered into between the Group and its clients.

Corporate finance advisory services

The Group provides corporate finance advisory
services on strategic matters to its clients,
including mergers and acquisitions, capital
restructuring and other corporate finance advisory
matters. The management considers that all of the
services promised in a particular service
agreement, being a corporate finance advisor, are
highly interdependent and interrelated as a single
performance obligation and there is a presence of
legally enforceable right to payment for the
performance of the promised services completed
in terms of issuing debit notes to its clients up to
date in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions of the services agreement entered into
between the Group and its clients. As a result,
corporate finance advisory service income is
recognised over time based on the stage of
completion of the promised services rendered.

Hotel operations

The management determines that for the services
agreements signed with hotel guests in respect of
the provisions of hotel room services, there is only
one performance obligation, which is the provision
of hotel room service to the hotel guests. The
management determines that the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
from the hotel room services and thus the
management concludes that the hotel room
services income should be recognised overtime.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

17

(continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

v)

(vi)

Food and beverage services

The Group operates restaurants for selling food
and beverages in the hotel. Revenue from sales
of food and beverages is recognised at a point in
time when food and beverage is sold to the
customers. There is only one performance
obligation. Sales invoices are issued when the
customers finished their meal and payments are
required to be settled at the same time.

Services provided to a gaming operator
Revenue from services provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic
gaming halls and VIP rooms in respect of the
operating performance from the gaming operator
is recognised over time when the performance
obligations are satisfied when the gaming
operator simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits from the relevant services rendered
to the gaming operator in Macau under the
services agreement signed with the gaming
operator. The Group has a legally enforceable
right to receive those services income received
based on the net monthly gaming wins of the
casinos received from the gaming operator when
the relevant services are rendered.

The management considers that the Group acts
as a principal for the relevant services provided to
the gaming operator as the Group is primarily
responsible to provide the relevant services to the
gaming operator and control the relevant services
to be rendered by the Group before the relevant
services are transferred to the gaming operator.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

4

FESHBEEX @
(n) WHEER @

v)

(vi)

B R B RE
AEBEKEER UNBESE
R - IHERMEARF 2
Wt mEFHERmMm LR 2
FREMER - B —HENE
T BEERAETERLRER
KBRS ARERR -

EEREERREZRE
kKawdis EFBEEMEER
2R 2 BATIRHIRTS O K18
FRERZEERR) 2 BaEn
—REMNER  ETENE
EREE L ERRZREILHRE
R ISR L ER AR IR
= [FRPIIE X 2 E m iR R R R
BES 2N - AEBEAGEA
HMITRF NI HARRE RIS R1E
FEERBBEEEES R FRE
SAEZZERBEA -

EEEBRR  AEERAEYE
ERREHERREZEZEA R
ARAKEEIZARRBYEE
AR AR RS - AN ARE
RIS ER =GR 2 ERmATES A
e (AR R AR5



NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\VT\

ﬁﬁkﬁlﬁ&%l}ﬁ nf

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

(vii) Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the relevant lease term.

The Group has leased out minor area of its
leasehold land and buildings to a number of
tenants as the lessor of operating leases. When
the Group acts as an intermediate lessor by
leasing out its leasehold land and buildings to
tenants under operating leases, rental income
from these sublease arrangements is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term.

(viii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount, net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

(o) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTHBE®
(continued)
(o) Foreign currencies (continued) (o) & =)

17

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary assets and liabilities, and on the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary assets and
liabilities in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

All income and expenses from the foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary assets and liabilities
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange fluctuation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9]

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which require a substantial period of time to be
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties
(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Related parties (continuea)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(q) Related parties (continued)

(r)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ monies
arising from the normal course of business of dealing in
securities and futures contracts, margin financing. The
Group has classified the clients’ monies as cash and
bank balances held on behalf of customers under the
current assets and recognised the corresponding trade
payables to the clients under the current liabilities as
the Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest
income from the clients’ monies deposited as well as it
is liable for from loss or misappropriation of clients’
monies. Under the Securities and Futures (Client
Money) Rules of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571), the Group is not allowed to use or dispose
of the clients’ monies to settle its own financial
obligations.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(s) Fiduciary activities

Apart from the clients’ monies maintained by the Group,
the Group also provides securities brokerage, futures
brokerage, margin and IPO financing services to
customers and the Group acts, in a fiduciary capacity,
which results in holding or placing of assets on behalf
of its customers. These assets and any gains or losses
arising thereon are not included in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no contractual
rights to these assets and its gains or losses under the
fiduciary activities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to both
directors and key management of the Company
(together as “Chief Operating Decision Marker”), who is
responsible to monitor the results individually for
making decisions of resources allocation and
performance assessment of the operating segments. It
has been identified as the Executive Directors and key
management of the Company to make those strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TU THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, other key sources estimation uncertainty
that have a significant risk of resulting a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts at assets and liabilities within the
next financial period are as follows:

(i) Application of expected credit loss model
The directors of the Company estimate the loss
allowances of financial assets at amortised cost,
including advances to customers in margin financing,
and trade and other receivables, based on their
respective credit risk assessment. The loss allowance
is measured at the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows with the consideration of expected credit loss of
the respective financial assets. The assessment of
credit risk and estimated future cash flows of the
respective financial assets involves significant
judgement and estimation uncertainty. When the actual
cash flows is less than the expected cash flows
projection, additional impairment loss may arise in profit
or loss. The information about the application of
expected credit loss model of financial asset is
disclosed in the respective notes.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(i)

180

Application of expected credit loss model
(continued)

The Group’s credit risk department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the measurement process
of loss allowances of financial assets, including the
monitoring of credit risk, forward looking information
and general economic conditions, reviewing the key
assumptions and methodologies of measuring the loss
allowances; and ensuring that the Group has policies
and procedures in place to maintain appropriate
expected credit loss model used to assess and
measure the loss allowances of financial assets.

The Group regularly assess and measure the loss
allowance of financial assets by using internal and
external information to generate different scenarios of
forecast. The internal and external information, include
historical credit loss experience of the Group and
economic data and forecasts published by the
government bodies and monetary authorities.
Accordingly, when measuring the loss allowances, the
management uses reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information. The management
takes into account of future movements of different
economic data and how it will affect among each other
when generating different scenarios of forecasts.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(M)

Application of expected credit loss model
(continued)

Probability of default constitutes a key input in
measuring loss allowances of financial assets, which is
the estimations of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon, such calculation of the probability of default is
based on reasonable and supportable statistical rating
models selected by the management. These statistical
rating models are based on market data, as well as
internal data comprising of quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, including historical credit loss
experience, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions. The management collects this information
and adjust the data to reflect the probability-weighted
forward- looking information to be adopted in the
calculation of the probability of default.

In assessing the lifetime expected credit loss on credit-
impaired financial assets, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, such as financial background,
general economic conditions and forecast of future
conditions of debtors with significant judgements
applied. The management also reviews the market
value of securities pledged as collateral received from
debtors in determining the loss allowances of financial
assets. These key assumptions and methodologies
used for estimating the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the management
to reduce any material differences between loss
allowances and actual credit loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation expenses for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment based on the historical
experience and the expected usage of the property,
plant and equipment with similar nature and functions.
The management also takes into account and will revise
the depreciation expenses where the useful lives
changed from those previously estimated, if there is
any technological obsolescence, changes in the market
demand or service outputs has been reduced
significantly.

(iii) Fair value estimation of leasehold land and

buildings

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings is
determined at the end of each reporting periods by an
independent qualified professional valuer by using the
income capitalisation approach whereby the key inputs
of the fair value estimations are income derived from
hotel and casino operations in relation to daily room
rates and monthly casino performance are capitalised
at appropriate capitalisation rates by taking into
account of rental income potential, nature of the
property and prevailing market condition of the
property. This methodology is based upon the
estimations of future results and a set of key
assumptions of income and expenses of the property
and future economic conditions. The fair value of the
property reflects,among other things, rental income
from the current operating lease arrangements and key
assumptions about rental income from future operating
lease arrangements in the light of changes of future
market conditions.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(iv) Impairment of goodwill

v)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of value in use of cash-generating units to
which goodwill arising from the business combination
has been allocated. The value in use calculation
derived from the most recent budget plan approved by
the management requires the management to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate and future
revenue growth rate to calculate the present value for
the impairment assessment. Impairment of goodwill
may exist when the carrying amount is less than the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use of cash-
generating units.

The management also takes into account on the past
performance and expectations of market development
by identifying any specific risks that is relevant to the
underlying business of the goodwill when determining
appropriate future revenue growth rates and discount
rate incorporated in the value in use calculations. These
significant assumptions and estimation uncertainty
reflect the management best predictions but involve
inherent uncertainties, which is outside the control of
the management.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of non-financial asset may not be recoverable,
impairment assessment of the carrying amount of that
asset will be performed. Triggering events include
significant adverse changes of market value of an
asset, changes of business or regulatory environment,
or certain legal events against the Group. The
interpretation of such events requires significant
judgement and estimation uncertainty from the
management with respect to whether such an event
has occurred.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (continued)

18

)

(vi)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than gOOdWi") (continued)

Upon the occurrence of a triggering event, the carrying
amount of non-financial asset is reviewed to assess
whether its recoverable amount declined below its
carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the future use of the asset, plus residual
value upon the disposal of the asset. Where the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
impairment loss is recognised to write down the assets
to the extent of its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the
discounted cash flow analysis. The analysis relies on
certain factors, such as forecast of future performance
and long-term growth rate and selection of discount
rate. If these forecast and assumption prove to be
inaccurate or the actual usage of the asset change,
further write down or reversal of write down of the
carrying amount of the assets may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is mainly subject to taxation in the tax
jurisdictions of Macau and Hong Kong. Significant
judgement is required in determining an anticipated
amount of provision of taxation and timing of the related
tax payments. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
arising from the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will have impact on the provision for taxation in the
period when such determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Regarding the Group’s financial reporting process to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker, the Group is broadly
classified into three groups of operating segments, namely: (i)
financial services segments; (ii) hotel and gaming segments;
and (iii) securities investment segment. Under the three
groups of operating segments, there are in total of seven
operating activities based on the categories of products or
services provided in Hong Kong and Macau region.

The classification of operating segments are determined by
the Chief Operating Decision Maker to monitor the results
individually for making decisions of resources allocation and
performance assessment of the operating segments.
Financial information of the operating segments is
disaggregated into segment revenue, segment assets,
segment liabilities and geographical segment information.

Inter-segment revenue is based on similar terms and
conditions of sales agreements entered with external
customers.

Financial services segments:

—  Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements,
which is the provision of brokerage, underwriting and
placements services of listed securities in the
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and IPO financing, which is the provision of
credit facilities to margin clients.

—  Other financial services mainly include the provision of
corporate finance advisory and futures brokerage
services in the recognised stock exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sre M HRREH

SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Hotel and gaming segments:

—  Hotel operations, which is the provision of hotel room
services to hotel guests.

— Food and beverage, which is the operation of
restaurants located in hotels.

—  Gaming, which is the provision of services to casinos
run by the license holder, namely Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A (“SJM”) located in hotels.

Securities investment segment:
— Trading of listed securities through the recognised
stock exchanges.

Operating segment result is evaluated based on adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“adjusted EBITDA”). Interest income and
expenses and certain corporate income and expenses,
including depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
taxation, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
write off of property, plant and equipment, corporate staff
costs, exchange gains, sundry income and central
administrative expenses, which are not included in the result
of operating segments as they are managed by the central
function units, who control the working capital of the Group.

Operating segment assets comprise of all assets owned by
the Group except for financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and corporate assets, which
are not directly attributable to the operating segments.
Operating segment liabilities comprise of all liabilities owed
by the Group except for unallocated amounts due to
shareholders and corporate liabilities, which are not directly
attributable to the operating segments.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6 SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued)

The following tables represent segment information of the

Group for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021:

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Financial services segments

/\*Eﬁ*il_ ()

T%EW$E§ DRIREE—TE - —F k=
T —F=A=+—HItFEZHEER
BE-—FE-—F=-H=+—HIFE

Hotel and gaming segments

ERBYIR BERBYIE
Securities
brokerage,
underwriting Margin Other Securities
and and IPO financial Hotel  Food and investment
placements  financing services Subtotal  operations  beverage i Subtotal segment
BER  ERDE  Htted RER RERR
EE  BERE R it EREE B 8% it Pk #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TR TR
Segment revenue ARk
External customers MBER 158,770 1,729,866 24,491 1,913,127 32,550 19,229 8,227 60,006 - 1,973,133
Inter-segment R - - - - 32,984 - 8,014 40,998 - 40,998
158,770 1,729,866 24491 1913127 65,534 19,229 16,241 101,004 - 2,014,131
Adjusted EBITDA BREAHAE
BE - FER
BHEEA 151,010 383,317 10,801 545,128 (12,877) (15218)  (104,045)  (132,140) (25,733) 387,255
Segment assets AREE 25,544,159 981,825 601,591 98,455 1,681,871 91,001 27,317,031
Segment liabilities AEERE 2,870,065 66,554 9,508 107,926 183,988 - 3,054,053
Capital expenditure BRLH - 1,423 886 4,498 6,807 - 6,807

*

Capital expenditure represents the additions of property, plant

and equipment as disclosed on Note 18.

© BRLHEME I8 REREYE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sre M HRREH

6 SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6 ﬁ;ﬁﬁ*ﬂ(@)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-—E-_—fF=HA=+—HIEFE

Hotel and gaming segments
@ 3 8
Securities
brokerage,
underwriting Margin Other Securities
and and IPO financial Hotel Food and investment

placements financing services al  operations  beverage Gaming segment

e
f Nt &% It
HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
T THT THL

Segment revenue by e
External cusiomers Hapme 68628 1938035 12538  2019.201 %379 18192 (7893) 36678 - 2085879
Inter-segment okl - - - - 44230 - 9,311 53,541 - 53,541
68628 1938035 12538  2019.201 70609 18,192 1418 90219 - 2109420
Adjusted EBITDA EREAIFIE
BE &R
BEATRT 66443 567,093 660 634196 (13632  (16041)  (128584)  (153257) 28790 504729
Segment assefs PEAE 6966960 1671992 1108184 83660 2868845 124323 29960128
Segment labiliies PEaRE 4303187 160133 12916 64461 287510 - 4830697
Capital expenditure BAYH 55 379 301 669 1,349 - 1404
* Capital expenditure represents the additions of property, plant * BAS HIEN 18T BEREYE - B5
and equipment as disclosed on Note 18. KR o

188 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mARME

6 SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued) 6
Reconciliations of segment revenue, adjusted
EBITDA, segment assets and segment liabilities

TRER @

DEWE  KRBEATANE  BE
TERBENRTN 2BEERDSE

BEZHER
2022 2021
T —E -4
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THIT
Segment revenue DN EE 2,014,131 2,109,420
Less: Inter-segment revenue B AR E (40,998) (53,541)
Total revenue W= 4858 1,973,133 2,055,879
Adjusted EBITDA RFBERTFE - BiE -
HERBHAZR 387,255 504,729
Other income H U A 3,642 10,485
Interest income FEU A 7,882 3,311
Exchange gains ERTR 693 797
Corporate staff costs NFEIB ITKA (30,449) (31,906)
Central administrative expenses AR IT I S (59,318) (25,293)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥12 - &= K REITE (131,719) (148,594)
Finance costs BB (36,146) (37,591)
Taxation TIA (97,098) (219,685)
Profit for the year FREF 44,742 56,253
Segment assets DHEEE 27,317,031 29,960,128
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEEmRA
other comprehensive income ZEMmEE 122 158
Corporate assets NEIBE 97,650 265,496
Total assets EEHE 27,414,803 30,225,782
Segment liabilities PEEE 3,054,053 4,630,697
Unallocated amounts due to shareholders ROBLER IR IR 3,704,523 4,304,523
Corporate liabilities NAElAE 7,839 67,745
Total liabilities BEEHE 6,766,415 9,002,965
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SEGMENT |NFORMAT|ON (continued)
Geographical segment information

The Group’s financial services and securities investment
segments are located in Hong Kong and the hotel and
gaming segments are located in Macau.

The Group’s non-current assets located in different
geographical locations are as follows:

SBER =
ES ﬁﬁﬂ

AEBZEMREMBFRESBUNE

7l

B MBI RIER 5 BB AR -

REBIERBEEMNIAT AR

2022 2021

—E=E=-= —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THIT

Hong Kong B 11,093,795 11,051,987

Macau BT 1,533,856 2,349,216

Total non-current assets FREBEELAE 12,627,651 13,401,203
Information about major customers FEEXEFEHR

No single customer contributed 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue during the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.
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7 REVENUE 7 W&
2022 2021
—E_— g
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT T
Financial services business: S ERIE T
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BELKE - BEK
and placements commission income Bl E e WA 158,770 68,628
— margin and PO financing —REBSRERARAEE
interest income BhE F B HA 1,729,866 1,938,035
— other financial services — HAb & AR 24,491 12,638
1,913,127 2,019,201
Hotel and gaming business: BIE R ER
— hotel room and other rental income —BEEEREMHEESBA 32,550 26,379
— food and beverage revenue — R R e 19,229 18,192
— gaming revenue — ER K 8,227 (7,893)
60,006 36,678
Total revenue W48 %8 1,973,133 2,055,879
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REVEN U E (continued)

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue during the year is as

follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

7 Wi
rEE

EEBV MRS ERE 1550 E

RN IS I0T -

2022

—g—-

HK$°000
FET

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FH&TT

within the scope of HKFRS 15: A BEP&EHNE
— securities brokerage, underwriting — FBEEL  BHEEES
and placements commission income &I A 158,770 68,628
— other financial services — Ht & AR 24,491 12,638
— hotel room and other rental income —BEREREMAS KA 32,550 26,379
— food and beverage revenue — B R EREHES 19,229 18,192
— gaming revenue — Bl 8,227 (7,893)
243,267 117,844
Revenue from other sources not TBREBMIEHREERE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15: &2 2R B E At OR 2 g
— margin and IPO financing —REBEERERXAHAEE
interest income & BUTA 1,729,866 1,938,035
Total revenue UL 1,973,133 2,055,879
Timing of revenue recognition B P& KW R
from contracts with customers:
— at a point in time — R E 2, 177,999 86,820
— transferred over time — R —ERRE R N 65,268 31,024
243,267 117,844
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8 OTHER INCOME 8 HgA
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Custodian and handling charge AEMFEE 12,670 14,275
Dividend income g EWA 783 478
Government subsidies (Note) TR (A7) = 4,059
Sundry income T A 3,642 6,621
17,095 25,433
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, among the government Wit B —E - —F=HA=+—HIFFEKT
subsidies, HK$3,360,000 are government subsidies obtained #EL & 1 3,360,000 T BIR1EE B ERITT
from the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti- BB R EE S THAHE Rt £/
epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong AT & & B) N B[ E B 5 F A E 1R I T i
Kong Special Administrative Region supporting the payroll of Bb o 7K £ B 7 8 T 4% B 2 #8646 B % Ol K
the Group’s employees. The Group has complied with the SEHEET -
requirements set out in the subsidy notice or relevant law and
regulations.
9 STAFF COSTS 9 EBIMAK
2022 2021
T B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BIEEEME (ML 16))
remuneration (Note 16))
— salaries and other benefits — FHe NEMER 162,598 164,730
— contributions to defined contribution ~ — S FE-FGRREH 2 2 3R (H5E)
retirement scheme (Note) 1,008 1,134
163,606 165,864
Note: Details of the defined contribution retirement scheme in Hong Btet - B RREFIRERFRIKG B2 FHIERKT
Kong and Macau are disclosed in Note 32. 32 ER -
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10 FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on amount due to

e — R IR IR Z F B

10 BMEKA

2022

2021

HK$ 000
FET

HK$'000
THAT

a shareholder 35,350 35,350

Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEAEMNEMXZ (Mit31)
(Note 31) 796 2,241
36,146 37,591

11 TAXATION

11 $i\E

2022 2021
—E-—F
HK$ (0]0]0] HK$'000
F#ET T
Current tax: BNEATR IR -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENE 93,282 120,658
— Under provision in respect of —ATFERETE
prior years 8,908 106,172
102,190 226,830
Deferred tax ERERIE
— Macau Complementary Tax (Note 34) — RPFIFrS# 78 (H15F34) (5,092) (7,145)
97,098 219,685
(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the () BAENEHEREENE165%(ZF

statutory tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the taxable
profit for the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered Profit Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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11 TAXAT'ON (continued)
(b) Macau Complementary Tax has been provided at the
statutory tax rate of 12% (2021:12%) of the taxable
profit for the year.

(c) Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the statutory tax rates in the respective tax jurisdictions.

(d) The taxation for the year can be reconciled to profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

(b)

(c)

11 FHIE )

SRS AR IRAER T 12% (=
T —F 12%) AT E R R T
SRR -

REMBDEEREE ZHAETIREH
HAVARR ZEEREE -

iW%RIETEﬁi,%? B EHME2ER
SHRABRTATREFIEEELNT

or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation BREL AR T 141,840 275,938
Tax expenses calculated at the statutory REEME16.5% 1 H
tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) Z BIERX
(ZE=—%F :16.5%) 23,404 45,529
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAERELE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MERARHRERNR 2 ZE 11,684 8,214
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses for AAHMBFEEZ o BT E
tax purposes 35,195 104,216
Tax effect of non-taxable income for HARBMAZ BT E
tax purposes (9,463) (45,454)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRB BB BT E 28,466 458
Tax effect of temporary difference RIERE 5 \E%ﬁ
not recognised 2R (312) 723
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses @Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁ@n 2 EE
previously not recognised BT E (599) (8)
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFERETR 8,908 106,172
Effect of tax concession MG ERNTE (165) (165)
Tax reduction B (20) -
Taxation for the year FRHIA 97,098 219,685
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12 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation for the year is arrived at after charging:

12

BB Al o R
IR B AT FIE %

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Auditor’'s remuneration BB N & 2,859 2,937

Marketing, advertising and g2y BEEREERT

promotion expenses 8,466 7,692

Short-term lease expenses EHEERY 530 353
Provision of impairment losses on trade HEE S REMBEUWIRTR Y

and other receivables, net B 1EF 58 11,579 853

Directors’ remuneration EEEn 48,630 48,648

13 DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2021 and 2020.

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: Nil). The final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2020 amounting to HK$173,645,000 was paid during
the year ended 31 March 2021.
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 EREF
2022
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK cents HK cents
A oIl
Basic earnings per share BRREREF 0.26 0.32
Diluted earnings per share FIEE BT 0.26 0.32

(a) Basic earnings per share
The basic earnings which is the profit for the year and
weighted average number of shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share during the year
are as follows:

Profit for the year F R

(a) BRELRZF
AEFANSREABNAABZERR
) (BDE s 7 R B A hn e T 39 88) 4n
™

2022 2021
—_=E__ —EFE - —F

— e

HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT TAT

44,742 56,253

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BN 13,614,480,666  13,614,480,666
Weighted average number of non-redeemable I E R T

convertible preference shares IEFHEY 3,750,000,000 3,750,000,000
Total weighted average number of shares HAESRERRFMAZ

used in the calculation of basic {7 hniE 39 1B 28

earnings per share

17,364,480,666  17,364,480,666

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic
earnings per share as there was no dilutive potential
shares to be issued for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021.

(b) BRE#EFTER
HREE T -_—FR T - —F=
A=+ HLFETESLZTHTZE
FEEERD RERBEERFEGR
AEABFAE -
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15 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Hib 2 E A

Before After Before After
taxation Taxation  taxation taxation  Taxation taxation
Bl BE Bk A Gz i1
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TET T THT THT
Deficit on revaluation of BEMETHNIEFY
leasehold land and buildings EA (730,156) 87,618  (642,538) (491,661) 58,999  (432,662)
Release of exchange reserve upon i B2 AlBUA &
deregistration of a subsidiary AN R FE ) 23,403 - 23,403 - - -
Change in fair value of financial ~ EAFEFARBREKA
assets at fair value through JEREEY NTE
other comprehensive income o (36) - (36) 18 - 18
(706,789) 87,618  (619,171) (491,643) 58,999  (432,644)
Except for the release of exchange reserve upon R B A T EUE AT B INE R ERE A - I

deregistration of a subsidiary, there is no reclassification
adjustment relating to the components of other
comprehensive income for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021.
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 16 EEM=
An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to the directors He T -_—_FN_FE-_—F=A=+—H
of the Company for the years ended 31 March 2022 and IHFE > BN REMERARIEEZME ST
2021 is as follows: NN

Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary retirement 2022
fee in kind bonus scheme Total
e 28 REMTENR =B==
EzHe REVAS BERA  HEZHR £F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TR TR TEx FER

Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui FAREE - 16,425 - - 16,425
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL - 24,225 - 18 24,243
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho KRBT - 4,307 - 54 4,361
Mr. Ho Chi Ho MEREE - 2,863 - 18 2,881
Independent Non-executive Directors BIKHTES
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny HEREE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Lau Man Tak Ey ey 240 - - - 240
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty EYRLL 240 - - - 240
720 47,820 - 90 48,630
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’ and benefitsin  Discretionary retirement 2021
fee i bonus Total
; —E-—F
Y  ENFlm WIBTEA it B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T THET TR TR
Executive Directors YTEE
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui RABILE - 16,425 - - 16,425
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELL - 24,225 - 18 24,243
Mr. Chu, Kingston Chun Ho REELE - 4,308 - 54 4,362
Mr. Ho Chi Ho MEREE - 2,880 - 18 2,898
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRTES
Mr. Chiu Sin Nang, Kenny HEELE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Lau Man Tak ELE 240 - - - 240
Ms. Lo, Miu Sheung Betty BT L 240 - - - 240
720 47 838 - 90 48,648
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16 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 16 EEE € o

During the year, the salaries allowances and benefits in kind
paid or payable was in connection with the management of
affairs of the Group by the directors of the Company and
there was no arrangement under which a director of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration (2021:
Same).

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable to any
directors of the Company as an inducement to join the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

The remuneration shown represented remuneration received
from the Group by these directors of the Company in their
capacity as employee to the Group and/or in their capacity
as directors of the Company.

The amount of discretionary bonus was determined based on
the individual's performance during the year after the review
and approval from the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

During the year, the Group does not pay any consideration to
any third party for making available of the directors’ services
(2021: Nil).

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors of the
Company, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company.

Save for those disclosed in Note 45, there are no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in
which a director of the of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2021: Nil).
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17 THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
During the year, among the five highest paid individuals, 4
(2021: 3) are directors of the Company, whose remuneration
is disclosed in Note 16. The emoluments paid or payable in
respect of the remaining 1 (2021: 2) highest paid individuals
during the year are as follows:

17 EEBREHFMAL
FR AZESFHALH OH(ZF
T—F I ZR)AARAES  FEZHH
ERME16HE - FRENREMHG—
H(ZEZ—F: ZR)EaFATZHE W
T

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 3,000 6,542
Contributions to defined contribution REHFGRARGTEIZHE

retirement scheme 18 36

3,018 6,578

The emoluments of the above individuals paid or payable
during the year is within the following band:

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

FADNHEN Lt AT 2Bl e N F AT &
:

2022

2021

—E -
Number of
person

A

Number of
person

A

3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000 7T 1 2

During the year, no emoluments was paid or payable to any
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2021: Nil).

FR BERATAREEESFMA T2
FERENS - (ERREINBAREER 2 2E) B
BAE (= —F &) -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

202

18 M%  BERRE

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for Right-of- fixture and Motor
ownuse  useassets  equipment vehicles Yacht
BEERZ BENE
RELH £ B
KEF GREEE  RERRK RE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 '
ThL TAL THL ThL ThL
Cost or revaluation: RAREL |
At 1 April 2020 RZE-ZFMA-A 2,924,580 97,286 456,281 4,657 12 3,482,916
Additions HE - - 1,376 28 - 1,404
Disposals it - - (273) - - (273)
Adjustment on revaluation R (590,000) - - - - (590,000)
At 31 March 2021 R-E--F=A=1-H 2,334,580 97,286 457,384 4,685 12 2,894,047
Representing: &
Cost KA - 97,286 457384 4,685 12 559,467
Revaluation sff 2,334,580 - - - - 2,334,580
At 31 March 2021 RZF_-4=A=t-H 2,334,580 97,286 457,384 4,685 112 2,894,047
Additions E - - 6,807 - - 6,807
Lease modfication HEEH - 82,956 - - - 82,956
Write off b - - (435) - - (435)
Adjustment on revaluation BffHE (811,390) - - - - (811,390)
At 31 March 2022 RZE_—F=A=1-H 1,523,190 180,242 463,756 4,685 112 2,171,985
Representing: &
Cost WA - 180,242 463,756 4,685 112 648,795
Revaluation sff 1,523,190 - - - - 1,523,190
At 31 March 2022 RZFZZF=A=+-H 1,523,190 180,242 463,756 4,685 112 2,171,985
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 April 2020 RZZ2-TEMA-A - 34,849 405,503 4,367 10 444,829
Charge for the year FRMR 98,339 34,849 15,209 195 2 148,594
Disposals e - - (3) - - (3)
Adjustment on revaluation Bff#E (98,339) - - - - (98,339)
At 31 March 2021 R-Z--F=R=1+-H - 69,698 420,709 4,562 12 495,081
Charge for the year ERAR 81,234 32,197 18,223 65 - 131,719
Eliminated on written off iy bl s b - - (435) - - (435)
Adjustment on revaluation BHAZ (81,234) - - - - (81,234)
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZF=A=+-F - 101,895 438,497 4,627 112 545,131
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 March 2022 RZE-—F=A=1-H 1,523,190 78,347 25,259 58 - 1,626,854
At 31 March 2021 RZE--F=A=1-H 2,334,580 27,588 36,675 123 - 2,398,966
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 Y% - BMERRZRHE®

(continued)

Right-of-use assets

One of the Group’s leased office premises in Hong Kong
under a non-cancellable lease contract, with a lease term of
3 years, was recognised as right-of-use assets.

The Group does not have any options to renew or terminate
the lease contract and no lease incentive was received from
the lessor when the lease contract was entered.

The analysis of expenses in relation to the existing lease
arrangements in profit or loss is as follows.

Depreciation expenses of FREEENERY
right-of-use assets
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Short-term lease expenses

HERBEZNEMX
REHERNX

EHEEE
AEERBHERN/IF2AAHOQAEES
WETEHEZET AR IAEMRERER
RIEREERE -

AEBEREBEEEIRIEAEESRL
M AR L E A Q8 I Bis T EAE
gEE-

2022 2021
—E-— —=F =

HK$'000

HK$°000
FBT TAT

32,197 34,849
796 2,241
530 353

The total cash outflow for leases for the year was
approximately HK$36,067,000 (2021: HK$37,042,000).
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out
in Note 31.

FREEZR SR 2% 4 536,067,000
B (ZZTZ—4 : 37,042,000/87T) - THE
BEZ IO S HAMEST -

5203
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 5 ¥R I

18 W%  BMERRKREw»

(continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings held for own use
in Macau was revalued as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. The
valuation was carried out by AA Property Services Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer, who holds
recognised professional qualifications and possesses
sufficient experience in both location and nature of the
leasehold land and buildings being valued. The management
has adequate extent of discussions with the valuer on the key
assumptions and methodologies when the valuation is
performed at the end of each reporting periods.

Given that the extent of adjustments of fair value and the key
inputs used in the fair value estimations is not directly
observable from the external property market available to the
Group, the fair value of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings is classified as a “Level 3” valuation. The following
table gives information about how the fair value of leasehold
land and buildings is determined, in particular, the valuation
techniques, key inputs and significant unobservable inputs
used.

Fair value

Valuation technique(s)

HELHRESF
AEBMNBPIFEERAZHEL M EEFTR
TR CFRIE I —F = A=+ —H#ET
i AEtHBUYAEREEGAEMERLRY
¥XEMARARMET  BHEGEMBAERA
BEER  WEAMGERET W MEFHE
IR GEFEEE T RER c EEREH
RETHER  EEEHRGAEMEREZR
B FEEIT IR D R

EREXEAREMSINIMETSEER
KRRV EZAREBE R FEGARZE
ERARE  AEEHEELHNETHAF
ERBEA/IE=AH] HE - TREIIW
METHELHEEFZAFEZEMCL
HEMEMZMGERN TERAREBERE
ARTAIBRBARE) -

Relationship of unobservable

hierarchy

and key input(s)

AFESER HERMREIRGAME

As at 31 March 2022
R-B-=§=ZA=+-H

Significant unobservable inputs

ERTUBEEHAZE

inputs to fair value
TAREGABERE
AT EZBE

Properties in Macau  Level 3

BPImE E=Z43

Income capitalisation approach

The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rates; and
(2) Daily room rates

Capitalisation rates, taking into account of
the capitalisation of rental income potential,
nature of the property, and prevailing
market condition, from approximately 9% to
approximately 10%.

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value.

BREARHS A PEVE

B RBSBNENZBRERER -9

WABTERE

KUERRTTR  BRESEBNTHI%

204

TEGABER
(1) BRERE R
(2 EFSHEES
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Daily room rates from approximately
HK$176 to approximately HK$756 in
average for the base level.

EAZEERBSFANTHIT6ETELD

756 7T ©

The higher the daily room rate, the
higher the fair value.
EEGRMSHE  ATEES -
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
Leasehold land and buildings (continuea)

18 ¥  BMERRKRE»
HETHEEF®)

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy and key input(s)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
THREGABEE

AT EZBE

Significant unobservable inputs

AVHESER GEREREEBARE ERTABEHAYE

As at 31 March 2021
RZE--F=A=+—-H

Properties in Macau  Level 3

EASEYES E=H5

Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rates, taking into account of ~ The higher the capitalisation rate,
the capitalisation of rental income potential,  the lower the fair value.
nature of the property, and prevailing BrBrEkyns  ATEYE -
(1) Capitalisation rates; market condition, from approximately 7% to
(2)  Daily room rates; and approximately 8%.
(3) Monthly casino performance &3t RS KRABH 2 BREARER %
EMERRATR - BREREBNTFH7%
WABREREA Z24)8% °

The key inputs are:

IBGABER

(1) BREAE,

2 ERERHEDR
Q) HEEBAXA

Daily room rates from approximately
HK$315 to approximately HK$702 in
average for the base level.

EAREGAMS TN TLSBTEN
70247T ©

The higher the daily room rate, the
higher the fair value.
XFEEMEsHE  ATEYS -

Monthly casino performance from The higher the monthly casino
approximately HK$(4.83) million to performance, the higher the fair
approximately HK$18.75 million in average.  value.

BT ARETHNTH(4,830,000)ETE B5EA%ENS  ATEMS -
#118,750,000 T

Fair value estimation processes

When the Group estimates the fair value of its leasehold land
and buildings, it firstly uses market observable data to the
extent when it is available for Level 1 fair value estimation.
Where Level 1 key inputs are not available, the Group
therefore engaged with an independent qualified professional
valuer to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation technique and key inputs for Level 3
fair value estimation. The Group firstly considers and adopts
Level 2 key inputs when it can be derived from market
observable prices from the external property market. When
Level 2 key inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation technique that include Level 3 key inputs. When
there is a material change of valuation inputs, the causes of
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

DFEMLEBRE

AEBMGFHEEEL W RETZ AFER
LE— AR R FE[TELERMEIBR
MISEIE o ML EE — AR T 28 ARE
AEBEERBE YA ERBEXGEMETH
B BEEGRGBEMEZAE UHRFE=
AR A E[ETELREE S B A ERM
REZHABUE - WAl /N E TS A B
EMSERTEHBARE  ~AEEKEL
ZRNRFME QB EZHABUR - WAL E
F_RRETERABE  AKESRARS
FZRR T BB AR 2 BERM - WEE
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
Leasehold land and buildings (continuea)
Fair value estimation processes (continued)
No changes of valuation technique and key inputs of
leasehold land and buildings for both years.

The fair value estimation of leasehold land and buildings is
based on the highest and best use, which did not differ from
its actual usage for both years.

The reconciliation of the balance of Level 3 fair value
estimation is as follows:

18 W%  BMERRE

HETHEEF @
AFEGFTBR @)

RREFEE - HE L MEF 2 HERIMT &
FTEHABIRITELLS) -

MELREFZAFEMBDENESK
mERERREL  BERMEFE 2 ER

F=MAN A HEMGFT 2 EEREERDT

2022 2021

—ZE - —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THIT

At 1 April RIMA—H 2,334,580 2,924 580

Depreciation expenses TERXS (81,234) (98,339)
Deficit on revaluation of EEBET M RIEF 2 EL

leasehold land and buildings (Note 15) (H15E15) (730,156) (491,661)

At 31 March MR=ZA=+—H 1,523,190 2,334,580

During the year, the gross amount of deficit on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings was approximately
HK$730,156,000 (2021: deficit of approximately
HK$491,661,000). After considered the relevant tax impact,
approximately HK$642,538,000 (2021: deficit of approximately
HK$432,662,000) was recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the property revaluation reserve
during the year.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group pledged its leasehold
land and buildings held for own use, with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,040,000,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,700,000,000) to secure bank loans of the Group as
disclosed in Note 30.

Had the leasehold land and properties held for own use been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, the carrying amounts
would have been approximately HK$1,144,917,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,115,308,000).
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FREFHEELHWREFIBLMBENE
730,156,000 T( Z T = — & : BHA L
491,661,000/ L) - £ E BB B &
1% + 49642,538,000 8L (Z T = —4F : F54L
i’7432 662,000/ 70 ) N F AR H b 2 Uk
ATER - WREEHRFERAT °

U FES0FTHEE R —F R T
T—HFZA=+—H AEBECRAEEMR
FERTTE FIE AR MEE 4 1,040,000,000 7%
JL(=Z = —4 : #J1,700,000,00058 7T) Z
BEEEREEL W RET -

BReEFEE A2 E L R ERA AR 2
T ERRFTREREE (1E) 5 - BIERMA
EEX) A1,144917,0008 L (Z T - —4F :
491,115,308,00038 7T ) °
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19 GOODWILL 19 BHE

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT TAT

Carrying amount RREE
At 1 April and 31 March

REUA—BER=A=1t—H

10,996,683 10,996,683

The Group performed its annual impairment test with a
valuation performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer. The Group considers the relationship between its
market capitalisation and its book value, among other factors,
when reviewing for indicators of impairment. The carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the cash-generating units,
including the provisions of securities dealings, underwriting
and placements, margin and IPO financing and corporate
finance advisory services to its clients, are approximately
HK$3,628,905,000, HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000
(2021: approximately HK$3,628,905,000, HK$7,148,237,000
and HK$219,541,000) respectively.

Securities dealing, underwriting and placement
CGU

The recoverable amount of the securities dealing, underwriting
and placement CGU of approximately HK$4,202,300,000
(2021: approximately HK$3,906,000,000) as at 31 March 2022
has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved
by senior management covering a five-year period. The
projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the
continually impact of quarantine for inbound travelers, which
temporary decreased the investors outside Hong Kong. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 7.29%
(2021: 7.74%), cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a 2.3% growth rate (2021: 2.1%) and net
profit margins were estimated ranging from 76% to 78% (2021:
67% 10 79%). As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the
securities dealing, underwriting and placement CGU was
approximately HK$3,636,624,000 (2021: approximately
HK$3,633,000,000). Accordingly, it was concluded that the
recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount by
approximately HK$565,676,000 (2021: approximately
HK$273,000,000).

AREECETFERENR  THBEVAE
WEEGEEMETHE - RERBRETZ
B AEEZE(EheR) EmAENEERRE
ZHENEGR AR ELEM(BERH
EEREFARS  BHEKEE REE2K
BRARBEEREURDEMSEMRS)
2 EEREESD B4 /53,628,905,000/8 7T
7,148,237,000 /&7t % 219,541,000 7T (=
T — — 4F: #)3,628905000/ I
7,148,237,000 78 7T % 219,541,00058 7T ) °

HHEXZ  BEREERTELEN

RZE-__F=A=+—"HELXSH B
MR ERSEEEMN ZARE £ ELY
4,202,300,000% (= T = — F: 4
3,906,000,00078 7T ) JhfE A& = R E R EHE
ERERFHECYBEEMERSRER
RRAFEREENELZETE - BABRSRE
EVER T - LA AR IR Z b B8 i 5
BEFEIMEEEERRVER CRHETE -
MRS RETBRFTERAB AR E A 7.29%
(ZE=Z—F :1774%) AFHHEEBZES
MENFERAERR23%(-ZT - —F:
2.1%) VETER] - M F| EAEFT N T 76% = 78%
TECF I 6T%ETI%) c RZE =
A=+ HBEARRS  BHEEkEERSE
A BN 2 BREE4) A 3,636,624,000/8 7T ( —
T~ —4 : 43,633,000,00087T) © Atk
FFSEmAeTTREsERERNES LA
565,676,000/ t( — T — — F: #
273,000,000 7T) °
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19 GOODWILL (continued) 19 ﬁ%‘”‘
Margin and IPO financing CGU RESRERAFRERERESEL
B

The recoverable amount of the Margin and IPO financing CGU
of approximately HK$11,075,300,000 (2021: approximately
HK$22,237,000,000) is determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the
fluctuation in the stock market due to the new IPO
subscription. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 7.33% (2021: 7.82%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the unit beyond the five-year
period is 2.3% (2021: 2.1%). The net profit margins were
estimated ranging from 13% to 33% (2021: 63% to 71%). As at
31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the margin and IPO
financing CGU was approximately HK$7,232,326,000 (2021:
approximately HK$7,191,000,000). Accordingly, it was
concluded that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying
amount by approximately HK$3,842,974,000 (2021:
approximately HK$15,046,000,000).

Corporate finance advisory services CGU

The recoverable amount of the corporate finance advisory
services CGU of approximately HK$366,100,000 (2021:
approximately HK$238,000,000) is determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a
five-year period. The projected cash flows have been updated
to reflect the specific risk relating to corporate finance advisory
activities and taken into account the risk of business
uncertainties in foreseeable future. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 7.43% (2021: 7.98%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the unit
beyond the five-year period is 2.3% (2021: 2.1%). The net
profit margins were estimated ranging from 43% to 64% (2021:
3% to 63%). As at 31 March 2022, The carrying amount of the
corporate finance advisory services CGU was approximately
HK$220,731,000 (2021: approximately HK$222,000,000).
Accordingly, it was concluded that the recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amount by approximately
HK$145,369,000 (2021: approximately HK$16,000,000).
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RESREBRAAAEERERSEAEN
2 AT Y B 4 58 %7 11,075,300,000/8 L ( =&
— — % 1 #)22237,000,000 T ) JHfE L
SREREEMAREZEAFHM 2 PIEEE
FrEemEaRARAFERERTEEE
FeRABRSRECIER TR URBEH
BALAHBEERBERRMER - iR
METERAMEAHATAIRE B7.33% (2%
——F:782%) MAFHEEB2RER
ENFEABER23% (2T —F :21%)
YETER] » R REFHN T 183% £ 33% (= F
Z—F 163%ET1%)  RZE__F = A
=+t—H RE2EEBALAHAEEMER
SEEEBEMNZRAEEY A7,232,326,000 %
TT(=Z = —4F : #7,191,000,0005 7T ) °
A FriSgmaer kb ERERAES
1 #473,8429740008 T ( Z = —F : 49
15,046,000,00038 7T ) °

TEDBERREKESELSEN
TEMBEMREREEESEML 2 kb S
%6 49366,100,0008 (=T = — F : 4
238,000,000%70) JHE B =R ERE
WMERTFHBMEEEMERSRETER
HAFHEENEsET - BABRSRED
EREF  URMERBCENSERESZ
F5E Bk I E B AT RSB BB T8
AZEZEE - RS RETERFTR AR AEL
MK A7 43% (B - —4F :798%) M*
FHMBEZBERENFEREEEL23% (=
T = —F:21%) 1ETB R o 4 ) E {F 5
NF43%E64%( — B = — F:3% %
63%) M-_TE-__F=ZF=+—H" %
PEBEERERCELEENZERMELN A
220,731,000% t( = T = — F: 4
222,000,000 7T) » E It - FriS 4 AU
O & REEIREES T 49 145,369,000,8 7T (=
T~ —4F : #916,000,00087T) °
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GOODW'LL (continued)

Key assumptions used in value in use
calculations and sensitivity to changes in
assumptions

The calculation of value in use for securities dealing,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing and
corporate finance advisory is most sensitive to the following
assumptions:

° Discount rates

° Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
forecast period

Discount rates — Discount rates represent the current market
assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks of
the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the
cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on
the specific circumstances of each CGU and is derived from
the weighted average cost of capital (“WACC"). The WACC
takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is
determined using the Capital Asset Pricing Model (“CAPM”).
The CAPM depends on a number of inputs reflecting financial
and economic variables, including risk-free rate and a
premium to reflect the inherent risk of the business being
evaluated. These variables are based on the market’s
assessment of the economic variables and comparable listed
companies with business scopes and operations similar to
those of the CGUs. The cost of debt is based on the interest-
bearing borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Specific
risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The
beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly
available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are
made to factor in the specific amount and timing of the future
tax flows in order to reflect a pre-tax discount rate.

19
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19 GOODW"_L (continued)
Key assumptions used in value in use
calculations and sensitivity to changes in
assumptions (continued)
Growth rate estimates — Rates were estimated ranging from
1% to 15%, 1% to 8% and 3% to 10% (2021: 25% to 30%, 4%
to 8% and 4% to 25%) per annum for the relevant cash-
generating units of securities dealings, underwriting and BRE ZHBERSELBN Y FIERER{AEt
placements, margin and IPO financing and corporate finance 2R F1%E15% - 1% £ 8% k3% &
advisory services respectively throughout the 5-year (2021: 10%(ZFE = —F: N TF25%ZE30% * 4%
5-year) budget plan. Cash flows beyond the five-year period 8% NA%ZE25% - AFHEZEERE
are extrapolated by using a steady growth rate of 2.3% (2021: BHETHMER2IREE( T - —F:

19 HEw
FREEHELFMRAZTERRRY
BB EH 2 HBE @)

BEXRMES —RFH(ZT_—%F 6%
HEEFERN B5R%  BHEEE -
RESTMERRHBEERE N LD ET R

2.1%). 21%) o
Sensitivity of value in use to reasonably possible changes in FREBEYHITERESEEEE 2 1K
key assumptions: g -

Securities dealing,
underwriting and

placement CGU
BERS  BHER
RERSELEM

Margin and

IPO financing CGU
REERERDMRE
RMERSELEM

Corporate finance
advisory services CGU
13 Bt 76 B ) PR 7
ReEEEN

Key assumptions
FTERR

Possible changes

WHEEE

Sensitivity

Cash flow projections;
Discount rate
ReRETEN : BIRE

5% decrease in terminal
value; 25bps increase
in discount rate
SIREERDE5%
BEER IR AE N 25 {REEE

An decrease in the terminall
value would result in

an decrease in value in

use of approximately
HK$179,700,000, and

vice versa; And increase in
discount rate would result in
an decrease in value

in use of approximately
HK$242,400,000, and

vice versa.
RREEROBEBFRER
D> #7179,700,000 BT
[R2 TR+ BRI R IE NS E B
1 B E R 47 242,400,000
B RZIMA -

Cash flow projections;
Discount rate
RERETEN : BHIRE

5% decrease in terminal
value; 25bps increase
in discount rate
RIXEERD 5%

BE IR IR AL 0 25 {EEE

An decrease in the terminal
value would result in an
decrease in value in use

of approximately
HK$2,736,200,000, and
vice versa; And increase in
discount rate would result in
an decrease in value in

use of approximately
HK$658,900,000, and

vice versa.
RREEROBERFRER
D #) 2,736,200,000 87T -
[R2 TR+ BRIRERIE NS

Cash flow projections;
Discount rate
RERETEN : BHIRE

5% decrease in terminal
value; 25bps increase
in discount rate
RIXEERD 5%

BE TR IR L 0 25 (R E

An decrease in the terminal
value would result in an
decrease in value in use of
approximately

HK$15,800,000,

and vice versa; And increase

in discount rate would result in
an decrease in value in

use of approximately
HK$20,900,000,

and vice versa.
REEEROBERFRER
/D> #715,800,000 /8 7T + 2 IR
A BRREEMEERFEREE

BF BB {E 8 2 49 658,900,000 J8i 449 20,900,00058 7T * [ 2 Th

B RZINA

/9\)\{\0

MR AT BRRZAEAEES  REBF
IR SEEEMERERE -

With the above reasonably possible changes in key
assumptions, no impairment loss is considered necessary for
the CGUs.
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21

GOODW'LL (continued)

Key assumptions used in value in use
calculations and sensitivity to changes in
assumptions (continued)

Management recognises that the orderly global abatement of
COVID-19 via successful containment and prompt deployment
of a vaccine and the advancement of the “Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” and the development of the
“Belt and Road Initiative” are expected to have a positive
impact on the forecasts. Management expects the economy
will begin to recover to the pre-pandemic level while the
restrictions and compulsory quarantine between HK and
mainland are solved. Management expects Hong Kong will be
a good choice for the mainland investors after considering the
location and latest disease prevention measures. Management
had based its determination of the CGU’s recoverable amount
would not cause an impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Food and beverage and
hotel operating supplies

19 EEw

FEREEFEEZMEAZTERSRRY
BEEEH 2HRE @)

B ERRE BRI N IREEBREA
E2IRCOVID-19ORBAF&F4E - L&
BRKNEBR | ZHER[—F ] 2BRE
HRRBERABKEETE - EXELEEY - BB
EES MMz B RORR B K 55 I R B 18 e
R REREKERESRBRIKTE - &R
ETEH - ZRIPMIBLE REEBAN
i BATAMRERE ZERREE - BEE
BEERSES B2 AR E S BEAIERET
SEBURERIE o

20 FE

2022 2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FET

— — —

R e p—

HK$°000
FERT

B S BRBHA RO 5 48 2 A i

1,763 2,055

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

21 BAFEFABSEZEHEE

2022 2021
—E__F ===
HK$'000

BT

HK$°000
FET

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and  REE F 2B ARE S M IERE

certificates of deposit, at market value EME

91,001 124,323

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as designated
upon the initial recognition of financial assets.

As at 31 March 2022, the certificates of deposit with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$46,770,000
(2021: approximately HK$49,953,000) are pledged as
securities collaterals on the Group’s bank loans as disclosed
in Note 30.

BATEARS Y S REELTHEDE
WS HRBEBEER TR BERER -

NZEBEZ_—F=A=+—0 FEHLZEY
46,770,000 7L (ZF = —4F : 4749,953,000
BIL) 2 7k FE B IR E R TS0 TR B AR
SEBITERCESERR -

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN
FINANCING

22 MFEFBAREESHME

2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Directors of subsidiaries MBARsESEREBEAL
and their associates 25,886 46,103
Other margin financing customers HEiRFEBHERF 19,429,622 18,296,063
19,455,508 18,342,166
Less: Loss allowances L EERE (5,708,180) (3,973,336)

13,747,328 14,368,830

The movements of loss allowances on advances to
customers in margin financing during the year are as follows:

ERNAESRNRELRE S BEEED
n

2022 2021

—=E_ —_EF_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
At 1 April RIWA—H 3,973,336 2,517,245
Unwinding of interest F B8O 596,325 320,177
Provision of loss allowances, net HREERE FE 1,138,519 1,135,914
At 31 March N=A=+—H 5,708,180 3,973,336

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, advances to customers in margin
financing are repayable on demand and carried interest at an
average of Hong Kong Dollar Prime rate (“Prime rate”) plus 3%
to 6%. Margin clients are required to pledge their securities
collateral to the Group, in order to obtain credit facilities for
securities trading in the recognised stock exchanges. The
amount of credit facilities granted to them is determined by the
discounted market value of securities in accordance with
margin lending policies set by the Group’s management,
which maintains a list of approved securities for margin
lending at a specified loan-to-collateral ratio.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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23

ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN 22 NEFEARIZETHEw

FlNANClNG (continued)

At 31 March 2022, total market value of securities pledged
as collateral in respect of the loan granted to margin
clients was approximately HK$30,895,665,000 (31 March
2021: approximately HK$36,628,707,000). Among the
securities pledged as collateral, there was approximately
HK$2,395,699,000 (2021: approximately HK$3,421,731,000)
provided by margin clients to secure bank loans as disclosed in
Note 30.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers in
margin financing as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the
business nature of margin financing.

RZE-_—F=A=+—8  tEARRES:
EEFRHERZEBRzEERESEME
#)7/30,895,665,0008 t(ZE = —F = A
=—+—H : #136,628,707,000/8 T ° IMEA
ERMEEBESS - £2,395,699,000
BIL(ZEZ—F : 43,421,731,000/8 7T )
T AT ERRES B FIRME LA
BERITER -

ARAEERR  ENRIEMEZEKM
T REOMEEZE  SUERBEATP
B RESBE 2RO

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 BEFREMEUWERR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
Trade receivables from financial REEBRE DI
services segments H 5 AR 36,089 31,941
Trade receivables from hotel and KEBERIEY S
gaming segments B 5 MR SR 7,178 14,398
43,267 46,339
Other receivables, HmEUWERR - e &
deposits and prepayments FETFRIE 25,069 26,248
68,336 72,587

No ageing analysis is disclosed for trade receivables from
financial services segment as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view
of the business nature of dealing in securities and futures
contracts and corporate finance advisory services.

ARREERR  EREEEFMPERN
AR 1 5B S AR IR 15 2 BRISIEE(E R - BR
oML EEE  RAERERE SBRS
DR BB RWIRRZ RE DT -
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coniinieq) 23 BEZ R E#EWEBET @)
Trade receivables from financial services Py = % mﬂﬂﬁi%ﬁ 2E5 FEH&EE,TA
segments
2022 2021
—ZT_— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&TT

Trade receivables arising from the FBERPABEBHBRE

ordinary course of business of EEZE SRR :

dealing in securities:

— Cash clients = 299 17,739

— Clearing house — BEEAT 23,793 1,060

— Brokers and dealers — B R HE 137 207

24,229 18,996

Trade receivables arising from the BEEHEAHNAEEKBRE

ordinary course of business of EEzBSREIIRR

dealing in futures contracts:

— Clearing house — BEEA 7,980 8,070
Trade receivables arising from RENTSERSER AR

the ordinary course of business EEZE SRR :

in the provision of:

— Corporate finance advisory services — I E R R 4,341 5,810
Total trade receivables, B SRR AREE -

before loss allowances BRI B R R 36,550 32,876
Less: Loss allowances o ESIERE (461) (935)
Total trade receivables, SRR AREE -

after loss allowances MR EEERE R 36,089 31,941
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23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

The movements of loss allowances on trade receivables from
financial services segments during the year are as follows:

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 ESREMEWERR

RESEMEBEHEL B 2EZBURR =)

FREBRBE D2 E 5 RURF 2 B8
HEEHMT

2022 2021

—E-= B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FATT

At 1 April RMA—H 935 636
Provision of loss allowances SHREEBRE 2,876 299
Written off Hss (3,350) -
At 31 March RZA=+—H 461 935

The settlement terms of trade receivables attributable to
dealing in securities are one or two business days after trade
date, and those of trade receivables attributable to dealing in
futures contracts are one business day after trade date. All of
trade receivables from cash clients are not past due at the
end of reporting periods, which no material loss allowances
was recognised in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk for both years
and ECLs are assessed to be insignificant.

Trade receivables from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance advisory clients are classified as
current assets as they are expected to be settled within one
year from the end of reporting period.

Trading limits are set for different categories of customers.
The Group seeks to maintain stringent control over the trade
receivables in order to minimise credit risk arising from these
customers. Overdue balances of trade receivables are
regularly monitored by the management and followed up for
the settlement when necessary.

EHR D EEE S RYRFAENR 5 A HIER
—EMEZEXERRNERN MEEHESLRE
HEZRUBERFRAANKZ 5 AR —EEX
BRERN - FEREEF ZE SRR
EREPRL BB HXMEFEEER
Bt AN - BEVEE B BRRA A AN
TRE ST ER N FERERTAEX
BRI -

BEM B RZIBAMEEREBRREP
ZEGREESRDERRBEE  JIHNTE
HARRANBMEMRR —FAEN -

AEERTRERNEFRAERHRE - AKX
NEREREZGRUER  BREZEFEP
ZEERRBERE EEETHERES
FEW IR B AR - WA F 2R REEN

B e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre M HRREH

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments
The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30
days to its customers arising from the hotel and gaming
segments. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables at the end of reporting period:

23

BZ REMBWARNR =
mﬁﬁrﬁﬁ’AEZEEEW$M

AEE-—RETHEERBLDEEFI0A
ZFHEEHR - U T REZRURFNERE
HIR Z BRER DT

2022 2021

—E=E=-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

0-30 days 0Z30H 7,046 8,124
31-60 days 31260H 31 331
61-90 days 61290 H 123 96
Over 90 days 90 HM F 23,379 30,333
30,579 38,884
Less: Loss allowances W B (23,401) (24,486)
7,178 14,398

The movements of loss allowances on trade receivables from
hotel and gaming segments during the year are as follows:

FRBEERIBY DR E 5 RYSRFE R
w2 BT

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 April REA—H 24,486 23,936
Provision of loss allowances SR EIERHE 8,716 550
Written off b6t (9,801) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 23,401 24,486
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24

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Other receivables

The movements of loss allowances on other receivables
during the year are as follows:

23

EZREMEWRERER @
H fth fE W AR TR
FREMBERIER 2 BEBEESHMT ¢

2022 2021

—E=E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

At 1 April RIEA—H 294 290
(Reversal)/provision of loss allowances (Bm),FHREERE (13) 4
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 281 294

In respect of other receivables, the Group regularly monitors
the credit risk exposures based on the historical repayment
records and loss experience of the counterparties. At the end
of reporting period, the credit risk of other receivables has
not increased significantly since its initial recognition and the
loss allowances of other receivables was measured at
12-month ECL calculation.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ monies arising
from the normal course of business of dealing in securities
and futures contract, margin financing. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as cash and bank balances
held on behalf of customers under the current assets and
recognised the corresponding trade payables (Note 26) to
the clients under the current liabilities, as the Group is
allowed to retain some or all of the interest income from the
clients’ monies deposited as well as it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. Under the Securities and
Futures (Client Money) Rules of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571), the Group is not allowed to use or
dispose of the clients’ monies to settle its own financial
obligations.

24

EMBUERERME - AEERBEXZEHF
ZBEEFCHEMEBEREREMEREER
B - RIEHR  EMERERZEERR
B V1A TR AR I MR E L I - 1 EL A FEUR
Rz BERER12(E A ESEE R

HitE

REFHFAZRERBITEER

AEBERRA & BMEBFSBLIEERS
WEEREFLPEANES  RETRE
FREBBREPELZEPFA - AEHE
B EEPRENBRARBEER TREP
FAZRS MRITES  YRRBE ERER
HEREFN 28 S RNER(HE26) -
RAEABAEEEERELOKEHAFER
PRIEZMBWA - XARE P RIAZAEMR
BAXPAE LEE - REFEADIF 571
ERFMPEHRIBETESLME(BPRK
)RR AEENSEAREEEP KA
UBITEM R -

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/BANK
DEPOSITS FOR GUARANTEE

B 5 ¥R I

25 RERASEEEE RERHA
YRR 17 5K

2022
—E-=

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HteE FE T THBIT
Bank deposits for guarantees HERAERITIER (i) 78,667 77,817
Time deposits TEHAIfF K (i) 106,361 172,670
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE (i) 139,621 790,539
245,982 963,209

Notes: Btet -
(i) As at 31 March 2022, the Group had restricted bank deposits () RZF-ZZF=-A=+—H ZX£EEHF E"l

(ii)

218

of approximately MOP50,272,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,808,000) and approximately HK$29,859,000 (2021
approximately MOP49,729,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,281,000) and approximately HK$29,5636,000)
represents deposits placed with bank for certain bank
guarantees provided for SUM secure the punctual, complete,
due, diligent and timely performance of the Group'’s
obligations in respect to the cease of the operation of the
Casinos as incurred before and on the expiry date of the
agreement.

Cash at banks bears floating interest rates based on daily
bank deposit interest rates announced by the relevant bank
authorities. Time deposits are made for a period ranging from
1 day to 3 months (2021: 1 day to 3 months) depending on the

(ii)

IR #I#R 7777049 50,272,000 2Pt (1%
#748,808,000;& 7T ) & #129,859,000;% 7T ( =
T —1F : #749,729,000 2 FT 7T (105 R4
48,281,000% 7T ) J #729,536,000/5 7T ) *
T & R 5L 18 15 R 2 25 B R 1 4% BB AT %
PR AR - B R R K
JBITIR IS E i E LR EFATENE
FIRITIERMIZ R IRTT 2 75K

BIFZBFIEF B ZRITHEIRIARRTTH

BRMZFHRITEAFEHT - 7

KZTFXRBNF1HE3EAATEF(=
—F1HE3EA) BFAEEHZH

cash requirements of the Group. The carrying amounts of cash EFEKRME - He kR EFEERH ZKRE
and cash equivalent is approximate to fair value due to short- BEA N FEFE - Jh R E 2B AT
term maturity. B o
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26

B 5 & H BT ERRX

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Trade payables from financial KE RS

services segments B SRR 575,981 1,196,643

Trade payables from hotel and KEBEEREE DA
gaming segments B 5 ERR 17,081 8,965
593,062 1,205,608
Other payables and accruals HAit (IR R ERT B A 115,185 101,944
708,247 1,307,552

Trade payables from financial services segments

Trade payables arising from the

2022

HK$°000
FET

EHX 5 HEEGBIE

RETMBRES B 2E R BARR

2021

B —F
HK$'000
T

ordinary course of business EEZESEMNERR
of dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —ReEF 276,148 664,101
— Margin clients — RBEEEF 284,978 506,045
— Clearing house — EER - 2,732
561,126 1,172,878
Dividend payable to clients ENEFPRE 10 1,066
Trade payables arising from the HEANRZATESK AR
ordinary course of business of EEZESENERER
dealing in futures contracts:
— Clients — BB 14,436 21,033
Trade payables arising from the RHUTEIEREEBBE
ordinary course of business EEZESENERER
in the provision of:
— Corporate finance advisory services — — 1% B %88 R AR 7% 409 1,666
575,981 1,196,643
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuea)

The settlement terms of trade payables attributable to dealing
in securities are one or two business days after trade date,
and those of trade payables attributable to dealing in futures
contracts are one business day after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for trade payables from
financial services segments as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view
of the business nature of dealing in securities and futures
contracts, margin financing and corporate finance advisory
services.

As at 31 March 2022, included in trade payables of
approximately HK$552,603,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,156,487,000) was payable to clients and authorised
financial institutions in respect of trust and segregated bank
balances received and held on behalf of clients and
authorised financial institutions arising from the normal
course of business of dealing in securities and futures
contracts and margin financing.

Trade payables from hotel and gaming segments
The suppliers arising from the hotel and gaming segments
generally grant an average credit period ranging from 30 to
60 days to the Group. The following is an ageing analysis of
trade payables at the end of reporting period:

26 85 RAMEAER

RHREILEZRNERANRZ H AR
*iMIM%EiWMH MEEHEANE
EEZEMNERAENR 5 AHE —EEX
BAER -

Zl»‘”&ﬂ%% B ERBEFRPEANR

RESBEREEMBERRGOEZ
%ﬁ%li—k%ﬁ' FRIRDMAL BT R - MAERE
T RIRG DB E BN R Z R DT

NZE-——F=ZA=+—H  BZEMEXR
PRENEPREIANV S BHBEERRLY
552,603,000/ w( = T = — F: 4
1,156,487,0008 L) * #RNBEHLHES
HRGURREFESHE 2 —MEBHBEFR
BERRAUEBEENRREFE 2G5 0B
STERTTEERR ©

REEBEERBED EZ%’EEHEE,TA
KEEEMER D82 e — B &
T@’“‘*MA%ZSE)ﬁESOiGOEIZqu’-J
FEEH - UTREZENEFINBENRZ
BRIk DA -

2022 2021

—s - T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

0-30 days 0&30H 15,507 5,777
31-60 days 31E£60H 1,119 1,916
61-90 days 61£290H 401 748
Over 90 days QB E 54 524
17,081 8,965
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27 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

27 ERERFIE

2022 2021
—E-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah TREL L (a) 2,804,523 3,404,523
Better Sino Limited EBEARAA (b) 1,190,000 1,190,000
3,994,523 4,594 523
Notes: Kz -

(a) As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, among the total balance of
amount due to a shareholder, Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, the balance
of approximately HK$1,010,000,000, is unsecured, interest
bearing at 3.5% (2021: 3.5%) per annum and repayable on the
third anniversary year when the loan was extended at 31 March
2020, i.e. on or before 31 March 2023. The loan is subject to
review at anytime and the lender’s overriding right of withdrawal
and immediate repayment on demand for both years. The
remaining balance of approximately HK$1,794,5623,000 (2021:
approximately HK$2,394,523,000) is unsecured, interest
bearing at 3.5% (2021: 3.5%) per annum and repayable on
demand.

(b) As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the amount due to a
shareholder, Better Sino Limited, which Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is
beneficial owner, is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

28 LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

(a)

(b)

RE-FEZZFR-_F-—F=H=4+—H
B —EREFEFEL 47 BB
1 ABE491,010,000,000,8 7T .2 4 64 B HE R
W A FFEIEE(ZF=—4F :35/F)
FERREFZFR -_E-_FFZA=+—H
EEREZE-BAF(H-—_FE=-=F=H
=+ —HEZFT)EiE o Z B A EIT &
B+ =R E LA R EF Z 18 1 FE
RENBEERBERZ EEIEEF - 82884
1,794,623,000 & (= F = —4F | 4
2,394,523,000 8 7T Rl B A ~ LA F FI|E
?5{5?5(:%5:—#“ C35E)TEREEE
SKIEZR

R-IE-Z—ZFR - FE-_—F=HF=+—H
B —EREEEERAFA(EAEL LA
FnBEEA) 2 EHBERIF T ERA
JEEKIEE -

28 RE—ZXBEQXFERK

2022 2021

—E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THIT

At 1 April RIMA—H 1,658,343 2,714,146
Additions NE 2,056,019 1,451,105
Repayments BN (2,947,086) (2,506,908)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 767,276 1,658,343

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loan from a related
company is due to Kingston Finance Limited, which is
controlled by a director and shareholder of the Company,
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah. The loan is unsecured, interest bearing
at 3.5% (2021: 3.5%) per annum and repayable on demand.

PR FFIE

RZEZZFRZFE-_—F=A=+—H"
RE—RKBERREFRTENHNEHBEE
ZARBARRESERRES
RELZ S - EEAERAEER - BFEF
EISE(ZTE-—F :35E)AERERE
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29 SUBORDINATED LOANS

29 REER

Drawdown
date 2022 2021
REXA & =g== —T_—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 Prime rate +1% 250,000 250,000
RETENEEZERK —ZETNF HEBERE
—A=+8 niE
20 Feb 2004 1.5% 150,000 150,000
—TTMEF 1.5
—HA=+H
Revolving loan from Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah 24 May 2010 1.5% 300,000 300,000
REFAELZT ZRBRER —E-EF 158
RA-+MAH
700,000 700,000
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the subordinated loans are KRB —FR-_FE-—F=R=+—H"
unsecured, interest-bearing at rate which ranged from 1.5% BEBERAEER BN TFENEISER
to Prime rate plus 1% per annum and repayable on demand. HEBNEZME 2 EGFERBEEK
B -

The Group is required to comply at all times with the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571). All of the
subordinated loan agreements are approved by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and any
repayment or changes of terms and conditions of these
subordinated loan agreements has to be approved by the
SFC with one month written notice to the SFC.
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30 BANK LOANS

30 R1T

B

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Secured bank loans: BEMIBITEI
— Money market loans and — BB MISERRERERK
revolving loans (a) 440,000 560,000
440,000 560,000
Repayable: 81 -
— Within one year — —FR 440,000 560,000
— More than one year — —F1& - -
440,000 560,000
Less: Portion classified W D EAERBAB B
as current liabilities (440,000) (560,000)
Portion classified as DERIERBAB IS
non-current liabilities - -
Notes: Bt -
(a) As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s banking facilities, and the (a) RZ-ZFZZF=H=+1—H FEELHF

(b)

above money market loans and revolving loans are secured
by marketable securities of approximately HK$2,395,699,000
(2021 approximately HK$3,421,731,000) provided by margin
clients and certificates of deposit of approximately
HK$46,770,000 (2021: approximately HK$49,953,000). During
the year, the money market loans and revolving loans bear
floating interest rates ranging from approximately 0.93% to
1.29% per annum (2021: approximately 0.79% to 2.45% per
annum).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group was offered loan facilities of
approximately HK$3,500,000,000 (2021: approximately
HK$3,600,000,000) and the Group had unutilised the banking
facilities of approximately HK$3,060,000,000 (2021:
approximately HK$3,040,000,000) as bank loans.

(b)

L £

TEMN FEESTESEARERERTS
KIREFESFEFIEBBZDTEEZHN
2,395,699,000/& ;w( = £ = — F: 4

3,421,731,000% 7T ) J & (& #746,770,000
Br(ZF=—4%F: £749953000;‘57E)Z
TFHRENEIER - FA - EMTTEEH KRB
“E?Xﬁ/ﬁfjjiﬂ I F#)0.93/E F 1.29

JB(=FE——4F  £0.79[EF2.45/2 )55 °

RZFEZZF=HA=+—H" ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
3§t & #9.3,500,000,000% T ( = FE = —
4 #73,600,000,000/& 5T ) [ 7N 5 [
B FH #R 77 Bl £ #9.3,060,000,000/% 70 ( —F
— —4F : #93,040,000,000% 7T ) (€5 R T
Bt o

EHNELREBFRA

Se-teeg 223
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31 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the total remaining future minimum
lease payments under a non-cancellable lease contract,
being the Group’s lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 and

2022, which were fall due as follows:

31

31 March 2022

HERE

TRETIR -_ZEZ—FRZZE-__F=H
—+—B > TAREEESHE TEGRNK
REAENZEBERALEE2HEESE) -

FMBERAT

31 March 2021

“BC-fZA=t-H e e =
Present value Present value

of minimum  Total minimum of minimum  Total minimum

lease payments lease payments lease payments  lease payments

BEHAE BEHE =EHE EHE

ARAE NREHE B E fxes

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET THT THT

Within one year —ER 27,423 28,075 31,328 31,955
More than one year, but not —FRETBBMET

exceeding two years 27,710 28,075 - -
More than two years, but not MEZBTBBERF

exceeding five years 24,410 24,528 - -

79,543 80,678 31,328 31,955

Less: Total future interest expenses ¥, : RIRFI SR 458 (1,135) (627)

Present value of lease liabilities HERERE 79,543 31,328
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31 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 31 *HEE1§(’E)

The reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised in the BE-E-—F=A=+—H=Z%

consolidated statement of financial position from 31 March
2021 to 31 March 2022 is as follows:

—TE - F=
A=1+—HREGAEVBIRAXRERZIHES
BZHEERENT

2022 2021

—E=E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

At 1 April MO A—H 31,328 65,776
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGBE A ERE 796 2,241
Lease modification HEB®R 82,956 -
Repayment on lease liabilities BEEHEaE (35,537) (36,689)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 79,543 31,328

ARRBEENFRESITT -

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as
follows:

31 March 1 April

2022 2021

—s—-= T4

=A=+—8 MmA—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&TT

Current liabilities mENAE 27,423 31,328
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 52,120 -
79,543 31,328




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

32

e M BmRM

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, both employer and
employee are required to make contributions to the MPF
scheme based on 5% of the employee’s basic salaries,
subject to a cap of basic salaries of HK$30,000 per month
effective from 1 June 2014 onwards. Contributions to the
MPF scheme are vested without conditions and payable in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets in the MPF Scheme are held
separately by the independent trustees. The Group’s
employer contribution will vest fully with the employees’
contribution when it is contributed to the MPF Scheme.

For its employees employed under the jurisdiction of Macau
who were members of the Social Security Fund operated by
the Social Security System in Macau, the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries to the Social Security Fund per month based on their
employment terms when they are payable in accordance
with the Social Security System in Macau.
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AEBRBEERBIMER

Tt EIERDI B
%&1@1}%%1@@1@2;1 2 ,ﬁﬁr&ﬁlJ (EFN

FrE([aEesTal]) - RELTE AR TH
FRRETE MBI ETATE - RIERE
SFE - BEEREBHYAREEBELSH 5%
MBS FTEEL S - BT —UE R
A—RAREAELRF ¢ LR A30,000%T -
MBS FEEL c R AEKTEEB - I
BEE B EAB ST ENER S - afE
SFECEERBUSTADHAREA - A%
B 2 & EHFBER AR TE S TSI 0T
HESHA—HTEEE -

HRERNRMIRZREXEZEE (ZEER
AR ERENESEZHEREEEZ
28mE)  AEBARBERGKRESEE
AFHeETAALEARNMEREESEL
W WRBRPIHL S REHIZ R -



33 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The original share option scheme adopted on 7 June 2004
expired on 6 June 2014. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20 August 2013, shareholders of the
Company have approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, and/or providing
benefits to participants. To determine the eligibility of the
participant, the board of directors of the Company may offer
to grant an option to any participant who has contribution to
the Group.

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are
subject to such terms and conditions as it may be determined
by the board of directors of the Company at its absolute
discretion and specified in the offer of a share option. The
terms and conditions may include: (i) vesting conditions
which must be satisfied before a share option holder’s option
shall become vested and capable of being exercised; and (ii)
the board of directors of the Company may, in its absolute
discretion, specify performance conditions that must be
achieved before a share option can be exercised, and/or the
minimum period for which a share option must be held before
it can be exercised.

The total numbers of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. Share options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme adopted by the Company will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’
approval provided that such renewal may not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue at the date of the
shareholders’ approval. For share option previously granted
under any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company, including those outstanding, cancelled and
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the relevant scheme,
or exercised share options will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the renewed limit.
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33 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, with the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, grant share
options in excess of the 10% limit to participants specifically
identified. In such situation, the Company will send a circular
to the shareholders of the Company containing a generic
description of the specified participants who may be granted
such share options, the number and terms of such share
options to be granted and the purpose of granting such
share options to the specified participants with an
explanation of how the terms of the share options will serve
the purpose. The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options to be granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No
share option may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting (with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting), which the Company will send a
circular to the shareholders of the Company and the circular
must disclose the identity of the participant, the number and
terms of the share options to be granted (and previously
granted to such participant), the total number of shares of the
Company already issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised share options) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
approval date.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The period within which the share options must be exercised
will be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options. The exercise of share options may
also be subject to any conditions imposed by the Company
at the date of grant.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the share options shall be no less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the
date of grant. The subscription price will be approved by the
board of directors of the Company at its absolute discretion
when the option is offered and notified to the participants.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Company
had no share option being granted, outstanding, lapsed or
cancelled pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

34 DEFERRED TAXATION 34 EERIE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FRN - REAUBIARERZELEHRES
consolidated statement of financial position and the BER D R EEENT

movements thereon during the year are as follows:

Revaluation
of leasehold
land and
buildings

HEL#HR
BFZEM
HK$'000
TAT

At 1 April 2020 R-T-TFEMNA—A (215,601)
Credited to other ETAEAMEERA

comprehensive income 58,999
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZEE 7,145
At 31 March 2021 RZE——F=H=+—H (149,457)
Credited to other ST AE M2 E A

comprehensive income 87,618
Credited to profit or loss SFABEE 5,092
At 31 March 2022 MN-ZE-—F=F=+—H (56,747)
At 31 March 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of RZEBE-—F=ZA=+—H KEETHE
approximately HK$282,908,000 (2021: approximately EHERRERD BN <« KBAHIEEE
HK$128,601,000) available for offsetting against its future %49 /£282,9080008 (= F = — F: 4
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised 128,601,000/ 7T) ° BB AN EATE A M B 5 [E
by the Group in respect of the unused tax losses due to the ZARB @ AR - AN BN E R BN
unpredictability of future profit streams for both years. The HEBERRELERIEEE - RERRDAM
unrecognised unused tax losses may be carried forward for TBEE AT T I BRfE 458 -
a period of:

2022 2021
—E-_= —E-—F

=

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAT

Indefinitely PR HA 282,908 128,601
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35 SHARE CAPITAL 35 MA

Number of g Number of
shares HK$’000 shares
RHEE FERT B8 E

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 ~ &EE(E0.028 L2 L@

HK$'000
FH7

each
Authorised: EEMRA
At 1 April 2021/2020 and R-B-—F/
31 March 2022/2021 “E-ZFMA-BR
—T-=F/
—E-—4=A=+—H 24,750,000,000 495,000  24,750,000,000 495,000
Issued and fully paid: E%ﬁ&%ﬁﬂﬁzﬁ :
At 1 April 2021/2020 and RZEZ—%/ZF=%
31 March 2022/2021 mA— H&_gzzﬁ/
—E-—%=A=+—H 13,614,480,666 272,290  13,614,480,666 272,290
Non-redeemable convertible  &XE{E0.02 /B2
preference shares of TR EE A ARELR
HK$0.02 each
Authorised: ETE M
At 1 April 2021/2020 and R-B-—F/
31 March 2022/2021 —Z-ZFMA-BR
—E-—E/
—E-—#=A=+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid: E%ﬁ&%ﬁﬂﬂi :
At 1 April 2021/2020 and RZEZ—%/ZF=%F
31 March 2022/2021 mA— H&_gzzﬁ/
—E-—%=A=+—H 3,750,000,000 75,000 3,750,000,000 75,000

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER
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35 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
Each of the non-redeemable convertible preference share
shall confer, in cease of any dividend or distribution being
declared and paid by the Company to the holders of the
ordinary shares of the Company, on the holder thereof, is the
same entitlement of dividend or distribution as the holder of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company into which
such non-redeemable convertible preference share may be
converted upon the exercise of conversion rights attached
thereto.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all of group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders while maximising
the benefits of other stakeholders through the optimisation of
the capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of: (i) net debts,
including amounts due to shareholders, loan from a related
company, bank loans, subordinated loans and lease
liabilities, less cash and bank balances in general accounts;
and (ii) total equity attributable to owners of the Company,
including share capital as ordinary shares and non-
redeemable convertible preference shares, and various
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the director of the
Company considers the cost and the risks associated with
each class of the capital to allow the Group to operate
effectively in the marketplace and sustain the future
development of the business.

Based on the recommendation of the directors of the
Company, the Group will maintain or adjust its capital
structure through the payment of dividends to shareholders,
new share issues, return capital to shareholders, issue of
new debt or redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35 H‘EZ'K(,@%)

Capital Risk Management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by using gearing
ratio, which is net debts divided by total equity. Net debts
including amounts due to shareholders, loan from a related
company, bank loans, subordinated loans and lease
liabilities, less cash and bank balances in general accounts.
The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period is as follows:

BEXRBEER®)
AEBRBEESGEL R (BMEB FHEKR#E
R ETHEEARERE - BN FERTEE
NIRRFIE  RE—REEQFICER R
TER  BEERNHEEAGER—REFZ
RERIRITEEG - MMEBRZEEEEL
ZIT

2022 2021

T —E -4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

Net debts B F58 5,735,360 6,580,985
Total equity R 1BEE 20,648,388 21,222,817
Gearing ratio EEAMGLE 0.28 0.31

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with the SFC for the regulated
activities they engage in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”) of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571). Under the
SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain their
liquid capital, being calculated by the assets and liabilities
adjusted as determined by the SF(FR)R, in excess of the
statutory floor requirement or 5% of the total adjusted
liabilities, whichever is higher. The required information is
filed with the SFC on a regular basis and the Group has fully
complied with those requirements for both years.

AEEZFMBRR([ZREMBAR D
HFIESRREERSNELEGEM - XMRE
MEBARARTEBAIFESTIEFF LB
BiRPIE TN ERLRRAE (MERER) R A ([5E
HZRHE (MBRER) RRDBETZRBES
ME - REEHFLPE (MBRER) R 2
RENBLARARKERDE S (ARERE
HEHE (MBRER) RAEEZCHEEE
RABBEAESH) BHAE TRAEHED
AEBEEEZS% (UABREERE) - IR
EEMATHRAFEESRR  MAKERH
EEEE2EETHERBRE
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36 RESERVES
The carrying amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements thereon for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 132.

Share
premium
The Company account

&7 RO
HK$'000
FET

36 f#fE

AEBERAFER E—FEZFHBEREE
LREBBHERFIRAEZHFERAREDHRE

5I] o

Capital

Contributed redemption Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total

BXRE

BB e REEN st
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

TR TR TR TR

At 1 April 2020 R-Z-_ZTFENA—A 11,739,980
Profit for the year F R -
Dividend paid (Note 13)  Eff#&2 (FiizE13) -

69,332 466 396,567 12,206,345
- - 64,717 64,717
- ~ (173645)  (173,645)

At 31 March 2021 RZE-——F=A=1+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 287,639 12,097,417
Loss for the year FRER - - - (163,774) (163,774)
At 31 March 2022 W-E-—f#=A=+—H 11,739,980 69,332 466 123,865 11,933,643

(a) The share premium account represents the excess of
proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

(b) The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired in the prior financial year. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that: (i) the Company is, or will
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; and (ii) the realisable value of the
Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.
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36 RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

Property revaluation reserve represents surplus or
deficit on revaluation of leasehold land and buildings.

FVOCI reserve represents change in fair value arising on
the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
assets and liabilities of foreign operations at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period into the
presentation currency of the Company at the end of
reporting period.

Retained earnings represents the accumulated net
profit recognised in profit or loss of each financial
years.

ATEMENTS
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37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

sre M HRREH

THE COMPANY

Non-current asset

FRBEE

Notes

ft et FET

37 ARDFZBBARREK

2022
gz

HK$°000

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
TFET

Interests in subsidiaries RETB ARz = 38 14,894,337 15,489,040
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and HEmEUWRER - Ze &
prepayments SEENESE 19,120 13,031
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEURBT B A B FkI18 1,000,053 1,000,053
Cash and bank balances He MIRITERS 78,209 253,276
1,097,382 1,266,360
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payable and accruals HAb R BRF R EST & A 3,733 3,640
Amounts due to shareholders FET IR R I8 3,704,523 4,304,523
Tax payable RS IE 2,530 2,530
3,710,786 4,310,693
Net current liabilities REBAETFE (2,613,404) (3,044,333)
Net assets EEFE 12,280,933 12,444,707
Capital and reserves EXRHiE
Share capital — ordinary shares AR — Lk 35 272,290 272,290
Share capital — non-redeemable AR — T EE
convertible preference shares AT AR B S A 35 75,000 75,000
Reserves & 36 11,933,643 12,097,417
Total equity ERBE 12,280,933 12,444,707
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38 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 38 MMBLQ A2
The following list only contains the particulars of subsidiaries TREZNIFEZEREFBGESHEE  BE
of the Company, which principally affects the consolidated HEBEZARNANBARFE B TITXRREE
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares EBHESN - FTEIR D LB RIS @k -
held is ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated in the below
table.

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERELA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued  Group’s Held
registration and and paid up share effective bythe Heldbya
Name of company operation capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AR BRER it/ EROR T&EE xAE  HWEAR
AEER EEH BRRAFE BRER 5E BE IEER
Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
VRERAR RERGES IEZ REER
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERURS ES REER
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited RERGES 5% REER
GR Casa Real Company Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa Real
Limited Hotel
ERERBERRAT R 100,000)2F7 BEEReBBE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
0 1T REZER
Golden Resorts Group Hotel  Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Investment Limited Hotel
ECREBEREBRAR  RM 100,000 27T BEERBE
Goventure Finance Limited”  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Provision of services to casinos
RERUES 1% run by SIM

ARBEE  BARIRS

Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RBRAHS e RERR
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38

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Name of company

NAER

Place of
incorporation/

registration and
operation
EMAL ERR
Ty

Proportion of ownership interest
BRERELA

Particulars of
registered/issued
and paid up
share capital
it/ BROR
HRRARE

Held

by the
Company
NG
=]

Group’s
effective
interest
F%8
BiRER

Held by a
subsidiary
WEAR
]

38 RHBARI 2= )

Principal activities

TEEK

New Times Entertainment Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Provision of services to casinos
Limited @ run by SIM
MERREBRAT R 100,0002F97 FIREE = 2 ISR ERE
Golden New Times Club® ~ Macau HK$32,500,000 100% - 100%  Provision of services to casinos
EERN - ! 32,500,000 run by SIM
MIREEE 7 BISRERE
Golden New Times 28 Macau MOP10,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of services to casinos
Club® 2P 10,000,0002F97T run by SIM
HEeiHN2B8EEE RBEE 2 B RIRY
Target All Investments British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Provision of services to casinos
Limited * RERURS ES run by SJM
LR EBRAR FIREE = 2 BRI RS
Good Start Group Limited *  British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Provision of services to casinos
RERURE E run by SIM
MIREEE 7 BISRERE
Crystal Sea Group Limited " British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding and
HERURES E operating Golden Times
Club in hotel
REFRRABELE
BEERREEE
Noble Brand Limited * British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Trading of listed securities
SERAES e EE W%

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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38

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

38 RHBAR 2z )

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued  Group’s
registration and and paid up effective
Name of company operation share capital interest
FMEL/ ER ot/ BRIR r5E
AEER e BRRAFE BRER
Kingston Securities Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000,000 100%
SNEESERRA B 5,000,000,000 7 7
Kingston Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100%
THNEREERAR BB 15,000,000/ 7T
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100%
Finance Limited N 11,000,000 T
eNEHBERERAA
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100%
Management Limited N 5,000,000/ 7T
ENEEEERRERAA
Canada United Potash Canada CAD50,000,100 N/A
Limited* nex 50,000,100 117 @A
# Companies operate principally in Hong Kong instead of their

respective places of incorporation or establishment.

respective places of incorporation or establishment.

Companies operate principally in Macau instead of their

@ Golden New Times 28 Club and Golden New Times Club are
registered in Macau as business enterprises under the control

of and were operated by New Times Entertainment Limited.

* Canada United Potash Limited has been deregistered on 24

February 2022.

BRERRLA

Held
bythe Heldbya
Company subsidiary  Principal activities
ARE WEAF
2} BE IEER

- 100%  Dealing and advising
in securities and
margin financing

BHRHRER
ARREERE

- 100%  Dealing in futures contracts
HEANRH

- 100%  Provision of corporate finance
advisory services

Feit M B BRI R

- 100%  Provision of asset management
services
RUEEEERYE

- N/A  Investment holding
TER  REER

# FEEBBMIFEEHZAMA LKL
HhF EE 2 N A]

8 FEERPIMIHEE B ZAMALEK T
HhF EE 2 NA]

e EHHABEZEREHNAEES
HRBFIZEL BB EEF WA AR
REMAFIZEH R -

* Canada United Potash Limited & »% — &
it e = ey of 0N = F 2 55= A0
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39 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s financial
liabilities arising from its financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash movements. For those financial liabilities
arising from financing activities are for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities:

39 LERERERMT

TRAMAEEREETSMELSRAG L
g BREREMIIFRSED - MERDHN
EfeRAE R RECK(HRKRR
MERE)NAREGARERERTOE
ARELTBMELRSREZSRARE

Amounts Loan from

due to arelated Subordinated Lease
Bank loans shareholders company loans liabilities
RE—R
BTER EBARRRE HBHEAREX REER HEEE
(Note 30) (Note 27) (Note 28) (Note 29)
(Hfz£30) (Hizt27) (Hfzt28) (Hfat29)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET TR TET
At 1 April 2021 R-E--FWA—-H 560,000 4,594,523 1,658,343 700,000 31,328
Advance from a related company —XREEA :@a - - 2,056,019 - -
Repayment to a related company  [[—REE LN &R - - (2,947,086) - -
Proceeds from bank loans BITEFETEFUE 5,830,000 - - - -
Repayments of bank loans BRFITER (5,950,000) - - - -
Repayments to shareholders BERRBR - (600,000) - - -
Interest paid BERFE - (35,350) - - -
Repayments of interest portion EEHE8EFN ST
on lease liabilities - - - - (796)
Repayments of principal portion ~ EEHEEERL D
on lease liabilities - - - - (34,741)
Total changes from financing RERSREEYRE
cash flows (120,000) (635,350) (891,067) = (35,537)
Non-cash transactions: HRETH
Lease modification ik J\’}Eﬁz - - - - 82,956
Finance costs BB A - 35,350 - - 796
At 31 March 2022 R-E-Z§=A=+-H 440,000 3,994,523 767,276 700,000 79,543
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39 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39 LEBRERERMTE @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Amounts Loan from

Dividend due to arelated  Subordinated Lease
Bank loans payable shareholders company loans liabilities
ERRE  ERRERE b\ REEN HEBE
(Note) (Note 27) (Note 29) (Note 31)
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' OOO HK$ OOO
JETE ?ﬁﬂfﬁ ?,ra/ 7L BT :’#‘7 F B0
At 1 April 2020 R-B-SFEMA—H 1,050,000 - 4,394,523 2,114,146 700,000 65,776
Advance from a related company — BB A G - - - 1,451,105 - -
Repayment to a related company  F—RBELNFER - - - (2,506,908) - -
Proceeds from bank loans BBZFERE 9,770,000 - - - - -
Repayments of bank loans BEFTER (10,260,000) - - - - -
Advances from shareholders IR - - 200,000 - - -
Dividend paid BEREE - (173,645) - - - -
Interest paid BERFIE - - (35,350) - - -
Repayments of interest portion ~ BEFEAEFISED
on lease liabilities - - - - - (2,241)
Repayments of principal portion ~ EEME&EALHH
on lease liabilities - - - - - (34,448)

Total changes from financing HEASRELHEE

cash flows (490,000  (173:645) 164650  (1,055,803) - (36,689)
Non-cash transactions: FReR5
Dividend declared BEERRE - 173,645 - - - -
Finance costs WERK - - 35,350 - - 2,241
At 31 March 2021 R-B--F=fA=+-H 560,000 - 4,594,523 1,658,343 700,000 31,328
Note: The carrying amount of dividend payable is included in trade Wit R-FZ—ER-F-_—F=F=+—H"
and other payables as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. FETIR B2 AREEF A B 5 KA M FE 5
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40 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40 HETCHEEHESRHAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following tables present details of the Group’s financial TREVNWAREB A FEBZEREELSR
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to offsetting, BEZHE BHESREENSRABBR K
restricted by the enforceable master netting arrangement or EEEFEBAPTREEGE AR K40 EHT S
similar agreement between the Group and Hong Kong AP =GE Kaavl b - V= oo o e |
Securities Clearing Company Limited, brokers and dealers PRS- FERE —BESEE MRS MR
cash and margin clients that are due to be settled on the BeEFP  BAEEBRNFHEEEZER
same date and the Group intends to settle these balance on 2 o
a net basis.

Financial assets subject to offsetting
AFEHzeRER
Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERGSBBRRAREH
ZHHEHE

Grossamount  Net amount
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities offset presented

Gross inthe in the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated Financial
recognised  statement of statement  instruments Cash
financial financial of financial other than collateral

assets position position cash collateral received Net amount
RE& R&Ea
BERRE  BBHRER  REERR
BERER  HE#HERE 2flzed Bohe BEHRE
EEAE SRAEAE EERR $RIA ERm FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TR TAR TAL TEL

At 31 March 2022: R-B-CF
ZR=t-R:
Advances to customers in AEFRHRES
Margin financing g 19,468,516 (13,008) 19,455,508 (1,892,214) - 17,563,294
Trade and other receivables  E 5 REMENER 47,781 (15,572) 32,209 - - 32,209
At 31 March 2021: R=B=-%
=ZA=1+-8:
Advances to customers in REF&fRES
Margin financing BE 18,363,249 (21,083) 18,342,166 (2,065,550) - 16,276,616
Trade and other receivables ZoREMENET 63,199 (36,133) 27,066 - - 27,066
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40

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continueo)

40 BRETHMEERSHMER @

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

Gross amount

of recognised

financial

assets offset

Gross in the
amountof  consolidated
recognised statement
financial of financial
liabilities position
Nty

ERALH BHERR
BEEE LREELR
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIL

IFEECERAE

Related amounts not offset in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
BERR AR B REH
ZEBLE

Net amount
of financial
liabilities
presented
in the
consolidated Financial
statement  instruments
of financial other than
position cash collateral
iy
BERRE  BEEAR
k1 Wz
BEFE SRIA
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL

Cash
collateral
received

EkRE
iRl
HK$'000
T

Net amount

8
HK$'000
47

At 31 March 2022: R-B--#
=E=t-H:
Trade and other payables B REMENERR 604,142 (28,580) 575,562 = = 575,562
At 31 March 2021: RZE=-&
=B=+-R:
Trade and other payables E5REMBENERR 1,251,127 (57,216) 1,193,911 - - 1,193,911

THE

MEEER AT
—EC-CFEER
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40 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The tables below reconcile the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables at the end of
reporting period as presented in the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position:

Trade and other receivables
ESRHEMEWRR

Trade and other receivables within the

HEREHREANZES N

40 HEEHEERESHAEE»

TRERANEEERAMFBICARA 25N R
SHIRE S R A EUARREE 5 & E MR

IR 2 RREE 2 S0k

2022

HK$°000
FET

2021

— = —

—=

HK$'000
TAT

scope of offsetting disclosure H A ETBRFR 32,209 27,066
Trade and other receivables not within R EEE 2

the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 R H A FE AR R 60,270 71,236

92,479 98,302

Less: Loss allowance W IR (24,143) (25,715)
Trade and other receivables as EREMTEAR R RATIEEE 2

disclosed in the consolidated B 5 MhE M EWIRR

statement of financial position 68,336 72,587

Trade and other payables
5 RHMENRR

2022

HK$°000
FET

2021

— = —

=

HK$'000
TAT

Trade and other payables within the BHEFESEEAZE SN

scope of offsetting disclosure HoAth FE AT BR X 575,562 1,193,911
Trade and other payables not within NER I EEE

the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 R H M TR 132,685 113,641
Trade and other payables as disclosed 4 & B iBARR R ATIRE 2

in the consolidated statement of B 5 NEMENBRR

financial position 708,247 1,307,552
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M HERRERE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €@MTERER

The carrying amounts of Group’s financial instruments
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows. Refer to
Note 4(g) for explanations about how the category of
financial instruments affect their subsequent

RZEBE-Z—_FR-_FT=-—F=#
—+—H AEEcRMTAZRAEB
IR o Bt mt T EEE R a0 {A] 52 £ A
FECHEEBFECHE  B2HME

measurement for both years. 4(g) °
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets: TRIEE
— At fair value through other — BRRAFER AHAM
comprehensive income 2EHA 122 158
— At fair value through profit or loss — BAFEEAER 91,001 124,323
— At amortised cost — IR AR
— Advances to customers in —AEFPBMREBESHE
margin financing 13,747,328 14,368,830
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 RHAMEUEER 65,344 65,348
— Cash and bank balances — e RIRITEER 877,252 2,197,513
14,781,047 16,756,172
Financial liabilities: TRAE:
— At amortised cost — JREESERAR
— Trade and other payables — B RHAMEMER 708,247 1,307,552
— Amounts due to shareholders — FE AR NIE 3,994,523 4,594,523
— Loan from a related company — RE—XKHBELARER 767,276 1,658,343
— Subordinated loans —BEEXR 700,000 700,000
— Bank loans —iRITER 440,000 560,000
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 79,543 31,328
6,689,589 8,851,746

Note: The fair value of financial instruments measured at

fifet -

RZFEZZFRER T =-—F=H4

=1—H ZEERASBEZEHBT
AZ R FEHRKRIERE

amortised cost are approximate to their carrying
amounts as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

246

policies

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks, including market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management policies focus on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimise any potential
adverse impacts on the Group’s financial position and
financial performance. The risk management policies
are carried out by the senior management of the Group
under the approval by the directors of the Company.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
Macau and exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from foreign currency other than the
functional currency of the respective business
operations, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), United States Dollars (“USD”), and
Singapore Dollars (“SGD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from sales and purchase transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities.

(@

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated financial instruments as at
31 March 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

—E=-=
HK$’000
FH7

usD
RMB
SGD

ey
ARE
FTINE T

Kingston Financial Group Limited
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(b)

Liabilities

&fE

2022

27,898
1,508

10

—E-—4F
HK$'000

MEERER

BEREREBERBE

AEBZXBEAXZHEMBRER £
EhSAR (BREELRR - FIXER
LERER) EERBRMEBE SR
o REBZERBAREERRET
REBTHZ AR - W3R D
AR B RSO R B R IR 2 (A
BETNEE - AEESREEREHRE
ARBEFETERREREERE

SRR

[E 5 Rl
AEBEZNEFBRRFKER
B WARERERKLEZINEE
BEEAINZ SN B 2 [E R
B TESRARETAR
% 1)~ ET([3ETT)) BT
(F#rpmpT)) - EXRRKEE
BEXHNEEREERAE -

(M

RZE-_—_FR-_ZTE-_—%=A
=+—H AEEUINEFHEZ
SRTEREENAT :

Assets
BE
2022
—E_—
HK$’000
FE T

2021 2021
—E-—4F
HK$'000

TETT TATT

7 29,335 1,031
6,876 19,283 19,913
2 21 291
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 41 BHEEEE @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEMEEREREE

policies (continued)

(i) Market risk (continued) (i) ™WERERE
Foreign exchange risk (continued) & 5z (48)
The Group does not have foreign currency N E B &N SR BUR
hedging policy. However, the management m EEEesie 9|\ﬁ%4§1§57}<$
regularly monitors the foreign exchange exposure T E HABE AR IE KR f - DATE(R
in terms of controlling the level of foreign currency Fﬁﬁﬁuutﬂﬂ TRy
receipts and payments to ensure the net exposure ZXKE - TRBEERZE

of foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable

level from time to time and will consider to use |

financial derivatives for hedging significant foreign
currency exposure when it is necessary.

The management does not expect any significant BRI BT EREE -
EILABTT R ME TR AT
MG M EARE) - AEE
REEFERZARKE S ETZA
BEIEREB) & -

movements in the foreign exchange rate of USD
to HKD and SGD to HKD in accordance with the
historical exchange rate movements. The Group
is mainly exposed to the possible fluctuation of
exchange rate of RMB to HKD.

ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ?ﬁilﬁ%ﬁ#iﬁlﬁ%

EIRE TR

The following table indicates the possible change Ti%ﬁlJ%Z$’% B v E£RNIBEARE
in the Group’s profit or loss for the year in Agefe(RAEERENRE
response to possible changes of foreign ,H‘HEEEKXEX}\EMHM)@E
exchange rates to which the Group has significant 7 ABEEE) -

exposure in RMB at the end of reporting period.

2022
—E_—

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in foreign in profit

exchange after tax

rates for the year

FRAKRBE

ExtH - HEFLMS

() O 2)

% HK$’000

% THET

Renminbi AR 4% 771
(4%) (771)

2021

—i——i

—=

Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign
exchange
rates

B L7
(FB&)

%

%

4%
(4%)

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax
for the year
FRRBE
pig b1
Rt 2>)
HK$'000
THIT

522
(522)

SRS 047



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF %5 SR 2% P 2

Ira

N

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

248

U

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

It is assumed that the possible change of foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk for
financial instruments existed at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular market interest
rates, remained constant. It is also assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar
and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in the movement of
the United States dollar against other foreign
currencies. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as at 31 March 2021.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arising
primarily from its advances to customers in
margin financing, bank deposits, amounts due to
shareholders, loan from a related company, lease
liabilities, bank loans and subordinated loans
carried at fixed or variable interest rates. Financial
instruments carried interest at variable interest
rates and fixed interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

The Group did not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management regularly monitors the Group’s
exposure on an ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points (2021:
100 basis points) of interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, the net interest rate risk
exposure would increase/(decrease) the Group’s
profit after tax and retained earnings of
approximately HK$111,767,000 (2021:
approximately HK$121,818,0 00).
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(i) TEEAR®
[E 35 % ()

ERRE XA REHEENHRE R

B WEERARAEERZA

h*ﬁz/i* BT A PTE &R

- BB EMEB(ERER
iﬁ?‘FUT)ZEFFF‘;‘ o [RI B IR R 3R
BLHETZBBEETARTE

R BRI EAMHNE 2 E ] &

¥E- —T-—F=A=+—8H

ZAMTIRAEREEETT -

FIEmmR

AEEZHNERBEEHERETE
FIRF BRI EFEH 2 AP BN
RECHE - RITHER - B
HES
HRBEERESE -
&/%@f']$&.E$|J+a+,%\m$
BTESAEEDHIHEBRIRE ST
RATFERERR -

A @%QTE%
&~ iR77

EFE R

AEBTERASMOTETAY
EmE MR o BIRER
BEMERASEAT 2 @R
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

U

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the changes of market interest
rates had occurred at the end of reporting period
and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments existed
at that date, and that all other variables, remained
constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as at 31 March 2021.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
its equity securities investment (Note 21), and
investment funds, whose returns are linked to a
portfolio of securities listed in Hong Kong and
other stock markets of which can refer to the net
asset value of the investment funds respectively.

The Group’s equity securities investments are
listed in Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or sell are
based on daily monitoring of performance of
individual securities, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. Management monitors its
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of securities
with different risk profiles. In addition, the
investment fund selection has been chosen
based on their net asset value and growth
prospects on the basis of regular monitoring.

41
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MEERERE
(b) MEEKREERZREEK )

(M)

™iE R (&)

FYF R % (48)

BURRE 2 AT R 5 T 45 1) R B B R
MEAREE  WEERAREAE
ERZBFacem T EMmE
FIER - MATE SR
T 2 -—F=H=+—H
2N TYIRFAEREEELT -

B bR
AEEFAZ 2 EBERRKEHEED
ﬁﬁ#?%&ﬁ@%?ﬁ%tﬁ
ZRBHFEREE B BRAE
HE(HF21) RIEEES 8
WEHGEEFE-

REBZRAFBHFRENEE L
e BEASUAHZRE HIRIES

HERERNESFRREUALRAER
//lbiﬂﬁ/i\g;ﬁgﬁﬂzﬂj c EIRE M
REFHEHETAEIRRARRER Z
BRE - UEEARAEER - o
AEERBREEEFENHIE
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)
Price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
for 26% (2021: 23%) change in the equity prices
of both equity securities and investment funds,
with all other variables held constant, and based
on their carrying amounts at the end of reporting
period. For the equity securities, the impact is
recognised in the profits or loss, which might have
impact on the retained earnings, whereas for the
investment funds, the impact is recognised in the
other comprehensive income, which might have
impact on the FVOCI reserve at the end of
reporting period.

250

2022 —BoCf

Financial assets at far value BRAFEFAEBHRZ
through profit or loss TREE

Financial assets at fair value BATHESARMEE
through other comprehensive WAZEREE
income

2021 —B--f

Financial assets at far value BRAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss TREE

Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEMETR
through other comprehensive WAZEREE

income
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MEERER @

(b)

U

BREREEEERBE®

s R ()
B m (4)
TRHAPEMEEMEBEERT
""""" FZIERT  BERON RS E
RZEEERE  BREABHFRIE
BEHSREBEH26% (T ——
F:03%) CBRE - BLIRAE
%ﬁ% T ENBREER
M IREB AFER T E - st
&é%iﬁa ﬁﬁé% ﬁm
EHERARER -
XZ%@lﬁﬁAEM%E%A
{51 -

Increase/

(decrease) in

Increase/ net profit/(loss)

(decrease) in
basis points

HE A
(N )

26%

26%

23%

23%

and retained

Increase/
(decrease) in
FVOCI

reserve
BRAFERA
Hitt2E
LON: 1]
#n,/ (Hd)
HK$'000
THET

earnings

=/ (E8)
FER
REZR
#h, ()
HK$'000
THT

23,660 =

28,594 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wm

ﬁ%#&%l}ﬁ nf

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
banks, advances to customers in margin
financing and trade and other receivables.
Management has strict credit policy in place to
ensure that the credit risk exposure is monitored
on regular basis.

Before granting credit facilities to margin clients,
the Group implements internal credit assessment
process to assess the potential clients’ financial
background, credit quality and market value of
securities, and defines a certain level of credit
limits to margin clients, which are reviewed by the
management regularly. The Group obtains
securities collateral from margin clients in terms of
maintaining a list of approved securities for
margin lending, at a specified loan-to-collateral
ratio and force-sell action may be taken against
margin clients with overdue balance on case-by-
case basis performed daily to minimise the credit
risk exposure in respect of the margin clients.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management has delegated a team, who is
responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each trade debtor at the
end of each reporting periods to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable debts. Trade receivables from hotel
and gaming segments are due within 30 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain securities
collateral from customers for all operating
segments.

41

MEERER

(b)

BREREEEERBE®

(i) FEERRE

REEAZ 2 EERRIERITIR
T MEPEMNRE %ﬂéu&

ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%% R KB R

ﬁﬁeamﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ M

BREHEREERR

EHHEERETRESETRZ
Al - AREEEmAREEFERE
FIAEBRERERR 2MBE
B FEEERLEFME AR/
RESEPREATEERER
FREERBAEEEEN®R
A e REEEBEE —MIREEER
HEARLRETRESEREZ
ﬁ% EEEFPI

Bt RZ{E
A5 L 78 B & %ﬂﬁ EEEP
REGRSIHETE - AFEERE

RAEH AR
BB

REEPZEERR -

WEZREMEYRERTNS - &
HEL AEETE
EERRE BREEUARETH
hEERR - FERC AU B

EECEE—

BIASRERBRETTE) - Uk

BREHRERREHNSESED
AZ AR EIEHE - ARERBL AT
YW el BRI R SR EE R - B
JE KGR0 582 B 5 AR R

0BREIE - —WmE  AEE
TEeBXMEEKSHEZEFIR

ﬁ\unﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁ oo °

SHESMEBBRAR
—EC-CFEER

251



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
sre M HRREH

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 41 BHEEEE @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEREARESEEERBEK®)
policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued) (i) FERRE

The counterparties of all client trust bank
balances are located in Hong Kong and the
majority of bank balances are deposited in Hong
Kong with sounded financial institutions, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the credit
risk of the Group’s bank balances and client trust
bank balances is minimal.

The Group applies simplified approach to
measure loss allowances on trade receivables
arising from transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 15 and general approach to measure
loss allowances on advances to customers in
margin financing and other categories of financial
assets at amortised cost. Under the simplified
approach, the Group measures the loss
allowances on the basis of lifetime ECL
assessment. Under the general approach, the
Group measures the loss allowances firstly in a
12-month ECL assessment (or lifetime ECL
assessment if the term of the asset is shorter),
unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition to apply lifetime
ECL assessment.

The management further assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the
related financial asset is either in Stage 2 or Stage
3 (see below for definition). In assessing whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost of effort. This include
both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informative credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk (continued)
Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 of
stages of default are as below:

Stage 1: Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL
associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

The management regarded those margin clients
without actual shortfall (i.e. deficit between market
value of collaterals and margin loan balance).

Stage 2: Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired, a lifetime
ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the
financial asset) is recognised.

The management regarded that those margin
clients with actual shortfall but the securities
collaterals are in poor quality, which is suspended
in trading in the capital market, but those margin
clients signed their repayment schedules with the
Group.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

254

(if)

Credit risk (continued)

Stage 3: Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures
that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL
is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost, net of provision, rather than the
gross carrying amount from the beginning of the
subsequent reporting period.

The management regarded that those margin
clients with actual shortfall but the securities
collaterals is in poor quality, which is suspended
in trading in the recognised stock exchanges and
also the Group has lost contact with those margin
clients

The Group measures the loss allowances of trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated either individually or
collectively by using provision matrix. According
to the historical repayment records and
management loss experience, it does not indicate
that there is any significantly different loss pattern
of customers in different operating segments. The
calculation of loss allowances is based on the
past due status by grouping all of customers, who
shared a similar characteristics and economic
environment where they are located at the end of
reporting period.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 41 BIREERBEEE 2
BREREEEERBE®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued)
The following table provides information about the
Group’s credit risk exposures and loss allowances
of trade receivables as at the end of reporting
period:

As at 31 March 2022

(i) EERBE)

TRBUEMN SRS HRAEE
B 5 MR 32 5 AR 2 1R
g2 &R

R-B-—H=HA=+—H

Expected
Gross credit loss
carrying  excluding Gross Loss
amount loss carrying allowances
excluding allowances  amount of for
Expected specific for specific specific specific Total
credit trade trade trade trade loss
loss rate receivables receivables receivables receivables allowances
RAEE
REAE g
(FEf (FEfE  BEES KEES
#EEZ KEES BRERe BUERZ  BRAER
ERES) EBUERR) REAE  BEEG g
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TAL TET THAL TAR
0-30 days past due @H0Z30A 0.3% 40,021 (112) - - (112)
31-60 days past due AH3Z60A 0.6% 31 - - - -
61-90 days past due @H61290H 1.2% 1,204 (14) - - (14)
Over 90 days past due AH0AMNE 14.3% 2,494 (357) 23,379 (23,379) (23,736)
43,750 (483) 23,379 (23,379) (23,862)
LHEERERARAR

—EC-CFEER
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued)
As at 31 March 2021

41
(b)

MEERER
BEEMREEEEREE ®)

EERR®)
R-ZB-—-H=H=+—8H

Gross
carrying
amount
excluding
specific
trade
receivables

Expected
credit
|oss rate

Expected
credit loss
excluding
loss
allowances
for specific
trade
receivables
BHEE

Gross
carrying
amount of
specific
trade
receivables

Loss
allowances
for

specific
trade
receivables

Total
loss
allowances

HK$ 000

0-30 days past due #H0F0AE 04% 35443 (149) - - (149)
31-60 days past due BH31Z60H 0.7% 331 ) - - )
61-90 days past due @H61290H 1.9% 316 (6) - - (6)
Over 90 days past due BEO AN L 15.3% 2,286 (1,880) 23,384 (23,384) (25,264)
48376 (2037) 23384 (23384)  (25421)
The expected credit loss rates are based on the EHEEBEEXERNBENBRE
actual loss experience over the past financial ErERBELRET - 25

years. These rates are adjusted to reflect the
difference between the characteristics and
economic environment of trade debtors during
the period when the historical data is extracted,
current conditions and future expectations over
the lifetime of trade receivables.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount of
advances to customers in margin financing as at
31 March 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

REAFTE A R BRI B BUR

HEE 5

%ﬁ%}\Zﬁ%@ﬁi%%@%

BRzZR BRERREEE
JE W BR R B 2 R IRTER

[ p——

i
=+—B"

FR-ZF-_—%=A
FRAE P BNRES

BMEZREBESHTIT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—MEER B E=MER #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT

As at 31 March 2022 R-ZB-—F
=A=+—H 5,695,639 9,391,335 4,368,534 19,455,508

As at 31 March 2021 WZEZ—F
=ZA=+—H 7,969,153 7,539,965 2,833,048 18,342,166
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

Movements of loss allowances that has been
recognised for advances to customers in margin
financing during the year are as follows:

e s

41 BIEERERE
(b) BEEAREEEERBE®)

Stage 1
Lifetime
ECL
F-ME&

KARH
ERES
HK$'000

TR

(i) EERKE )
FARAEFAN RIS HE R

B2 ERREE

Stage 2
Lifetime
ECL
BB
KARH
REER
HK$'000
AT

BT

Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL
EZRE
KARH
REER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT BT

At 1 April 2020 (Note i) “ZTEMA-H () - 850,169 1,667,076 2517,245
Changes due to financial instruments A = =2 €M 5 —H
recognised at 1 April 2020: BReMIAEECE
— Transfer between stage 2 —REZBBEREZEE
to stage 3 ZHEER - (198,396) 198,396 -
— New financial assets originated — E4H S HEE - 222,157 246 222,403
— Financial assets that have been — B MR BIKEE
derecognised - (32,252) (284) (32,536)
— Unwinding of interest FEBE - - 320,177 320,177
— Net remeasurement of ECL ERGEENBEEERA
without transfer of stage FE - 417,112 28,563 445,675
— Net remeasurement of ECL BREEELNBHEESR
arising from transfer of stage 2SR - (24,143) 524,515 500,372
At 31 March 2021 and R-Z-—-F=ZA=t-8k
1 April 2021 (Note i) “E=-FmA—-AME) - 1,234,647 2,738,689 3,973,336
Changes due to financial instruments ER —Z ~—F 0 5 —H
recognised at 1 April 2021: BReRIAEECE
— Transfer from stage 2 to stage3  — AE_HREEE
FE-RE - (254,376) 254,376 -
— New financial assets originated — E4H S RHEE - 196,387 140 196,527
— Financial assets that have been  — B4R B KA
derecognised - (44,805) (14,894) (59,699)
— Unwinding of interest — FE&E - - 596,325 596,325
— Net remeasurement of ECL —BRGERNEEEE
without transfer of stage B8 - 180,921 143,830 324,751
— Net remeasurement of ECL —BRERELNESEE
arising from transfer of stage BEENTEFE - 26,872 650,068 676,940
At 31 March 2022 (Note i) WZE-=F=RA=+-H
UED) - 1,339,646 4,368,534 5,708,180
S L SR

et Trra 257
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

258

(i)

(iif)

Credit risk (continued)
Notes:

(i) In order to assess the ECL among different stages
of default, the management performed an
assessment based on their historical credit loss
experience, adjusted to factors that are specific to
the margin clients, general economic conditions
and forecast of future conditions at the end of
reporting period. The management also reviews
the fair value of pledged securities received from
the margin clients and monitors their assessment
regularly to reduce differences between loss
estimates and their actual loss experience.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
trade debtors. At 31 March 2022 and 2021, there
was no concentration of credit risk with respect to
the receivables, there was no customer is
responsible for more than 10% of the Group’s
trade receivables and advances to customers in
margin financing.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s credit risk exposure arising from
advances to customers in margin financing and
trade and other receivables are disclosed in
Notes 22 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s regulated activities under the SFC
are subject to different statutory liquidity
requirements as prescribed in accordance with
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571).
The management closely monitors the liquidity
gap to ensure that the Group maintains adequate
liquid capital to fund its daily operating expenses
and various commitments and to comply with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571). As
part of the measurement is to safeguard the
minimum liquidity requirements, the Group has
maintained a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the uses of the
shareholders’ loan, related company loan,
subordinated loan and banking facilities, in order
to meet its liquidity requirements in both short and
long terms.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 41 BHEEEE @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BERAREEEERBE®)

policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBELRERE)
The following table details the remaining TREVAEBEFETESREE
contractual maturities at the end of reporting RIERR 2 FIBAE L EmER
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial DIRBEEHRUBRESTE 8
liabilities, which are based on the contractual ERBAEOFEFTE (A%
undiscounted cash flows (including interest B AIIRESRE SR RITHE
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SHE)ZHMENT - LARAEER
floating, based on the current rates at the end of ARERNRz&FHHERE

reporting period) and the earliest date that the
Group can be required to pay:

2022
—ECCE
Total Total
Effective contractual Within i contractual Within
interest Carrying undiscounted  oneyearor  More than i Camying undiscounted ~ oneyearor  More than

rate amount  cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
aKARE  -ERg —FRg,
Ly FEE RERELE EEX  -ENE BHE 2K —EIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS$000
THR ThR ThR THR Tin AT TAT

Tradeandother  ZHREH

payables EfiER - 708,247 708,247 708,247 - - 1,307,552 1,307,552 1,307,552 -

Amonisduete  BRREZE
shareholders 2.5% 3,994,523 3,994,523 3,994,523 - 26% 4594523 4594523 4594523 -

Loanfrom arelated K& —F il
company NAlET 3.5% 767,276 767,276 767,276 - 35% 1,658,343 1,658,343 1,698,343 -
Subordinated loans  #EEF 31% 700,000 700,000 700,000 - 31% 700,000 700,000 700,000 -
Bank loans FER 1.1% 440,000 440,000 440,000 - 3.33% 560,000 560,000 560,000 -
Lease liabilties fgefk 1.1% 79,543 80,678 28,075 52,603 48% 31,328 31955 31955 -
6OBOS 66074 GRMBIN 52608 885176 BENS B82S -

SRR 050
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Fair value estimation

260

The fair values of financial instruments are determined
as follows:

the fair value of equity securities investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss that are traded in active liquid
markets is determined with reference to quoted
market prices in the recognised stock exchange
at the end of reporting period. A market is
regarded as active and liquid if the quoted market
prices are readily and regularly available from a
recognised stock exchange, broker or regulatory
agency, which represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the equity
securities investment is included in Level 1 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy (see below for
definition);

the fair value of investment funds classified as
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is based on the net asset
value of investment funds with reference to
recognised stock exchanges at the end of
reporting period. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021,
the investment funds is included in Level 2 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy (see below for
definition) when it maximise the use of observable
market data when it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimations
especially when it is not traded in active and
liquid market; and

the fair value of other financial instruments are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flows by using prices or rates from
observable market transactions as input.
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure” requires
the disclosure of financial instruments that are
measured at fair value categorised by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 —

Level2 —

Level3 —

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value as at 31
March 2022 and 2021:

At 31 March 2022

41

MEERER

(d)

TR ITAXFERE

FEVBRELEANSZTHRISHMTE
BEIBE  URAFEHEZERTA
BTN EFERRE D EL #

B

F—H4H — HRBEXREREERT
52 BB (CRERE) -
FMH — BESRERTENE—
BRREETERZBA
i Tweak(AE
) HEE (A ERS
TE)BREE -
AREEFRBIHAR
BYFENABR NS
BE(ANELZBERHAHK
®) -

F=HH —

TRIIBAEER_ZE-_—_FR_-ZF
T—F=ZA=1+—HURAFEFEZ
SRTA:

R-B-—F=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E— A E_ A et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT TET TERT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRVEE 44,231 46,770 91,001
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTAEMEERA
through other ZERERE
comprehensive income - 122 122
44,231 46,892 91,123

SRLSpERMERAR
—EC-CFEER

201
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
(continued)
At 31 March 2021

41

MEERER
(d EMIEQAFESHRE

R-ZB-—fH=H=+—H

Total
E 4R Fay

Level 2

Level 1

5

HK$'000
T

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
THET

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAERZ
through profit or loss CREE 74,370 49,953 124,323
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAEMEEBA
through other ZERERE
comprehensive income - 158 158
74,370 50,111 124,481

The fair value of investment funds classified as level 2
of the fair value measurement hierarchy is determined
by the net asset value indicated in the monthly
statement of the underlying investment funds as at 31
March 2022 and 2021 as there is no public market for
trading the investment funds. The fair value of
investment funds is positively correlated to the
underlying net asset value.

The fair value of certificates of deposit classified as
level 2 of the fair value measurement hierarchy is
determined by the fair value provided by the financial
institution as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 as there is no
public market for trading the certificates of deposit.

There are no transfers between different levels of fair
value measurement hierarchy for both years.
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42 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

(a)

The Group has leased out minor area of its leasehold
land and building to a number of tenants as the lessor
of operating leases. The lease term of those tenants
committed to the Group are ranged from one to ten
years (2021: one to ten years) when the lease contracts
were signed. Rental income was recognised in a fixed
monthly interval, and no contingent rental income was
entitled to be received by the Group, with reference to
the lease contracts entered.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable
operating lease contracts, which was fall due as
follows:

42

AR

T =

(a)

REBEAKEHEZEEA B
HENHoBELHNEFHEEATZE
P -EXHEANE  Z5HF
MAEEAFZZBEANT—FE=+
FAE(ZEZ—F: —FE2F+F) -
HEWAETATEERER  MAEEE
E2BER 2SS RIS ATE

R-E-——GR-_E—-—F=#
=+—B  AEERTIAHEELHE
EANETZARBRRERSAE

R TFIER 2

2022 2021

—=—_ B —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

Within one year —FR 13,455 22,911
More than one year, but not exceeding ZR—FBRBBME

two years 2,203 10,615
More than two years, but not exceeding ~ ZRMFEEKRRIB=F

three years 10 1,154

15,668 34,680

The Group entered into non-cancellable operating
lease contracts in respect of its warehouses and car
park with landlords and the lease terms committed by
the Group are within one year (2021: within one year)
when the lease contracts were signed.

The minimum lease payments recognised as expenses
during the year are as follows:

Short-term lease expenses

FEHITEE R

AREEXICHARERESESIYL
TAREKEHEEAN  ERFIMEE
AR AREARZHEESRR—F
N(ZZEZ—F: —FR)-

FARER R S Z RIEA

SFIEMT

2022

2021
—T - —4F
HK$'000
FHE T

HK$°000
FET

530 353
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44

45

sre M HRREH

COMMITMENTS

Expenditure contracted for but not
provided for in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment

ZXH

43

— W% BEREE

EiE

2022

HK$ 000
FET

HK$'000
TAT

TSR R ERTKME R

UNDERWRITING AND SUBUNDERWRITING
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group guaranteed to purchase the
securities in underwriting amounted to approximately
HK$35,161,000, being offered by sales of securities, at an
agreed-upon price between the Group and the issuer of
securities, regardless of whether or not the securities can be
sold to investors in the futures.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the underwriting arrangement is insignificant to the Group.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its customer contracts relating to
underwriting services, such that the Group had not disclosed
information about revenue that the Group will be entitled to
when it satisfies the remaining performing obligations under
the contracts that had an original expected duration of one
year or less and any estimated amounts of variable
consideration that are constrained.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party and
connected transactions during the year.
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45 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration of key management personnel, including
those remuneration paid or payable to the directors of

45

EXRESTRBERS @

(a) FEEBAEME
TEEERAEHNE  BREFAEHHK
ENARRERZZEME (KT

the Company during the year as disclosed in Note 16 is 1645 AT -
as follows:
2022
—s==
HK$’000
FExT
Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 48,540 48,558
Contribution to defined contribution REHFERTEIZHE
retirement scheme 90 0
48,630 48,648

Total remuneration of key management personnel is
included in “Staff costs” as disclosed in Note 9.
(b) During the year, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions (“RPT”), which also
included connected transactions (“CT”) or continuing
connected transactions (“CCT”) under the Listing
Rules.

Name of related party Nature of transaction

BER AW/ NS LA EE

TEERABMES AR AMEOM
BEEEIRAR] -

FAAEEGETIIIERRES
RH((BETRS]) ZEX5HNE
BLEMBRABRTZEERS ([FER
%J))jzﬁ%?ﬁ@zgj(fﬁ@ﬁ@?«
1)

(b)

Transaction type
under Listing Rules

Chu and Li’'s Family Brokerage income

RERFRK & ERLVON
Maximum amount of margin financing
EaRECHER
Interest income
MEBA
Ho ChiHo Brokerage income
A% EERLVON
Lau Man Tak Brokerage income
BxiE IR ON

Directors of subsidiaries
and their associates

MBARESKABEAL

Kingston Finance Limited
(Note 1)

Maximum amount of margin financing
ERRECHER

Interest income

FBHA

Brokerage income

KERLVON

Interest expense

MEFIX

LHRAET 2022
ZRZER —E-=

HK$°000

FEx

cCT 2,963 1,209
BERERS
ccT 66,608 50,394
BERERS
CCT 1,291 2,192
SEBER S
ccT 19 -
BEEER S
ccT 58 47
BERERS
ccT 23,752 28,759
BEBERS
ccT 574 844
BEBERS
CT — 74
BEX S
CT 32,645 84,445
BERX S

065
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45 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

206

Name of related party Nature of transaction

XHMHE

BELEE/ HE

SHEHBERAA Management fee income
(Hret1) BEEWA

Kingston Property Investment ~ Management fee income
Limited (Note 1) EEEWA

ENEREBRAF
(K7t 1)

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited (Note 2)

Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) incomes, brokerage fee and

Limited (#f7#2) handling charge
BRERBA - EERE -
SRBBERA -
BRERTEE
Mr. Lee Wai Man (Note 3) Consultancy fee
FEXEAE(H3F3) BRER
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah Staff quarter rental expenses
ZRELT EIREHEHAX
Office rental payment
I YNEYIEEARE S
Car park rental payment
EESRSMAR

REF Financial Press Limited
(Note 4)
BUIISERIERAR (K 4)

PHRENRIRRT & A

Financial advisory income, placing
commission, financial services

Financial printing service charge

45 EXBETRBERS @

(b)

ii}

ZR

RPT
&

(&)
Transaction type
under Listing Rules
REIET 2022
B8 —¥-C
HK$°000
TET
984 984
X5
444 444
R5
240 240
ET
1,000 1,000
25
1,780 1,146
5
35,537 36,689
25
278 -
25
370 418
25

For the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above, the Independent Non-executive Directors have
reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions are in the ordinary and usual course of
business, on the normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

BUFNTEECEN EXARER
BRERD  UHRBFEWERST)
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ARAHEACDRELTRUNE4AE
ETHBERE ©
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45 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 265 to
266 in accordance with the Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Notes:

1. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in Kingston
Finance Limited and Kingston Property Investment
Limited.

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is a director of Sincere Watch (Hong
Kong) Limited and has significant influence over the
entity.

3. Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and
is dependent of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

4. Mr. Lau Man Tak is a controlling shareholder of REF
Holdings Limited. REF Financial Press Limited is an
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of REF Holdings
Limited.

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS

45 EREEFTRBERZ @

(b) @
RABZEMOELRBERESS:
MAgRHzEREFEFELNE
300058 (1&3]) [ JEHFIZ K BRI BIEH
HERKNEBZTIE]  WRREKHB
FE 7405 (FHERT) [EBREE TR Al
i il 335 48 A 15 22 5 AR BRAT R 1 | AR
EECZHEREISHELRS - ZH
B B AR 3 £ Ak _E T AR BIJ 28 14A 56 155t
F265F 266 AT AR EIFER
ERXGENERBERLRMT  EPE
§IJH§H§ ERREEw - ARFERAE

BARZMERRNREXZEE K
FFEIA -
it

1. FAELLTHRFERBEERA
REMEREBRAFAZIE flw*gﬁﬁo

2. FA#EL T ASincere Watch (Hong

Kong) Limited EF A ¥ Z EfEF
BEAFTE -

3. FEXGEERFAELLZRMIAAMR
BRRAERL -

4. BIX{EE £ A REF Holdings Limited
R o 12 Z AR IR B IR 22 A]
/5 REF Holdings Limited 2 E1# £ &
KB 7]

SHNETHMEHARA

TR FFER 267
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Hong Kong Legislative Council has, on 9 June 2022,
passed the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Bill 2022 (the “Bill”) to
abolish the MPF offsetting mechanism. It is envisaged that
the cancellation of mechanism will not come into effect until
2025 at the earliest.

The abolishment of the MPF offsetting mechanism will not
have retrospective effect, and the Bill will not change the rate
and maximum payment of statutory severance payments or
long service payments, which is currently calculated as 2/3
of the employee’s last monthly wages (capped at
HK$22,500), and subject to the maximum limit of
HK$390,000.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of the Bill to the Group. The Group is not yet in a
position to state whether the abolishment of the MPF
offsetting mechanism will result in substantial change to the
Group’s financial statements.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company
on 28 June 2022.

268 Kingston Financial Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

REHREE

EBEVFEENR _E-__E£ANLBBEB
(o022 F B RBRFTEDEFI R THE) (18
FDEBIER) (MEFIER]) - BUEBRESIK
HEH - B EUEMN RETEN TR
FERTARR -

BUESES SIS~ e RERBR -
MEPIERE TS B E B R RBRES
MR EESNREE  BilREERES
AIEM=9S 2 =& (LR A22500%5
JC) B EBR A 390,000 T

AEEERRTERIHREEERNF
& o AN MR BERETE BERR iR 1A 1 SH I I
ERRUAREENPHERIENERES -

BIERS P BRK

GBAPBBRRER - ZE-_—_FA-+/\H
RN REE BIERIFETIE
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